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Chapter 01 - Institutional Profile/ Executive Summary 

 

1.1. Introduction 
 

The Ministry of Irrigation, which functioned under Ministries with different scopes, was 

established as a Cabinet Ministry of Irrigation by the Extraordinary Gazette Notification 

No. 2187/27 dated 09.08.2020 and this Ministry plays a significant role in the 

development and management of water resources in Sri Lanka. Two Ministries, i.e. the 

State Ministry of Canals and Settlements Common Infrastructure Development 

associated with the Mahaweli Zones and the State Ministry of Tanks, Reservoirs and 

Irrigation Development related Rural Paddy Fields which function under guidance of the 

Cabinet Ministry, were established. 

 

The Ministry of Irrigation has taken measures to provide irrigation water for the 

improvement of the living standards of the entire farming community in the country 

through agricultural development while further expanding its role constantly in 

developing and managing water resources through the multiple objectives of drinking, 

agriculture and power generation. 

 

Accordingly, various programs were carried out under the Ministry in order to empower 

the farming community by way of an integrated water management approach in the 

central and larger irrigation zones, and to maintain its quantity and quality of ground 

water resources through the development and management of the same. 

 

The contribution provided by the Department of Irrigation and Irrigation management 

Division which are the affiliated institutions of the Ministry, is very vital in the 

accomplishment of the task entrusted to the Ministry of Irrigation.  

 

1.2. Vision Mission, Objectives of the Institution 

 

1.2.1. Vision 

Prosperous Sri Lanka through sustainable Water Resources Development & 

Management 

 

1.2.2. Mission 

Providing wellbeing of community & environment by fulfilling multiple water users 

through Water Resources Development & Management 

 

1.2.3. Objectives 
 

i. Development and management of water resources required for all water consumption 

and energy needs of the country 
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ii. Improving land and water use efficiency 
 

iii. Protection of water quality and sustainability through conservation of river basins and 

water resources 
 

iv. Providing irrigation water facilities required to ensure food security in Sri Lanka 
 

v. Providing necessary facilities to ensure a safe and secure domestic water supply to all 

Sri Lankans 
 

vi. Providing water facilities for ecological balance and development 
 

vii. Ensuring the sustainability of agriculture by improving the living standards of the 

farming community associated with irrigation systems 
 

viii. Development, conservation and management of groundwater resources in Sri Lanka 

 

 

1.3. Key Functions 

 

i. Formulation & Execution of Polices, Programmes and Projects related to the Ministry 

and institutions comes under the Ministry purview  
 

ii. Development of Water Resources and Irrigation Facilities   
 

iii. River Basins and Irrigation Systems Management Including Operation and 

Maintenance  
 

iv. Conservation and Protection of Water Sources and Irrigation Systems 
 

v. Develop technical guidance and criteria for Bulk Water allocation for Multiple Uses 
 

vi. Implement strategic programmes and projects to prevent Pollution of Water sources 

and ensure quality of Water 
 

vii. Prevention of Salt Water Extrusion to inland areas. 
 

viii. Drainage and Flood Protection  
 

ix. Engineering Consultancy Services  
 

x. Institutional Development and Productivity Enhancement of Irrigation systems 
 

xi. Development, Monitoring and Management of Ground Water      
 

xii. Conversation of Rain Water and promoting Rain water harvesting programme 
 

xiii. Broadening the Professional Services in the field of irrigation while safeguarding the 

domestic Irrigation Engineers’ Service
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1.4. Organizational Chart 
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1.5. Departments Under the Ministry  

 Irrigation Department 

 

1.6. Institutions/Funds coming under the Ministry  

 Irrigation Management Division (IMD) 

 Central Engineering Consultancy Bureau (CECB) 

 Central Engineering Services (Pvt) Limited  

 Sri Lanka Engineering Council (SLEC) 

 Mahaweli Consultancy Bureau (MCB) 

 

1.7. Details of the Foreign Funded Projects  

 

a) Name of the Project b) Donor 

Agency 

c) Estimated 

Cost of the 

Project – Rs Mn 

d) Project Duration 

Mahaweli Water Security 

Investment 

Programme(MWSIP) 

ADB 160,356 

(Revised) 

(USD 675 Mn) 

2015 – 2024 

Uma Oya Multipurpose 

Development Project 

(Local funded Project since 

2015) 

EDB/ GOSL 89,800 

(USD 514.06 

Mn+98,361.70 

Rs Mn) 

2010 March– 2022 June 

MoragahakandaKaluganga 

Development Project 

CDB, SFD, 

KFAED, 

OFID, GOSL 

117,700 

(USD 770.41 Mn) 

2007 - 2022 

Climate Resilience 

Improvement Project (CRIP) 

WB 17,764.80 

(USD 110 Mn) 

2014 August - 2021 

August 

Climate Resilience 

Improvement Project (CRIP) - 

Component 11 

WB 6,783.00 

(USD 42 Mn) 

2016 August - 2021 

October 

Establishment of Ground 

Water Monitoring Network 

GOSL 

(Netherlands) 

5,613.00 

(20.63 Euro Mn) 

2018 March–2022 

December 

Climate Variability and 

Extreme Events through an 

Integrated approach to Water 

Management Project –

(CRIWMP) 

Green Climate 

Fund& GOSL 

9,114 

(USD 52.08 Mn) 

2017 - 2024 

Integrated Watershed and 

Water Resources Management 

Project (IWWRMP) 

WB 14,199.43 2021 - 2026 
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Chapter 2 – Special Achievements, Challenges and Targets 

 

2.1. Special Achievements, Challenges and Progress 

 

2.1.1. Special Achievements 

 

 Construction activities of a number of projects including Thalpitigala Reservoir Project, 

Lower Malwathu Oya Reservoir Project, Maduru Oya Right Bank Development Project 

could be initiated within the year 2021.  

 

 Preliminary work required to be done in order to commence the construction activities of 

Gin Nilwala Diversion Project and the Kumbukkan Oya Reservoir Project in 2022,    was 

completed in 2021. 

 

 Construction work  pertaining to Twelve construction packages out of 20, coming under 

the first stage  of the Mahaweli Water Security Investment Programme which is  the 

largest water resource development scheme currently being implemented  in Sri Lanka, 

has been commenced by the end of 2021 and construction work of   some packages  has 

already  been completed. 

 

2.1.2. Progress 

 

Ministry of Irrigation with the objective of creating a prosperous Sri Lanka through sustainable 

water resources development and management, is committed to expand irrigation systems in 

addition to conservation of tanks and irrigation systems throughout the country.  Similarly, 

many projects under the Ministry have been implemented targeting to provide drinking water 

and hydropower generation which is a national requirement, without confining to irrigation 

development only. 

 

Despite the Covid-19 epidemic during the year 2021, Ministry of Irrigation was able to gain 

significant achievements. Moragahakanda and Kalu Ganga reservoirs are currently being used 

for storage and irrigation of water and 98% of the entire work of the Moragahakanda - Kalu 

Ganga development project has been achieved by the end of 2021. 

 

Mahaweli Water Security Investment Programme was implemented to provide benefits of 

constructing Moragahakanda and Kalu Ganga reservoirs, to the targeted areas. Under the said 

programme, Minipe Left Bank Canal, North Central Province Canal and North Western 

Province Canal are being constructed. The construction work related to five packages out of 
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twenty one identified under the first phase has been physically completed and construction 

work of seven packages has already been commenced. Moreover, initiatives were taken to Call 

for bids in 2021 with a view to initiate construction work of another eight packages of the 

project during the year 2022. Accordingly, it has been planned to call for bids for the remaining 

package and commence the construction work of the same in the year 2022. 

 

More than 97.02% of the primary work component related to Uma Oya Multipurpose 

Development Project and 65% physical progress of Down Stream Development activities and 

93.82% of the overall progress have been achieved by the end of the year 2021. It has been 

planned to provide benefits of the agriculture, drinking water and power generation of the 

project to the country by the middle of the year 2022. 

 

Completion of the Climate Resilience Improvement Project within the year 2021 is an 

achievement. A comprehensive study of river basins was carried out under this project and 

thereunder river basins investment plans were formulated for Kelani River, Attanagalu Oya, 

Gin River, Nilwala River, Malwathu Oya, Maha Oya, Deduru Oya, Kala Oya and Gal Oya 

basins. Alternative potentialities to minimize the long term severe impacts of climatic changes 

were identified and relevant staff of the operational institutions were trained so as to provide 

them knowledge of new technological advances in hydrology and river basins. 

 

Without confining to the mega irrigation projects, the Ministry has focused on developing rural 

tank systems which is a very significant component of our irrigation civilization. It has been 

planned to provide water to cascade of small tanks through North western Canal and North 

Central Province Canal. Additionally, rehabilitation of the main three river basins and 300 rural 

tanks in the districts of Kurunegala, Puttalam, Anuradhapura, Vavuniya, Mannar, 

Polonnaruwa, and Trincomalee is being carried out through the Climatic Resilient Integrated 

Water Management Project alias Wewgam Pupuduwa Project. Reconstruction activities of 137 

rural irrigation systems have been completed by the end of the year 2021 and 84 irrigation 

systems are being rehabilitated. 

 

Moreover, it has been able to successfully manage the water in a number of irrigation projects 

coming under the Department of Irrigation and the Mahaweli Authority of Sri Lanka to meet 

the water requirement for cultivation in both seasons in the year 2021. 

 

Various programmes, such as integrated irrigation management programme of major irrigation 

schemes implemented by Irrigation Management Division to strengthen farmer organizations 

for the empowerment of the community and awareness programmes for farmers to enhance 

productivity, were carried out during the year 2021.   
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In conformity with “Wari Saubhagya” national program to be commenced in the year 2021 and 

continued during the succeeding five years, rehabilitation of 5,000 rural tanks and anicuts was 

initiated under the direct supervision of the State Ministry of Tanks, Reservoirs and Irrigation 

Development related to Rural Paddy Fields. Accordingly, the primary target was to rehabilitate 

1,000 tanks during the year 2021, thus, rehabilitation of 1,423 tanks was initiated and activities 

related to rehabilitation of 757 tanks of them were completed within the year 2021. 

 

Negotiations with contractors who have already entered in agreements were begun in the year 

2021 to commence and complete the construction work of Gin Nilwala Diversion Project, 

Maduru Oya Right Bank Development Project and the Kumbukkan Oya Reservoir Project and 

the construction work is scheduled to be commenced in the year 2022. 

 

The construction of the Dam pertaining to the Lower Malwathu Oya Multipurpose Project 

which was initiated to cultivate 1,057 hectares of new lands and to irrigate 12,420 hectares of 

existing cultivations, to meet the drinking water requirements of the Vavuniya, Mannar and 

Anuradhapura Districts and to generate 4.68 GWh of electricity annually, has been commenced 

and construction work of the reservoir outlet and power plant is scheduled to begin in 2022. 

  

The Cabinet Memorandum for the establishment of Dam Safety Advisory Centre and Dam 

Safety Regulatory Mechanism in order to ensure the safety of the all dams in the country, was 

submitted by the Ministry of Irrigation in 2020 and the necessary action is  being taken to 

obtain approval as per the observations received in that regard. As per the report of the 

committee appointed to formulate a strategic mechanism to build a Common Catchment Area 

Management Approach in Sri Lanka, further action will be taken in 2022. 

 

Approval of the Cabinet of Ministers has been received for the amendment of Irrigation 

Ordinance and it has been planned to take further action regarding the same in the year 2022. 

 

The progress of the main projects implemented under the Ministry of Irrigation can be 

summarized as follows. 
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1. Mahaweli Water Security Investment Program (MIWSIP) 

 

Estimated Cost Rs. 160,356 Mn 

(US$ 976 Mn) 

Benefited Districts Matale, Kandy, Kurunegala, 

Anuradhapura, Polonnaruwa 

Funding 

Sources 

ADB and GOSL Reservoir Capacity 

(MCM)/ Irrigable 

Land Area (ha) 

North Central Province 

Canal Project - 191 MCM  

North Western Province 

Canal Project - 13,000ha   

North Central Province 

Canal Project - 12,300ha 

Minipe Left Bank Canal 

Rehabilitation Project - 

62,000ha 

Project 

Duration 

November 2015 – 

December 2024 

Beneficiaries Phase 1 (Population 

Benefited) 

NWPCP   – 300,000 

NCPCP     - 700,000 

MLBCRP - 7,500              

Allocation 2020 14,098.00 Rs. Mn Allocation for 2021 20,000.00 Rs. Mn 

Cumulative 

Financial 

Progress 

36,270.00 Rs. Mn Overall Physical 

Progress (%) 

29% (The project progress 

has been calculated based on 

the ongoing 12 sub-projects 

projects currently in 

operation) 

Financial 

Progress 2020 

12,280.00 Rs. Mn 

Work done in 

2021 

Status of the Construction Packages are as follows 

• Rehabilitation of Minipe Left Bank Canal - Stage - 1 (0+000 km 

to 30+140 km), Stage - 2 (30+140 km to 49+820 km) and Stage - 

3 (49+820 km to 63+650 km) are physically completed. 

• Improvement to Wemedilla Left Bank Main Canal up to 

Nabadagahawatta (0+000 to 5+250 km) & Construction of New 

Sluice & Tail Canal NWPC-NCB-1 -98% 

• Physical Progress for 31st December 2021 of Ongoing following 

contract packages as follows,                                           

             MLBCRP-ICB-1   -   22%  

             NWPC-NCB-1      -   6%  

             NWPC-ICB-2        - 21% 

             NWPC-ICB-1         -3.1%              

             UEC-ICB-1            -  1%          

             UEC-ICB-2B         -  19% 

             UEC-ICB-2A        -   5.2%   
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Overall 

Benefits of the 

Project 

➢ Around 265,500 families have benefited through the drinking 

water requirement and after the completion of the MWSIP phase 

1 (NWPCP- 75,000 families, MLBCRP-15,500 families NCPCP-

175, 000families) will be benefitted. 
 

➢ Add upstream storage by heightening the Minipe headworks weir 

by 3.5m so as to regulate generation inflows, additional 9 

Gwh/Annum power will be generated 
 

➢ Very attractive and reasonable compensation packages approved 

by the government for the lands acquired from the villages in and 

around the project area have benefited the community. As a result, 

up to now 580 Project affected persons received compensations 

amounting to Rs.600 million. It is estimated that more than 3000 

land lots to be acquired before the commencement of the 9 new 

contract packages within this year. 
 

➢ In order to minimize the damage to the environment during the 

implementation of the project Intervention, 600 ha of land will 

come under reforestation and up to now 70 ha reforestation has 

been completed. 
 

➢ Contribution to the promotion of supplementary food crops 
 

➢ Ground water improvement and homestead cultivation in project 

area 
 

➢ Inland fisheries improvement 
 

➢ Access Road Improvement along the canal system 
 

➢ Addressing the acute drinking water problem that is causing the 

current kidney disease. 
 

➢ After Completion of the North Western Province Canal Project, 

water supply to seven major tanks and 350 minor tanks located in 

the area for agriculture purposes. 
 

➢ Minimize the complications caused by climate changes 
 

➢ New employment opportunities for the people of the area due to 

the construction activities. 
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2. Uma Oya Multipurpose Development Project 

 

Estimated Cost 
98,361.7 Rs. Mn. 

 

Benefited 

Districts 
Badulla, Moneragala & Hambantota 

Funding 

Sources 

EDBI Loan, 

Government of 

Sri Lanka 

(GoSL) 

Reservoir 

Capacity 

(MCM)/ 

Irrigable land 

area (Ha) 

• Puhulpola reservoir - 0.6 MCM 

• Dyraba reservoir - 0.9 MCM 

• Alikota Ara reservoir - 6.5 MCM  

• Kuda Oya reservoir - 29.0 MCM  

• Handapanagala Tank enhancing 

capacity of existing from 6.5 

MCM to 14 MCM 
 

Total of 6000 Ha considering of 

1500 ha existing lands and 4500 ha 

newly developed lands 
 

Project 

Duration 

Head Works 

March 2010 – 

May 2022 
 

Downstream 

Development 

September 2013 - 

December 2022 

Beneficiaries Around 6,000 families will be 

directly benefitted from Downstream 

Development while the whole 

Country will be benefitted from the 

power generation (installed capacity 

- 120 MW) which will add around 

290GWh of electrical energy 

annually to the National Grid. 

Allocation 

2021 

6,000 Rs. Mn. Allocation for 

2022 

5,100 Rs. Mn. (Head Works) 

Cumulative 

Financial 

Progress 

84,068.87 Rs. Mn. 

 

Overall 

Physical 

Progress  (%) 

93.82% 

 

Financial 

Progress 2021 

5,392.85 Rs. Mn. 

 

Work done in 

2021 

Head Works     

• Puhulpola Dam - 99.09% 

• Dyraaba Dam - 94.57% 

• Link Tunnel - 99.16% 

• Headrace Tunnel - 98.59% 

• Surge Tank - 95.48% 

• Vertical Pressure Shaft - 98.27% 

• Power House - 95.86% 

• Main Access Tunnel and Other Access Tunnel - 97.78% 

• Switch Yard - 89.41% 

• Roads - 88.94% 

• Transmission Line - 94.98% 

• Tail Race Tunnel - 99.39% 
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Downstream Development 

 

The scope and cost of Downstream development activities have changed 

as follows. Physical progress has also been revised accordingly. 
 

1. The lower outlet of the Alikota Ara Reservoir is proposed. 
 

2. Road System Construction and Wildlife Unit Office is to be 

constructed in the vicinity of Handapanagala Lake. 
 

3. Construction of additional D canals in the vicinity of Handapanagala 

Reservoir has been included after identifying new areas that can 

supply irrigation water. 
 

4. The length of Alikota Ara - Kuda Oya diversion canals was 

increased after obtaining the approval of the Forest Department. 
 

5. The length of the Kuda Oya - Sinhalayagama diversion canal system 

has been increased after obtaining the approval of the Department 

of Wildlife and Forest Conservation. 
 

6. 25 new tanks have been added to the Rural Tank Development 

component. 
 

Accordingly, the downstream development activities are being carried out 

by the Irrigation Department during this year. 
 

Overall 

Benefits of the 

Project 

The main objective of Uma Oya Multipurpose Development Project 

(UOMDP) is trans-basin diversion of 145 MCM of excess water annually 

from Uma Oya basin to Kirindi Oya basin for alleviating the water scarcity 

in the South-eastern dry zone without affecting the water users and 

environment in Uma Oya basin.  

 

• Will provide water to irrigate around 4,500 ha of new land and to 

around 1,500 ha of existing agricultural land in Moneragala District. 

• Will provide 30 MCM of drinking and industrial water requirements 

in Moneragala and Hambantota Districts. 

• An underground power station with an installed capacity of 120 MW 

will add around 290 GWh of electrical energy annually to the National 

Grid. 

• In Badulla District, drinking water will be provided to Bandarawela 

area from Dyrabaa reservoir and to Atampitiya area from Puhulpola 

reservoir.  

• In Monaragala District, drinking water will be provided to Wellawaya 

and Thanamalwila areas from Alikotaara reservoir. 
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3. Moragahakanda Kaluganga Reservoir Project 

 

Estimated 

Cost 

117,700 Rs. Mn. 

 Benefited Districts 

Polonnaruwa, Trincomalee, 

Anuradhapura,Matale & 

Kurunegala 

Funding 

Sources 

Government of Sri 

Lanka, Saudi Fund for 

Development, Opec 

Fund for International 

Development, Kuwait 

fund for Arab 

Economic 

Development 

Reservoir 

Capacity (MCM)/ 

Irrigable land area 

(Ha) 

Moragahakanda - 570 

MCM 

Kaluganga - 250 MCM 

Project 

Duration 

2007 – 2022 Beneficiaries Kaluganga - 3,419 

Medirigiriya - 650 

Allocation 

2021 

8,455.00 Rs. Mn. Allocation for 

2022 

3,600.00 Rs. Mn. 

Cumulative 

Financial 

Progress 

113,448.68 Rs. Mn. Overall Physical 

Progress  (%) 

98.34% 

Financial 

Progress 2021 

4,668.00 Rs. Mn. 

Work done in 

2021 

• Construction of Moragahakanda Reservoir has been completed. 

• The power plant is in operation. 

• Construction of Kalu Ganga Reservoir has been completed. 

• Land Acquisition and Resettlement Progress is 98.5%. 

• Lower valley development activities have achieved 94.25% progress. 

• Progress in Environmental Impact Mitigation 98.5% 

• Circuit bungalow and information center completed. 
 

Overall 

Benefits of the 

Project 

• Moragahakanda Reservoir with 557MCM water capacity 

• Kaluganga Reservoir with 248MCM water capacity 

• Hydro power plant - which produces annually 114.5GWh 

electricity. Annual fuel cost savings with the hydro power 

production will be around 1,545Rs. Mn. 
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• 465 Buildings for public usage 

• 276Km of road networks 

• 330Km of canal networks 

• 11 small tanks established 

• 20 minor tanks established 

 

• Additional 5000 ha land has been open up for agriculture 

 

• Enhance the agricultural production of the country - Cropping 

intensity in several areas are around 100% to 154%. This project 

will increase this up to 181% on the average. Direct benefits 

including the increased rice yield per hectare will give an additional 

agricultural production of 123,000 tons annually. The net annual 

agricultural benefits will be Rs. Mn. 4,000 in monitory term. 

 

• Providing drinking and Industrial water facilities to Matale, 

Polonnaruwa, Anuradhapura and Trincomalee districts. 

 

• Inland Fishery – The average annual fish production potential is 

estimated to be around 4,700 tons per year, representing net 

benefits 940 Rs. Mn. annually. 

 

• Enhancing employment opportunities - 650 nos of people are 

directly recruited in the Project. Further youths are trained by 

conducting/arranging Gem &Jewellery courses, Hotel 

Management courses, Self-employment trainings etc.  

 

• Enhancing Ecotourism - enhance the eco-tourism by developing 

Wasgamuwa National Park, Minneria National Park & Riverston 

etc. 

 

• Flood control - Controlling the flood damages caused in 

Somawathiya&Mannampitiya areas. 
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4. Climate Resilience Improvement Project (CRIP) 

 

Estimated 

Cost  

USD 152 Mn = 

24,547 Rs. Mn 

Benefited 

Districts 

Gampaha, Colombo, Kalutara, Kegalle, 

Rathnapura, Kurunegala, Anuradhapura, 

Polonnaruwa, Puttalam, Trincomalee, 

Ampara, Batticaloa, Moneragala, Badulla, 

Kandy, NuwaraEliya, Matale, Vavnia, 

Mulative, Mannar, Hambantota, Galle, 

and Matara 

Funding 

Sources 

IDA - WB Beneficiaries • Improvement of canal - 1,784,543 

People 

• Extent protected from flood and 

drought - 134,543ha of cultivation 

lands 

• People protected from weather 

related transport interruptions - 

1,650,000 People 

• School protected from landslides - 

18 Schools, School children 

protected - 29,000 

• People benefited from ensured 

continuity - 72,000 Beneficiaries 

Project 

Duration 

5th Aug 2014 to 

30th April 2021 

Allocation 

for 2022 

Project implementation completed by 

30th April 2021 

Financial 

Progress 

2021 

OP : 2385.00 

AF : 1645.00 

 

Overall 

Physical 

Progress (%) 

100% 

Cumulative 

Financial 

Progress 

OP: 16,715.67 Rs. Mn. 

AF: 6,946.31 Rs. Mn. 

Financial 

Progress 

2021 

OP: 2, 349.67 Rs. Mn. 

AF: 1,294.69 Rs. Mn. 

Work done 

in 2021 

• Completed Feasibility studies conducted for: 

 

a) Gamapaha and Ja-Ela city flood control 

b) Anuradhapura city flood protection 

c) Kandekaduwa diversion structures 

d) Wee oya multipurpose reservoir 

e) Ambatale salinity barrier 

f) Mundeniaru flood protection 
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• Improved climate resilience of irrigation infrastructures by 

- Completion of 54 packages by ID 

- Completion of 4 packages by MASL 

 

• Uninterrupted transport continuity ensured by : 

 

i. replacing causeways and small opening bridges by RDA by 

completing 11 bridge improvement packages 

ii. stabilized unstable slopes/ landslides on Kandy - Mahiyangana road, 

Hakgala by completion 3 packages by RDA 

iii. stabilized slope failures by implementing 4 packages by Uva – 

PRDD 

iv. completed 6 packages under the CERC 

 

 

Overall 

Benefits of 

the Project 

• 10 Basin investment plans developed for Kelani, Attanagalu, Gin, 

Nilwala, Malwathu oya, Mahaweli Kala oya, Daduru oya, Maha oya 

and Gal oya basins 

• 4 feasibility studies being carried out for (a) Jaela and Gampaha city 

flood protection, (b) Wee oya multipurpose reservoir construction, (c) 

Anuradhapuar city flood protection and (d) Kandekaduwa diversion 

structure 

• 134,543 ha of lands protected from annual crop losses due to weather-

related events (flood and drought) 

• 1,079km length irrigation distribution canals improved  

• 101km of drainage canal improved by widening and deepening by 

desilting 

• 66km length of spill tail canals improved 

• 32km length flood bunds constructed 

• 618 small bridges and culverts constructed, 10,502 structures (gates, 

drop structures, over – crossing, under – crossing, spills, regulators, 

siphons) constructed 

• 1,650,000 People protected from weather-related transport interruption 

by ensuring transport continuity 1,169km length roads 

• Landslide mitigated in 22 locations 

• 39 bridges constructed by replacing causeways and small bridges 

having small opening that causes flooding and interruption to transport 
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5. Productivity Enhancement and Irrigation System Efficiency 

Improvement Project (PEISEIP) 
 

Estimated Cost 18,500 Rs. Mn. Benefited 

Districts 

Ampara, Anuradhapura, Badulla, 

Batticaloa, Colombo, Galle, Gampaha, 

Hambantota, Kandy, Kurunegala, 

Mannar, Matale, Matara, Monaragala, 

NuwaraEliya, Polonnaruwa, Puttalam, 

Ratnapura, Trincomalee and Vavuniya 
 

Funding 

Source 

GOSL Reservoir 

Capacity 

(MCM)/ 

Irrigable land 

area (Ha) 

Scope of the project to enhance the land, 

water and crop productivity achieved 

through 04 project components.  

 

1. Irrigation Infrastructure Rehabilitation 

Component – (IIRC)  

2. Agriculture Productivity Improvement 

Component – (APIC)  

3. On-farm Development Component – 

(OFDC)  

4. Increasing Capacity for Irrigation 

Management Component – (ICIMC)  

 

to increase the irrigation system 

efficiency in 40 major irrigation schemes 

and 40 medium irrigation schemes. The 

final objective of the project is to increase 

the income of farming community and 

thereby improving the quality of life of 

the people in the project area through 

productivity enhancement. The total 

Estimated Project cost is Rs. 18,500Mn. 

Project is to be completed within 05 years 

from 2017 under local funds. 
 

Project 

Duration 
2017 - 2021* Beneficiaries 98,000 farm families 

Allocation 

2021 
300 Rs. Mn. 

Allocation for 

2022 
450.00 Rs. Mn. (150.00 + 300.00) 

Cumulative 

Financial 

Progress 

1,628.13 Rs. Mn. 

Overall 

Physical 

Progress (%) 

12.16% 

Financial 

Progress 2021  

163.59 
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Work Done in 

2021 

Continuation of rehabilitation of Irrigation infrastructure, Continuation of 

threshing floor construction, Enhancing the Economy of farmers, 

Preparation Quality Seed Paddy and Organic manure production in 

Ampara, Anuradhapura, Badulla, Batticaloa, Colombo, Galle, 

Hambantota, Kandy, Kurunegala, Monaragala, Polonnaruwa, Puttalam, 

Trincomalee & Mannar Irrigation Region. 
 

Overall 

Benefits of the 

Project 

1. Improved irrigation infrastructure for 72,882 ha of irrigable lands 

benefiting to the 97,832 families  

2. Improved canal systems having 110 Km of main canals, 280 km's of 

Distributary canals and 480 km's of Field canals in 40 major irrigation 

schemes and 40 medium irrigation schemes in project area  

3. 320 Km's of improved farm roads within the project area including 

construction of culverts and small bridges  

4. Increasing the cropping intensity of existing irrigation schemes from 1.5 

/ 1.8 to 2.0 and thereby improving the income of about 98,000 farm 

families  

5. Flow measurement network with measuring devices and communication 

equipments equipped with data processing units in 80 major and medium 

irrigation schemes.  

6. GIS Maps of 25 Schemes, 02 No’s farmer’s market, Threshing 

floors and Pack houses 
 

* Requests have been made to extend it to 2024. 

 

 

6. Climate Resilient Integrated Water Management Project (CRIWMP) 

 

Estimated Cost   9,114.00 Rs. Mn. 

(Rs. 175 = 1 USD) 

Benefited Districts Anuradhapura, Puttlam, 

Vavuniya Kurunegala, 

Polonnaruwa, Mannar 

and Trincomalee  

Funding 

Sources 

Green Climate Fund 

and GOSL – Co - 

Finance 

Reservoir Capacity 

(MCM)/ Irrigable 

Land Area (Ha) 

325 Minor tanks   

5000 ha 

Project 

Duration 

07 Years 

2017 June-2024 June 

Beneficiaries 1,950,374 

Allocation 2021 1,500 Rs. Mn Allocation for 2022 2,100 Rs. Mn 

Cumulative 

Financial 

Progress 

2,218.04 (MOI) 

2,171.69 (UNDP) 

4,389.73 

Overall Physical 

Progress (%) 

49% 

Financial 

Progress 2021 

908 (MOI) 
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Work done in 

2021 

• Rehabilitate 83 Village Irrigation Systems (Minor tanks /Anicuts) 
 

• Provide technical assistance in implement Climate Smart Agriculture 

Program in Project Districts (Project funds were not provided)  
 

• Continued balance activities in implementing 07 Rural Water Supply 

schemes (02 – Handed over) / 41 Advance Filtration systems (08 – 

Handed Over) 
 

Overall 

Benefits of the 

Project 

• Upgrading and enhancing resilience of 325 village irrigation systems 

and scaling up climate-resilient farming practices (Increase the 

cropping Intensity from 0.8 to 1.6 by VIS rehabilitation and via 

climate smart agricultural practices) 
 

• Enhancing climate-resilient, decentralized water management 

solutions to provide safe year-round drinking water for vulnerable 

community through Establishment of 11 Rural Water Supply 

Schemes and 125 advance filtration units and 4000 Rain water 

harvesting tank systems.  
 

• Enhance water management and adaptive capacity of vulnerable 

communities for floods and droughts by Establish effective 

monitoring systems, distributing weather advisories and developing 

early warning disaster response measures 
 

 

 

7. Thalpitigala Reservoir Project 

 

Estimated Cost   32,000 Rs. Mn 

(1 USD = Rs.174) 

Benefited Districts Badulla, Kandy 

Funding 

Sources 

GoSL Reservoir Capacity 

(MCM)/ Irrigable 

Land Area (ha) 

15.6 MCM 

Existing 810ha New 400ha 

40 MCM to Rantabe 

Project 

Duration 
04 years 

Beneficiaries 
10,000 families 

Allocation 2021 400 Rs. Mn Allocation for 2022 1,800 Rs. Mn 

Cumulative 

Financial 

Progress 

527.50 Rs. Mn 

 

Overall Physical 

Progress (%) 

4% 

Financial 

Progress 2021 

377.50 Rs. Mn 

Work done in 

2022 

Development of Infrastructure, Surveying and Investigation, Land 

acquisition, Design of Project 
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Overall 

Benefits of the 

Project 

• Agriculture – Existing 810ha of Bathmedilla Scheme, New 400ha. 

Existing 800ha of Minipe LB.    
 

• Power Generation – Power 52.6 GWhr per annum 
 

• Drinking Water for 10,000 families. 

• Environmental development and enhancing tourism. 

• Improving fresh water fisheries Industry 

• Control the accumulation of sedimals to Mahaweli system 

• Releasing 40MCM of water to Rantabe 

• Bridging Kandeketiya and Uva Paranagama 

 

 

8. Lower Malwathu Oya Multisector Development Project 

 

Estimated Cost   22,900 Rs. Mn Benefited Districts Anuradhapura, 

Mannar & Vauniya 

Funding Sources GoSL Reservoir Capacity (MCM)/ 

Irrigable Land Area (ha) 

209 MCM 

Project Duration 2016 - 2024 Beneficiaries farmer families in 

Anuradhapura, 

Mannar & Vauniya 

Allocation 2021 325 Rs. Mn Allocation for 2022 3,700 Rs. Mn 

Cumulative 

Financial Progress 

446.7 Rs. Mn Overall Physical Progress 

(%) 

2.31 % 

Financial Progress 

2021 

248.5 Rs. Mn 

Work done in 2022 • Excavation work required for the construction of the reservoir 

bund (2.6 km by 3.6 km). 

• Carrying out necessary geotechnical treatments at the excavated 

sites. (2.6 km by 3.6 km). 

• Filling the excavated road with standard soil. 

• Preparation of land for construction of main bund (removal of 

trees, standing soil and mud). 

• Surveying, preparation of engineering designs and design sheets. 

• Providing necessary facilities for the work site. 

• Commencement of necessary activities for the preparation of the 

soil acquisition site. 

• Commencement of construction of temporary and permanent 

industrial workshops. 

• Surveying of left bank canal (6 km) and right bank canal (2Km) 

• Designing left bank and right bank sluices and canals. 
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Overall Benefits of 

the Project 

• Irrigation of 1,052 acres of new cultivated lands. 

• Irrigation of an area of 12,420 acres cultivated in the vicinity of 

Yoda Wewa and Agathamurippu tanks. 

• Providing capacity of 27 MCM for domestic and drinking water 

facilities in Vavuniya, Anuradhapura and Mannar districts. 

• Transfer 4.68 GWh of electricity annually to the National 

Electricity Supply. 

• Development of Tantirimale area under new town development. 

• Flood control in Vavuniya and Mannar districts. 

• Introduction of solar energy projects. 

• Introduction of lift irrigation projects. 

• Generating new job opportunities during the project period. 

• Development of fresh water fisheries and fisheries. 

• Replanting/ Reforesting  

• Preservation of forests and wildlife, and allotment of land for 

wildlife migration. 

• Improving the internal road network. 

• Strengthening Agrarian Services and Institutional Development. 

 

 

9. Gin Nilwala Diversion Project 

 

Estimated Cost   690 US$ Benefited Districts Galle, Matara, Hambantota 

Funding Sources Foreign Funds Reservoir Capacity 0.3/0.16/11 MCM 

Project Duration 06 years Beneficiaries 75,000 families 

Allocation 2021 20 Rs. Mn Allocation for 2022 250 Rs. Mn  

Cumulative 

Financial Progress 

4,070 Rs. Mn Overall Physical 

Progress (%) 

64.67% (Stage 01) 

Financial Progress 

2021 

15.95 Rs. Mn 

Work done in 2021 • Updating Feasibility Study 

• Started EIA Study 

 

Overall Benefits of 

the Project 

• Irrigable Land 5000 ha 50000 Families 

• Supply of drinking/Industrial water 122 MCM 

• 65 GWh annual power generation 
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10.  Pilot Project on Establishment of Groundwater Monitoring 

Network in Malwathu Oya, Maduru Oya & Kumbukkan Oya River 

Basins 

 

Estimated Cost   5,613 Rs. Mn. Benefited Districts Anuradhapura, Polonnaruwa, 

Vavuniya, Batticaloa, 

Mannar, Moneragala, 

Ampara, Hambanthota 

Badulla, Puttalam and Jaffna 

Funding 

Sources 

Rabo Bank, 

Netherland, 

GoSL 

Reservoir Capacity 

(MCM)/ Benefitted 

Area (ha) 

Malwathu oya Kubukkan oya 

and Maduru oya River Basin 

areas 

Project 

Duration 

2018 - 2022 Beneficiaries General public, decision 

makers, researchers and 

stakeholders 

Allocation 2021 750 Rs. Mn. Allocation for 2022  350 Rs. Mn. (requested) 

Cumulative 

Financial 

Progress 

92% Overall Physical 

Progress (%) 

92% 

Financial 

Progress 2021 
70.8% 

Work done in 

2021 

1. Preliminary field investigations – 65 Nos. 

2. Construction of monitoring wells – 12 Nos. 

3. Construction of well head structures – 19 Nos. 

4. Installation of monitoring equipment – 103 Nos. 

5. On-line training programmes on web portal development and 

installation of monitoring equipment. 

 

Overall 

Benefits of the 

Project 

Gather the real time data on water availability and water quality, by 

establishing a groundwater monitoring network in selected 03 river 

basins, which is useful in future groundwater management activities of 

same river basins. 
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11.  Restoration of Barrack Plain Tank in Nuwara Eliya 

 

Estimated Cost 230 Rs. Mn. Benefited Districts Nuwaraeliya 

Funding Sources GoSL Reservoir Capacity (MCM)/ 

Benefitted Area (ha) 

3,000 MCM 

800 ha 

Project Duration 2 Years  

2021 - 2022 

Beneficiaries 3,000 Families 

Allocation 2021 100 Rs. Mn. Allocation for 2022  100 Rs. Mn. 

Cumulative Financial 

Progress 

45 Rs. Mn. Overall Physical Progress 

(%) 

26% 

Financial Progress 2021 45 Rs. Mn. 

Work done in 2021 1. Uprooting & removal of heavy rooted water weeds 

2. Excavation & removal of silt in tank 

 

Overall Benefits of the 

Project 

1. Irrigable land 800 ha, Families 3,500 

2. Drinking water 3,000 families 

 

 

12. Integrated Watershed and Water Resources Management Project 

(IWWRMP) 

 

Estimated Cost 14,199.43 Rs. Mn. Benefited Districts All island 

Funding Sources WB, GoSL Reservoir Capacity (MCM)/ 

Benefitted Area (ha) 

3,667 MCM 

159,571 ha 

Project Duration 5 Years Beneficiaries 466,404 of families 

Allocation 2021 651.38 Rs. Mn. Allocation for 2022  3,000 Rs. Mn. 

Cumulative 

Financial 

Progress 

2.170 Rs. Mn. Overall Physical Progress 

(%) 

0.5% 

Financial 

Progress 2021 
47.29% 

Work done in 

2021 

Altogether 23 nos. of rehabilitation works packages have been 

advertised for calling bids. Total value of those contracts is 3,148 

million Sri Lankan rupees. 
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Overall Benefits 

of the Project 

The Project will generate directly befit from the following factors 
 

1. Approximately 110,000 families living within the proposed 

Upper Mahaweli Watershed will benefit through both on-farm 

and off-farm soil and water conservation activities. 
 

2. Reducing risk of dam failure of selected 36 high risk dams and 

improving operating efficiency for Water resources 

management and utilization 
 

3. Minimizing water wastages due to the damaged canal system, 

and improving the other field crop cultivation 
 

4. Also promote the participation of youth and women in key 

project interventions to ensure that they benefit from project 

results. 
 

 

 

13.  Kivul Oya Reservoir Project 

 

Estimated Cost 8,000 Rs. Mn. Benefited Districts Anuradhapura, 

Vavuniya, Mullative 

Funding Sources GoSL Reservoir Capacity (MCM)/ 

Irrigable Land Area (ha) 

53.9 MCM 

2,400 ha 

Project Duration 4 Years Beneficiaries 6,000 families 

Allocation 2021 250 Rs. Mn. Allocation for 2022  2,500 Rs. Mn. 

Cumulative 

Financial 

Progress 

28.00 Rs. Mn. Overall Physical Progress (%) 2.7% 

Financial 

Progress 2021 
28.00 Rs. Mn. 

Work done in 

2021 

Initial Geological Investigation of dam (95%), Borehole Survey for Spill, Dam 

and Sluice, LS and CSs along the Dam Axis (100%), Design of dam (100%) 

need to review, Design of spill (50%), Design of sluice (50%), BOP of 

downstream (100%), LSs of the downstream canal (50%) 

 

Overall Benefits 

of the Project 
Increasing irrigable area by 1,700ha (Paddy and others Cultivations), 

Supplying drinking water for 10,000 families, Increasing ground water, 

Fishing, Livestock farming and Job opportunities. 
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14.  Maduru Oya Right Bank Development 

 

Estimated Cost 38,500 Rs. Mn Benefited Districts Batticaloa & Ampara  

Funding Source GOSL Reservoir Capacity (MCM)/ 

Irrigable Land Area (ha) 

18.4 MCM 

10,000 ha 

Project 

Duration 

10 Years Beneficiaries 4,500 farmer families, 

1,000 non-farmer 

families  

Allocation 2021 539 Rs. Mn Allocation for 2022 1,000 Rs. Mn 

Cumulative 

Financial 

Progress 

334 Rs. Mn Overall Physical Progress 

(%) 

1.4% 

Financial 

Progress 2021 
334 Rs. Mn 

Work done in 

2021 

• Construction started 5.5 Km of Right Bank Main Canal and 

completed 1.5 Km. 

• Construction started 5.5 Km of Access roads from Damminna and 

completed 2.5 Km. 

• Renovation of 07 buildings for accommodation and 50 % completion 

of Renovation of Office building. 
 

Overall 

Benefits of the 

Project 

• Providing irrigation facilities and safe and affordable drinking water 

with required irrigation and social infrastructure. 

• Enhancing Environment and infrastructure development. 

• Development of Ecotourism. 

• Development of facilities to enhance the dairy farming 
 

 

 

15. Peripheral area of settlers in Pelawatta Sugar Plantation area 

 

Estimated Cost 143.5 Rs. Mn Benefited Districts Monaragala 

Funding 

Source 

GOSL & Lanka 

Sugar Company 

- Pelawatta 

Reservoir Capacity 

(MCM)/ Irrigable 

Land Area (ha) 

Mankada wewa - 80Ac.ft 

Thunmulla wewa - 250Ac.ft 

Meepale Wewa - 150 Ac.ft 

Wellassa wewa - 175 Ac.ft  

Project 

Duration 

2 years 

2021 - 2022 

Beneficiaries Lanka Sugar Company - 

Pelawatta 

Allocation 2021 58 Rs. Mn Allocation for 2022 75 Rs. Mn 

Cumulative 

Financial 

Progress 

32 Rs. Mn Overall Physical 

Progress (%) 

31 % 

Financial 

Progress 2021 

32 Rs. Mn 
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Work done in 

2021 
Mankada wewa 100%, Thunmulla 30%, Meepale wewa 30% 

Overall 

Benefits of the 

Project 

Increase the storage capacity of water within the pelwatta sugar plantation 

area and thereby increase of the harvest of sugarcane 

 

 

16. Dialog with Village Programme 

 

Projects 
TEC  

(Rs. Mn.) 

Project 

Duration 

Allocation 

2021 

Progress at 

2021.12.31 

Financial 

Progress 

(Rs. Mn.) 

Physical 

Progress 

Construction of Wattegedara 

Wewa and Himbiliyakada 

reservoir at Wilgamuwa 

Divisional Secretariat in Matale 

District 

7,155 2021 - 2025 200 159.20 1.75% 

Rehabilitation of canal systems 

in Padawiya and Wahalkada 

irrigation schemes at 

Kabithigollawa Divisional 

Secretariat in Anuradhapura 

District 

630 2021 - 2023 100 57 72% 

Construction of feeder canal 

from Minneriya Wewa to 

kirimatipitiya and Ramba wewa 

at Wedikachchiya, Polonnaruwa 

155 2021 – 2023 100 77.87 77% 

Construction of Galgekandiya 

Tank at Padiyatalawa Divisional 

Secretariat in Ampara District 

953.75 2021 - 2024 100 0.65 Construction 

of access 

roads 

5% 

Increase of bund and spill in 

Peramadu Tank in Trincomalee 

District 

118 2021 - 2023 100 19.53 68% 

Construction of Kumara – ela 

anicut in KumaraElla at Elahera 

Divisional Secretariat division, 

Polonnaruwa District 

23.05 2021 20 14.68 85% 

Construction of an anicut across 

Pan Oya (Trincomalee) 

60 2021.09.01-

2021.11.30 

60 18.92 45% 
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Irrigation Management Division (IMD) 
 

Established in 1984, Irrigation Management Division (IMD) implements Integrated 

Management of Agricultural Settlements (INMAS) Program along with Participatory Irrigation 

Management (PIM) approach in 54 Major Irrigation Areas (MIAs), each consisting of more 

than 400 ha command area under inter-provincial irrigation systems. The vision of this 

organization is to develop a self-reliant irrigated-farming community for self-management of 

the irrigation resources. It is expected to achieve a sustainable economic development of farm 

families through implementing the said approaches and enhancing productivity of unit of 

irrigation water by promoting participation and contribution of farmer organizations (FO), 

Government, Non-Government Organizations (NGOs) and Private Sector (PS). 

 

Primary responsibility of this Division is to enhance living conditions of farming community 

in major irrigation schemes through establishment and strengthening of farmer-based 

institutions with the objectives of improved management and productivity, improved operation 

and maintenance of irrigation sub-system, and facilitating and creating enabling environment 

for increased agricultural production and productivity. 

 

1. Vision 

“Prosperous Farming Community in Major Irrigation Schemes” 

 

2. Mission 

“Increase Agricultural Production and Productivity of unit of irrigated water through 

organized Farming Community and well-coordinated input & service providers” 

 

3. Objectives 

 

 Maximizing the economic benefits of a unit of irrigation water and a unit of land 

 Facilitate equitable distribution of irrigation water among farmers 

 Establishment, strengthening and maintaining the institutional structure required for 

the participation of farmers in the management of resources related to irrigation. 

 Background preparation and facilitation to maintain the optimal level of operation and 

maintenance of irrigation systems 

 Improving agricultural production and productivity through proper coordination 

between beneficiaries and government as well as private institutions 

 Creating optimistic attitudes through the development of knowledge and skills of the 

farming community 

 Strengthening Agricultural Support Services 

 Economic and social development of farming families 
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Progress  

 

Programmes implemented under Land and Land improvement  

 

 Requested Allocation  -  44.5 Rs. Mn 

 Received Allocation  - 23.7 Rs. Mn 

 Financial Progress  -     13.917 Rs. Mn 

 

Implemented Programmes 

 

- Strengthening & Empowering Farmer Organizations  

- Participatory Maintenance and Water Management Program  

- Increasing Agricultural Production and Productivity 

 

 

International Training Institute of Irrigation and Water 

Management Kothmale (KITI) 

 

International Training Institute of Irrigation and Water Management, Kothmale was  

established under the Ministry of Irrigation and Water Management  in the year 2012 and 

Diploma in Irrigation Technology Course (duration –Three years) is conducted for Engineering 

Assistants required for the Department  of Irrigation. 

 

In addition, local and international level residential training courses are also conducted in this 

institution. 

 

This institution which comes under the purview of the Ministry of Irrigation, has built a high 

reputation in the country by conducting full time and in-house training courses of NVQ level 

06 in accordance with regulations of the Tertiary and Vocational Education Commission. 

 

1. Vision 

 

To be in the front amongst the institutions providing water sector Education and skill 

development to national and international standards. 

 

2. Mission 

 

Support and facilitate knowledge enhancement and skills development of youth to become 

competent technologists in public and private sector 
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3. Main Functions 

 

i. Conducting Training courses in accordance with rules of the Tertiary and Vocational 

Education Commission. 

ii. Development and updating ISO 9001: 2008 Quality Management Systems annually. 

iii. Conducting various In-house Training Programmes to meet the current requirements of 

the country. 

iv. Improvement of Environmental Quality Management Systems as per ISO 14001: 2015 

during the ensuing two years. 

v. Conducting In-house Training Programmes to develop construction and engineering 

skills, every year. 

vi. Conducting national and international level workshops and conference in line with 

water resources management within next 03 years. 

vii. Collaboration with Public as well as the private sector to meet existing              

requirements. 

viii. Building up market and social discipline in trainees as appropriate. 

 

 

Progress of the Training Courses 

 

Year 2021 

Number of Programs held  - 35 

Number of trainees                        - 885   

 

Year 2022 

Number of programs scheduled to be held - 56 

Expected number of trainees   - 5,064 
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Engineering Council Sri Lanka (ECSL) 
 

Responsible for: 
 

(i) The maintenance of professional standards and conduct of engineering practitioners 

(ii) Registration of different categories of engineering practitioners 

(iii) Any other matters relevant to engineering practitioners to enhance the quality and 

standards 

 

 

Progress 
 

(i) Recruitment of the staff for ECSL office based on the cadre approved by Management 

Services Department. 

 

(ii) Registration of Engineering Practitioners for the year 2021 under following categories. 

 

 Chartered Engineers 

 Associate Engineers 

 Affiliate Engineers 

 Incorporated Engineers 

 Engineering Diplomates 

 

(iii) Formulating a process for registration of Engineering Technicians. 

 

(iv) Formulate the following rules as per the Act. 

 

 Process of registration of Engineering Practitioners including foreign engineers. 

 Code of Conduct for engineering practitioners. 

 

(v) Steps taken to gazette the rules. 2nd proof reading is being done. 

 

(vi) Commenced discussions with Public Services Commission and Management Services 

Department to revise public sector recruitment and promotion scheme to include the 

provisions of ECSL Act. 

 

Work to be done 
 

(i) Continue registration of engineering practitioners. 

(ii) Commence registration of Engineering Technicians 

(iii) Commence registration of foreign engineers. 

(iv) Formulate rules and regulations to cover other aspects. 

(v) Complete the revision of public sector recruitment and promotion scheme. 

(vi) Preparation of Roles, Responsibilities and Competencies of engineering practitioners.  
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Mahaweli Consultancy Bureau (MCB) 

 

The Mahaweli Consultancy Bureau which functions under the purview of the Ministry of Irrigation has 

23 years experience on projects of the government and private sector and MCB deals with feasibility 

studies, Comprehensive plans, evaluation of the environmental impact, socio economic surveys and 

Consultancy Contracts as well as mainly formulation of action plans for resettlements under the water 

Resource Management projects of Sri Lanka. 

 

In addition to Consultancy, MCB has carried out massive development projects under the Ministry of 

Irrigation, Sri Lanka Mahaweli Authority and Ministry of health. 

 

Consultancy Service 

 

Project progress 

Assessment of environmental impact for mawanella proposed Yatimahana 

Reservoir 

60% 

Assessment of environmental impact for Gin nilawala diversion Project 20% 

Social Impact Evaluation and Action plan of resettlement for mundeni river basin 

development project in the districts of Batticaloa and Ampara 

95% 

Social Economic survey and Action plan Resettlement for thalpitigala Reservoir 

project 

90% 

Assessment of environmentalimpact for lower Malwathu oya reservoir project 100% 

Assessment of environmentalimpact for Kivul Oya Reservoir Project 100% 

 

 

Projects of which Constructions are been Completed 

 

 Constructions of samurdhi bank Higurakgoda. 

 Constructions of Madirigiriya tank 

 

 

 



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                   

 

 

 

Priority Areas 

 

Promoting cultivation of paddy, grains, fruits, vegetables, 

freshwater fisheries and animal production in Mahaweli 

Agricultural Zones. 

 

Improving education, health, transport, trade and community 

infrastructure facilities in Mahaweli settlements.  

 

Expanding investments and utilizing lands to maximize the 

agricultural production in Mahaweli Zones. 

 

Mahaweli Authority of Sri Lanka 

State Ministry of Canals and Common 

Infrastructure Development in Settlements 

in Mahaweli Zones 
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Mahaweli Authority of Sri Lanka (MASL) 

 

1. Vision 

The best organization in Sri Lanka, in excellence use of land & water for the innovative 

Agriculture, renewable energy, conserving environment and raising the living standards of 

citizens 

 

2. Mission 

We strive to lead the use of land & water for the innovative Agriculture productivity based 

on the latest technology supplementing the generation of renewable energy, best 

environment and tourism for the enrichment of the Sri Lankan community and their living 

standards 

 

3. Objectives 

 

i. Generating income through integrated water and land development 

ii. To establish a sustainable agricultural system for food security and social prosperity 

iii. Sustainability of Entrepreneurship and Economic Development 

iv. Empowering the living standards of the community while ensuring health, education 

and economic conditions 

v. Conservation and Management of Mahaweli River Basin and allied basins 

 

4. Key Functions 

 

i. The main reservoir operational centre regulates the water levels of the reservoirs, 

distributes water, conducts flood control and river basin management, water quality 

monitoring and water resource management. 

ii. Meeting the needs of electricity, agriculture, industry, drinking and domestic water 

resources through enhancing surface water capacity. 

iii. Promotion of agro products needed for national food security. (Paddy, Other Crops, 

Vegetables, Fruits and Seasonal crops) 

iv. Strengthening the local economy through promotion of export oriented import 

substitution products. 

v. Promotion of fisheries and livestock products to promote the local economy (Fresh 

milk, eggs, Inland and ornamental fish) 

vi. Encouraging private investors to increase productivity of the land, to contribute to the 

production process and to generate revenue through land resource management. 

vii. Issue of land deeds to secure the Mahaweli settlers. 

viii. Conservation of Sustainable Environment by preserving the biodiversity of Mahaweli 

Development Area including Mahaweli River basin. 

ix. Development and improvement of physical and social infrastructure in Mahaweli 

Zones. 
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x. Maintenance and operation of upper catchment main reservoirs and downstream 

irrigation system. 

xi. Maintenance of main roads, rural access roads, regional road network. 

xii. Generating electricity from renewable energy sources and adding them to the national 

grid. 

xiii. Facilitation of local and foreign tourism industry (Circuit Bungalows, Hela Bojun Hala, 

Boat service, Water landing aircraft, Safari jeeps) 

xiv. Empowering farmer organizations, women groups in Mahaweli areas, train and employ 

the Mahaweli youth. 

xv. Uplifting the artistic and cultural talents of Mahaweli farmer children to the national 

level. 

 

Development Activities carried out under Mahaweli Authority of Sri Lanka 

No Activity 
Target 

(Mt/ Season) 

Progress 

(Mt) 
% 

1 Agriculture Production (2020/21 maha+2021 yala 3rd season) 

1.1 Seed – Mahaweli Farm    

 Seed Paddy 1,805 1,353 75% 

 OFC Seed 108 15.71 15% 

1.2 Seed – Mahaweli Farmers     

 Seed Paddy 6,503.7 6,972.7 107% 

 
OFC Seed (Chilli, Maize, Black Gram, 

Green Gram, Cowpea, Soya, Finger Millet) 
851.0 981.8 115% 

1.3 Crop Production Programme    

 Paddy 980,653 1,078,828 110% 

 OFC    

 Big Onion   31,640 18,880 60% 

 Soya  13,361.9 7,501 56% 

 Black Gram 3,276.3 3,221.4 98% 

 Cowpea 1,345.6 1,141.5 85% 

 Finger Millet  1,193.3 1,395.8 117% 

 Green Gram  8,804 7,535 86% 

 Maize  46,556 36,981 79% 

 Ground Nut  4,392 3,022 69% 

 Chilli  11,349 10,529 93% 

 Gingerly (sesame) 312 755 242% 

 Turmeric 876 1,478 169% 

 Ginger  1,100 1,466 133% 

1.4 Fruit Production    

 Banana 149,592 166,733.7 111% 

 Papaya  28,710.6 28,929.3 101% 

 Guava 9,967.8 10,155.5 102% 

 
Other fruits (Mango, Dragon Fruit, 

Pineapple, Passion, orange) 
11,598.9 13,141.3 113% 
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1.5 Vegetable 157,449.9 171,805.2 109% 

2 
Organic Zone development - Paddy 

(Mt.) 
9,275.0 9,740.0 105% 

2.1 
Organic Fertilizer Production program 

- (Mt.) 
244,300 153,240 63% 

3. Livestock    

 Inland Fishery (Mt) 11,000 12052.1 110% 

 Fresh Milk (Liter million) 40 42.02 105% 

 Egg (Mn) 60 62.35 104% 

 Ornament Fish (Couples Mn) 37 39.98 108% 

  Target (Annual) Progress % 

4 Land Development (Deed granting)    

 Deed granting program 100,000 35,000 35% 

  
Unit 

Target 

2021 

Progress 

 2021 

5 Business Development    

 Investment promotion Programme / Project 26 31 

 Tourism Promotion Program Project 9 5 

 Entrepreneurship Development 

Programs 

Programme 20 15 

 Distribution of goods and equipment 

for entrepreneurs 
Entrepreneurs 

200 383 

 Small and Medium Scale Loan Scheme 

(Mahaweli Saviya/ MoragahaKanda Athwela) 
Entrepreneurs 

115 63 

6 Environment Conservation    

 Production of compost by cleaning 

tanks rich in aquatic plants 
Ton 160 148.5 

 Promoting the Green Road concept Km  14 9 

 Plant Production (by Mahaweli 

Nurseries, School Children and 

Farmers) 

Plants 819,284 508,124 

 Planting in upper catchment areas and 

lower rivers 
Plants 431,450 385,720 

 Establishment of green gardens Garden 5 3 

 Environmental education and 

promotion 
Programme  80 71 

 Maintain of Electrical fence  Km Open 116 

 Production of tissue culture plants Plants 200,000 66,285 
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1. Mahaweli Consolidation Project 

 

Estimated Cost Rs. 4,910 Mn Benefiting Districts Polonnaruwa 

and Batticaloa 

Funding Source GOSL Reservoir Capacity/ 

Irrigable Land Area 
 

Project Duration 2007 January - 

2021 December 
Beneficiaries 20,000 families 

Allocation 2021 Rs. 217 Mn Allocation for 2022  

Cumulative Financial Rs. 4,749.55 Mn Overall Physical Progress 99.5% 

Financial progress 2021 Rs. 194 Mn 

Work done in 2021 1. Construction/ Rehabilitation of D Canal - 17.7km 

2. Construction/ Rehabilitation of field canal - 24.3km 

3. Renovation of 18 building - 16  

4. Maintained and rehabilitated 40km of roads – 36km 

5. Rehabilitation of 05 small tanks – 5 Tanks 
 

Overall benefits of the 

Project 

1. Constructed/ rehabilitated 459 km of distributary canals 

2. Improved drainage canal network (240 km) 

3. Constructed/ rehabilitated 1,138 km of field canals  

4. Renovated buildings 45 

5. Community participatory rehabilitation of field canals 17km 

6. Maintained and rehabilitated 80 km of roads 

7. Rehabilitated 20 small tanks 

8. Rehabilitated 74 main tanks 

9. Constructed 09 causeways 

10. Renovated 2 slow sand filters 

11. Constructed electric fence (15 km) 

12. Renovated water supply scheme 30 nos 

13. Constructed/ rehabilitated canal structures (5) 
 

 

 

2. Welioya Integrated Development Project 

 
Estimated Cost Rs. 3957.10 Mn Benefiting Districts Anuradhapura, 

Vavuniya, Mullative 

Funding Source GOSL Reservoir Capacity/ 

Irrigable Land Area 
 

Project Duration 2012 January – 

2023 December 

Beneficiaries 
 

Allocation 2021 Rs. 233 Mn Allocation for 2022  Rs. 100 Mn 

Cumulative Financial Rs. 2496.72 Mn Overall Physical 

Progress 

 86% 

Financial progress 2021 Rs. 207.97 Mn 
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Work done in 2021 1. Construction & rehabilitation of roads - 90 km of road 

completed. 

2. Construction & rehabilitation of structures - 13 structures 

completed 

3. Rehabilitation of canal network - 2.6 km completed 

4. Construction & rehabilitation of buildings - 9 building 

completed, Survey lots - 2,000 lots surveyed 

5. Deed granting - Issued 850 deeds 

6. Conduct Institutional Development   - 275 completed 
 

Overall benefits of the 

Project 

1. Improved market road (150km) and hamlet road (250km) 

network 

2. Rehabilitated 450 pipe culverts, structures and canal network 

3. Constructed/ rehabilitated buildings 

4. Constructed/ excavated 2,000 wells  

5. Resettle 6,788 farmer families within 11 villages with 

improved irrigated agriculture (6,258 hec.) 

6. Conducted institutional & community development 

programme 

7. Agriculture and livestock extension services for 6,000 farmers 

 

 

3. Rideemaliyadda Integrated Development Project 

 

Estimated Cost Rs. 1100 Mn Benefiting Districts Badulla  

(Rideemaliyadda) 

Funding Source GOSL Reservoir Capacity/ 

Irrigable Land Area 

 

Project Duration 2012 - 2022 Beneficiaries  

Allocation 2021 Rs. 165 Mn Allocation for 2022  Rs. 75 Mn 

Cumulative Financial Rs. 836.58 Mn Overall Physical 

Progress 

 92.5% 

Financial progress 2021 Rs. 137.45 Mn 

Work done in 2021 1. Rehabilitation of tanks - 11 tanks rehabilitated 

2. Rehabilitation of anicut - 1 anicut rehabilitated 

3. Rehabilitation of road - 50.4 km completed 

4. Construction & maintenance of common buildings - 12 

buildings completed 

5. 12 buildings completed - 1014 hec 

6. Homestead development - 240 gardens 

7. Farmers / officers training programmes - 28 prog 

8. Installation of Micro Water Supply Systems - 20 units 

9. Environmental education programmes - 4 program 

10. conducted and Tree planting programme - 4 programmes 

were conducted 
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Overall benefits of the 

Project 

1. Rehabilitation of tanks 14 

2. Rehabilitation of structures and Rehabilitation of canal.  

3. Rehabilitated of village roads, Constructed and maintained 

common buildings 

4. Agriculture and Livestock Development  

5. Improved sanitary facilities 2310 Toilets  

6. Conduct institutional and community development 

programmes 450 

7. Environmental conservation 
 

 

 

4. Rambaken Oya Integrated Development project 

 
Estimated Cost Rs. 1086 Mn Benefiting Districts Ampara  

(Mahaoya/ 

Padiyathalawa) 

Funding Source GOSL Reservoir Capacity/ 

Irrigable Land Area 

 

Project Duration 2012 - 2023 Beneficiaries  

Allocation 2021 Rs. 192 Mn Allocation for 2022 Rs. 100 Mn 

Cumulative Financial Rs. 660.01 Mn Overall Physical Progress 73% 

Financial progress 2021 Rs. 172.60 Mn 

Work done in 2021 1. Cultivation of imported restricted crops 986 hec. and 

Homestead development - 360 gardens 

2. Farmers/ officers training programmes - 38 prog. 

3. Livestock development - 12 programmes and 

Rehabilitation of roads - 95 km completed. 

4. Rehabilitation of tanks - 2 tanks completed 

5. Construction of common buildings - 6 building completed. 

6. Land surveys & blocking out – 1,455 lots completed. 

7. Pay compensation - Paid compensation for 73 lots. 

8. 50 Institutional & community development programmes 

completed, Facilitate the marketing of products in small 

groups of women - 11 beneficiaries 

9. Providing machinery under the 50% Contribution - 13 

beneficiaries received 

10. 43 wells constructed, Provide Sanitary facilities - 558 

improved, maintained of 10 km electric fence 

11. 5,000 plants were produced and 4 Tree planting 

programme conducted 
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Overall benefits of the 

Project 

1. Provide extension service for 3,550 farmers  

2. Rehabilitation of road 

3. Rehabilitated small and medium tanks and anicuts 

4. Constructed 76 common buildings in Mahaoya and 

Padiyathalawa blocks  

5. Land surveys & blocking out 6300 lots, Issue 6,400 

permits  

6. Institutional & community development programmes  

7. Business and Entrepreneurship Development Program 

8. Provide drinking water through construction of wells 

9. Improve Sanitary healthcare 

10. Environmental conservation 
 

 

 

5. Mahaweli Agriculture and Livestock Programme 

 

Estimated Cost 

Rs. 500 Mn 

Benefiting Districts Nuwara Eliya, 

Anuradhapura, 

Polonnaruwa 

Funding Source 
GOSL 

Reservoir Capacity/ 

Irrigable Land Area 
 

Project Duration 2021 - 2021 Beneficiaries  

Allocation 2021 Rs. 500 Mn Allocation for 2022  Rs. 293  Mn 

Cumulative Financial Rs. 418.95 Mn Overall Physical Progress  100% 

Financial progress 2021 Rs. 500 Mn 

Work done in 2021 1. Crop Cultivation Program, Seed Production Program,  

Homested Development, Organic Fertilizer Production 

Program - 153,240 Mt  
 

Overall benefits of the 

Project 

1. Contribution to the national paddy production & other field 

crops 

2. Promote livestock development 

 



 

 

  



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

            

 

 

 

Priority Areas 

 

Rehabilitating paddy lands in a fertile manner and 

reconstructing small tanks necessary to cultivate paddy though 

community - based projects. 

 

Rehabilitation and maintenance of rural and other tanks and 

reservoirs in conformity with scientific standards to increase 

the capacity of tanks and reservoirs to store rainwater.  

 

Initiating a program to conserve tank water by cleaning the 

river basins, river banks and tank bounds.  

 

 

 

  

State Ministry of Tanks, Reservoirs and 

Irrigation Development Related to Rural 

Paddy Fields 

Affiliated Institutions 

Department of Agrarian Services and 

Department of Irrigation 
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Accelerated Programme for Development of Rural Tanks/Anicuts 

under the Wari Saubhagya Programme 

 

In order to upgrade  the  agriculture economy of Sri Lanka, rehabilitation of rural tanks, anicuts 

and canals throughout the country has been prioritized in the policy of the Vistas of Prosperity 

and Splendor by His Excellency the President by renovating tanks, anicuts and irrigation 

systems related rural paddy fields and  targeting  to  accomplish  the water requirement of   

drinking, agriculture, tourism and other revenue generating process through proper 

management of  water  and retaining  rain water hugely. 
 

To achieve the above targets, “Wari Saubhagya” programme was initiated and under the said 

programme, rehabilitation activities of 5,000 rural tanks and anicuts, is carried out by State 

Ministry of Tanks, Reservoirs and Irrigation Development related to Rural Paddy Fields and 

State Ministry of Canal and Common Infrastructure Development in Settlements in Mahaweli 

Zones, under the direction of the Ministry of Irrigation. 
 

Under this project, activities related to small tanks in Mahaweli zones are accomplished by the 

Mahaweli Authority of Sri Lanka and rehabilitation activities of all other areas are implemented 

by Department of Irrigation, Department of Agrarian Development, and Provincial Irrigation 

Department with the participation of Joined Farmers organizations and public organizations,  

and  assistance of Engineering Regiment of Sri Lanka Army, Civil Security Force, Land 

Development Corporation of Sri Lanka, Department of Prison and other institutions is obtained 

for the construction work. 
 

Selection of the relevant irrigation systems and coordination with implementation institutions 

and residents of the respective area, is done at district level under the patronage of each District 

Secretary with participation of the all Divisional Secretaries.  
 

Tank/ Anicuts Selected for rehabilitation in District Level - (2021.12.31) 

District No of 

Projects 

planned 

No of 

Projects 

commenced 

 District No of 

Projects 

planned 

No of 

Projects 

commenced 

Colombo 27 25  Batticaloa 47 44 

Gampaha 38 37  Trincomalee 54 54 

Kalutara 47 43  Jaffna 56 41 

Galle 102 88  Mullativ 18 17 

Hambantota 63 63  Kilinochchi 14 12 

Matara 103 100  Wauniya 26 25 

Kegalle 11 11  Mannar 44 44 

Ratnapura 31 30  Anuradhapura 103 83 

Kandy 132 115  Polonnaruwa 36 36 

Matale 40 40  Badulla 80 70 

Nuwaraeliya 42 42  Monaragala 49 45 

Kurunegala 130 118  Ampara 68 66 

Puttlam 62 54  

No of Total Projects 1,423 1,303      
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Financial Progress for Wari Saubhagya Programme – Year 2021  

Institution 

Tanks/ Anicut/ 

Canals Selected 

for rehabilitation 

in 2021 

(2021.12.31) 

No of 

Projects 

commenced 

Allocation 

2021 

Expenditure 

as at 

2021.12.31          

(Rs. Mn.) 

ID 816 755 1,708.5 1,651.66 

DAD 302 284 750 501.54 

PID 144 143 261.72 
261.72 

Imprest 

SLLDC I 23 16 128.77 76.47  

SLLDC II beautification 12 12 - - 

DS – Kandy 73 56 73.95 39.04 

Survey work 209 209 Projects implemented 

without government 

expenditure 
CECB/SD & CC/NEMO 53 37 

Other   77.38 39.26 

Total 1,423 1,303 3,000 2,569.69 

Financial Progress of the State Ministry 2021.12.31 – 86% 

 

 

1.1.3. Challenges 
 

 Financial progress pertaining to the   capital and recurrent expenditure appears to have 

declined significantly in comparison to approved allocations since adequate imprest 

were not received in the year 2021   and consequently, it was not able to carry out the 

functions smoothly due to crisis in the cash flow. 

 

 The progress of development programmes could not be achieved as planned in the 

relevant year due to the impact of the Covid-19 epidemic on Sri Lanka. Progress in 

development could be accomplished amidst severe difficulties owing to the fact that 

prices of equipment, construction materials and spare parts escalated rapidly and the 

movement of people were restricted, due to the global epidemic.   

 

 Under this backdrop, the institutions, such as the Central Engineering Consultancy 

Bureau coming under the Ministry of Irrigation, did not receive a number of projects as 

expected due to the overall decline in the construction sector and it was a significant 

challenge confronted in the year 2021. 
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Future goals  

 

 
Programme / 

Project 

Allocation 

of 

provisions 

2022  

(Rs. Mn.) 

Overall 

progre

ss in 

2021 

Overall 

Physical 

Progress 

Expected in 

2022 

Targets for 2022  

01 Mahaweli Water 

Security Investment 

Program (MWSIP) 

20,000.00 29%  1. It has been planned to complete the following three construction 

packages and to assign the same to Department of Irrigation and 

Mahaweli Authority of Sri Lanka. 
 

- MLBCRP-ICB 1 - Lifting the Menipe anicut including water control 

and measurement facilities for the Left bank and Right bank canals. 

- ICB/2B - construction of 8.8 Km long tunnel connecting Kalu River 

and Moragahakanda (From 0+100 km to 08+830 km) 

- NWPCP-ICB-2 - construction of the main canal from 

Nebadagahawatta to Mahakithula access tunnel (From 5+250 km to 

22+300 km) 
 

2. Continuation of the non- construction environmental, communication 

and training activities of the program. 
 

3. Completion of activities related to resettlement and acquisition of land 

for all construction packages. 
 

i.  Minipe Left Bank 

Canal Rehabilitation 

Project 

369 87% 98% • Completing the construction work of the contract package for lifting the 

Menipe anicut by 3.5m including water control and measurement facilities 

for the Left bank and Right bank canals currently under construction, in   

the year 2022. 
 

• Awarding the contract and commencement of the construction work after 

completing the procurement process pertaining to the contract package 

(MLBCRP-NCB6) of upgrading the main structures of Minipe Right bank 

canal with automation. 
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Programme / 

Project 

Allocation 

of 

provisions 

2022  

(Rs. Mn.) 

Overall 

progre

ss in 

2021 

Overall 

Physical 

Progress 

Expected in 

2022 

Targets for 2022  

ii.  North Western 

Province Canal 

Project  

6,467 30% 40% • Achieving targeted financial and physical progress of the construction work 

for the year 2022, pertaining to the contract packages of NWPCP-ICB-2 and 

NWPCP-ICB-1 of which construction work is being carried out. 
 

• Awarding the 4 contract packages and commencement of the construction 

work after completing the procurement process pertaining to the contract 

package NWPCP-3, 4, 5 and 6 North Western Province Canal project. 
 

iii.  North Central 

Province Canal 

13,263 19% 44% • Achieving targeted financial and physical progress for the year 2022 of 

Construction work of URC-ICB-2A and UEC-ICB-2B Contract packages 

of which construction work is underway. 
 

• Awarding the 4 contract packages and commencement of the construction 

work after completing the procurement process pertaining to the contract 

package NWPCP-3, 4, 5 and 6 North Central Province Canal Project. 
 

02. 

 

 

 

Uma Oya 

Multipurpose 

Development 

Project 

750 + 
Additional 

4,350 

93.82% 

 

100% 

 

 

 

Head work 
 

Remaining Head work of the project is schedule to be completed and 

implemented in month of May 2022. Thereafter, Defect Notification period 

will be in effective. 
 

It is planned to carry out the following work related to Head work in the year 2022, 

• During the Defect Notification period if shortcomings were revealed, 

contractor should rectify the same 

• Payment of retained funds to the contractor after issuing the 

performance certificate  

• Other work related to completion of the project 



43 
 

 
Programme / 

Project 

Allocation 

of 

provisions 

2022  

(Rs. Mn.) 

Overall 

progre

ss in 

2021 

Overall 

Physical 

Progress 

Expected in 

2022 

Targets for 2022  

 

Downstream Development 

 

Project scope of the Down Stream Development activities have been 

changed as follows.  

 

1. Bottom outlet of Alikota Ara reservoir has been proposed. 

2. Construction of the road system associated with Hadapanagala tank, and 

Wildlife unit office is to be constructed. 

3. Construction of Additional D canal associated with Hadapanagala 

reservoir has been included due to identification of new irrigable lands. 

4. Additional canal length was included to Alikotaara – kuda Oya   divert 

canals, after receiving the clearance of Forest Conservation Department. 

5. Additional canal length was included to Kuda – Oya Singahalayagama 

divert canal, after receiving the clearance and approval of Forest and 

Wildlife Conservation Departments. 

6. 25 small tanks for rural tank development component have been newly added. 

 

Accordingly Downstream development activities are being implemented by 

the Department of Irrigation in the year 2022.  

03. Moragahakanda 

and Kalu Ganga 

Reservoir Project 
 

3,600.00 98.2% 100% • Completion of activities related to construction of buildings, roads, canals 

and acquisition of lands as well as resettlement. 
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Programme / 

Project 

Allocation 

of 

provisions 

2022  

(Rs. Mn.) 

Overall 

progre

ss in 

2021 

Overall 

Physical 

Progress 

Expected in 

2022 

Targets for 2022  

04. Productivity 

Enhancement and 

Irrigation System 

Efficiency 

Improvement 

Project (PEISEIP) 

150 + 

Additional 

300 

48% 100% 1. Irrigation Infrastructure Rehabilitation Component (IIRC)-84 

continuation sub-projects and 25 new sub projects 

2. On-Farm Development Component (OFDC)- 06 continuation sub-

projects and 50 new sub projects. 

3. Agriculture Productivity Improvement Component (APIC) 05 

continuation sub-projects and 50 new sub projects. 

4. Increasing Capacity for Irrigation management Component (ICIMC) - 

04 continuation sub-projects and 65 new sub projects. 

5. Preparation of GIS map and Data Collection including purchase of 

accessories and instruments required to provide the assistance of 

information technology. 

6. Installation of flow measurement network and formulation of time table 

for distribution of water. 

7. Construction of a Ware House 

8. Preparation of operational and management manuals. 
 

05. Pilot project to 

establish a 

groundwater 

monitoring network 

350 93.7% 100% 1. Construction and Completion of 25 monitoring wells. 

2. Installation of monitoring equipment to in 65 monitoring wells. 

3. Conducting 65 baseline water testing   

4. Completing Construction activities of the data centre building. 

5. Establishment of web portal  
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Programme / 

Project 

Allocation 

of 

provisions 

2022  

(Rs. Mn.) 

Overall 

progre

ss in 

2021 

Overall 

Physical 

Progress 

Expected in 

2022 

Targets for 2022  

06. Climate Resilient 

Integrated Water 

Management 

Project (Wew Gam 

Pubuduwa - 

CRIWMP) 
 

2,050.00 49% 65% Rehabilitation of 76 Village Irrigation Systems. (Minor tanks/Anicuts) 

07. Thalpitigala 

Reservoir Project 

800 + 

Additional 

1,000 

3.6% 5% Commencement of major work and Construction of tunnel. 

08. Lower Malwathu 

Oya Multipurpose 

Reservoir Project 

2,000 + 

Additional 

1,700 

2.3% 3% • Construction work of the dam of the reservoir. 

• Completing Construction work of official quartets. 

• Preparation of engineering design, activities and plans. 

• Providing facilities required for the worksite.  

• Construction of temporary roads, permanent and temporary workshop 

required for the worksite. 

• Construction of sluice, left bank and Right bank major canal, water 

distribution canal, spill gates, spill way, Abutments and outer spill gate. 

• Construction of Field canals and preparation of the land to which water is 

provided when and   where necessary. 

• Development of physical resources in the resettlement areas. 
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Programme / 

Project 

Allocation 

of 

provisions 

2022  

(Rs. Mn.) 

Overall 

progre

ss in 

2021 

Overall 

Physical 

Progress 

Expected in 

2022 

Targets for 2022  

• Construction of elephant fence around the resettlement areas and new 

cultivated lands. 

• Reforestation  

• Conservation of archaeologically important places. 

• Agrarian services and institutional development. 

• Acquisition of lands  

• Compensation to the affected families. 

• Completing block out of lands provided for resettlement and cultivation  

• Completing Designing and planning activities required for the 

development of Thanthirimale town and development of physical 

resources accordingly. 

09. Gin - Nilwala 

diversion project – 

Stage 1 (Full 

feasibility study 

and environmental 

impact assessment) 

250.00 65% 100% • Completion   of environmental impact evaluation study. 

• Completion   of Social   impact evaluation study and resettlement action   

plan. 

• Initiation of activities related to Acquisition of   lands. 

• Mobilization of Construction Activities. 

 

10. Maduru Oya Right 

Bank Development 

1,000 + 

Additional 

200 

1.4% 3% • Construction from 6+500km to 18+450km of the main canal  

• Construction of water inlet and outlet structures and outer spill of 

kinani, Miminnagolla and Arangoda tanks. 

• Developments of the infrastructure facilities related to unit 01. 
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Programme / 

Project 

Allocation 

of 

provisions 

2022  

(Rs. Mn.) 

Overall 

progre

ss in 

2021 

Overall 

Physical 

Progress 

Expected in 

2022 

Targets for 2022  

11. Kivul Oya 

Reservoir Project 

 

500 + 

Additional 

475 

2.7% 7% Construction of roads – 4km, Construction of dam (25%) ,  outer spill (10%), sluice 

(10%), buildings – 2, Construction of main canal of Downstream - 6km, 

Construction of division canal – 10km, Construction of field canal -30km, 

Livestock developments programmes – 5, Reforestation – 10 hectares, 

Construction of elephant fence – 10km and resettlement – 10 families. 

12. 

Integrated 

Watershed and 

Water Resources 

Management Project 

(IWWRMP) 

3,000.00 

0.5% 26.15% 

1. Awarding the Consultancy service contract to prepare plan for 

management of catchment areas and launching prioritised programmes of 

the catchment area management. 

2. Establishment of HMIS centre and empowerment of water resources board. 

3. Implementation of reconstruction programmes of 27 dams and 10 canals. 

13. 

Barack plain Lake 

Development 

Project  

100 26% 100% 1. Introduction of methods for soil conservation around the tank. 

2. Introduction of Silt trap to prevent flow of silt to the tank. 

3. Construction of Drainage inlet. 

4. Prevention of producing waste water to the tank by construction of Ring 

bund and make minor repairs of the dam. 

5. Landscaping to minimize soil erosion around the tank  

6. Demarcation of the boundaries by laying down land marks. 

14. 

Irrigation 

Development Plan in 

settlement area of  

Pelawatta Ceylon 

Sugar Company 

Terminal 

50 + 

Additional 

25 

42% 50% Completion of remaining work to be done in the year 2021 and Construction 

of wellassa tank. 
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• Completing the construction work of the Uma Oya Multi- Purpose Development 

project by the month of April 2022 and to grant its benefits to the nation through the 

fields of agriculture, electricity and drinking water supply, is a main target of the 

Ministry of Irrigation. 

 

• It is expected to complete the construction work of Moragahakanda - Kalu Ganga 

project, and to provide benefits of a number of operational projects such as Yan Oya 

Reservoir Project under the Department of Irrigation during the year 2022. 

 

• It is anticipated to provide the people in the dry zone with the water they require for 

drinking and agriculture, in order to improve their living standards and thereby 

contribute to the national economy. The Ministry of Irrigation also aims to implement 

the second phase of the project to increase the storage capacity and address the impact 

of climate change through related diversions of water. 

 

• The project of rehabilitating 5,000 rural tanks and anicuts under national programme of 

“Wari Saubhagya” to uplift the living standards of the people living in the agricultural 

areas of the country is to be implemented with assistance of several institutions. 

 

• It is expected to commence the Thalpitigala Reservoir Project with the objective of 

supplying required water to 5,810 hectares of existing cultivated lands and 400 hectares 

of new cultivated lands while generating 15 MW of electricity. 

 

• It has been planned to initiate the Climate Resilience Multi-Phase Programmatic 

Approach (CResMPA) designed to benefit 11.2 million people, in the year 2022. 

 

• Projects identified under the "Dialogue with the Village" programme arranged as per 

the “Vistas of Prosperity” Policy document are scheduled to be carried out in the year 

2022 as well. 

 

• It is expected to meet the drinking water requirements by way of developing and 

constructing ponds as a solution to the water issue in the area of Jaffna. 

 

• The Ministry also aims to implement flood control projects in the districts of Gampaha, 

Puttalam, Galle, Matara, Batticaloa and Ampara which are prone to flooding. 

 

 

 

……………………………              ………………….. 

Additional Secretary (Irrigation and Water Resources Management)       Secretary 

Water Resources Planning and Development Unit           Ministry of Irrigation  
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Chapter 03 – Overall Financial Performance for the Year ended 31st 

December 2021 
 

3.1. Statement of Financial Performance 
ACA - F  

Statement of Financial Performance for the period ended 31.12.2021 

 Rs.   

Budget 
(2021) 

  

N
o

te
   Actual  

(2021)  2020 
        

-    Revenue Receipts  -  -  
- Income Tax 1 -  -  

-    

Taxes on Domestic Goods & 

Services 2 -  - 

     ACA-1 

           -    Taxes on International Trade 3 -  - 

               -    Non Tax Revenue & Others 4 -  -  
-    Total Revenue Receipts (A)  -  -  

 -    Non-Revenue Receipts      
       -    Treasury Imprests  12,257,331,000   6,383,928,021 ACA-3 

   -    Deposits  34,385,133   1,405,847  ACA-4 

    -    Advance Accounts  15,535,771   10,938,794  ACA-5/5(a) 

       -    Other Receipts  -  11,913,756   

    -    Total Non-Revenue Receipts (B)  12,307,251,904  6,408,186,418  

      -    
Total Revenue Receipts & Non-

Revenue Receipts C=(A)+(B)  12,307,251,904  6,408,186,418  

 Remittance to the Treasury (D)  276,616,354     

 
Net Revenue Receipts & Non-

Revenue Receipts E = (C)-(D)  12,030,635,549  6,408,186,418  

 Less : Expenditure      
   -    Recurrent Expenditure      

-    

Wages, Salaries & Other 

Employment Benefits 5 

          
243,448,427   

               
217,828,321  

 

-    Other Goods & Services 6 79,624,757   56,783,897  ACA-2(ii) 

-    Subsidies, Grants and Transfers 7 33,909,228   30,646,548   
   -    Interest Payments 8     

-    Other Recurrent Expenditure 9 253,267  209,768  

-    Total Recurrent Expenditure (F)  357,235,679  305,468,534  

 Capital Expenditure      

-    

Rehabilitation & Improvement 

of Capital Assets 10 

            
16,958,410   

           
6,962,659  

- Acquisition of Capital Assets 11 22,912,888   45,663,276   
-    Capital Transfers 12 1,242,090,000   293,000,000  ACA-2(ii) 

          -    Acquisition of Financial Assets 13    
 

-    Capacity Building 14 6,504,544   3,250,183   
-    Other Capital Expenditure 15 29,792,674,096   28,800,060,787   

-    Total Capital Expenditure (G)  31,081,139,938  29,148,936,905  

 Deposit Payments  20,584,268   7,126,877   

 Advance Payments    13,803,302   12,130,935  ACA-4 

 Main Ledger Expenditure (H)  34,387,570  19,257,812 ACA-5 

 Total Expenditure I=(F+G+H)  31,472,763,187  29,473,663,251  

                          - 

Balance as at 31st December 

J = (E-I)  (19,442,127,637)  (23,065,476,833)  

 

Balance as per the Imprest 

Reconciliation Statement  (19,442,127,637)  (23,065,476,833)  

 

Imprest Balance as at 31st 

December      
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3.2. Statement of Financial Position 

 

Statement of Financial Position as at 31st December 2021    ACA - P  
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3.3. Statement of Cash Flows 
ACA-C  

Statement of Cash Flows – for the Period ended 31st December 2020 

             Actual 

  2021 (Rs.) 2020 (Rs.) 
Cash Flows from Operating Activities     
Total Tax Receipts   
Fees, Fines, Penalties and Licenses   
Profit   
Non-Revenue Receipts   

Revenue Collected from the Other Heads 53,189,037 11,913,756  

Imprest Received 12,257,331,000  6,383,928,021  

Recoveries from Advance 12,378,464  2,870,037  
Deposit Received 34,385,133  7,126,877  

Total Cash generated from Operations (a) 12,357,283,633  6,405,838,691 
   

Less -  Cash disbursed for:   

Personal Emoluments & Operating Payments 319,548,812 111,478,208  

Subsidies & Transfer Payments        30,414,228 10,423,489  

Expenditure on Other Heads          5,889,786  21,063,619  
Imprest Settlement to Treasury 276,616,354  387,000  
Advance Payments 13,803,302  4,062,178  

Deposit Payments 20,584,268  1,405,847  

Total Cash disbursed for Operations (b) 666,856,750  148,820,341 
   

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (C) = (a) - (b) 11,690,426,884 6,257,018,350 
   

Cash Flows from Investing Activities   

Interest   
Dividends   

Divestiture Proceeds & Sale of Physical Assets   
Recoveries from On Lending   

Recoveries from Advance   

Total Cash generated from Investing Activities (d)   
   

Less - Cash disbursed for:   

Purchase or Construction of Physical Assets & Acquisition of Other 

Investment 11,690,426,884  6,257,018,350  

Total Cash disbursed for Investing Activities (e) 11,690,426,884  6,257,018,350  
   

NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (F) = (d) - (e) (11,690,426,884) (6,257,018,350) 

   

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING & INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES (g) = (c) + (f)   

Cash Flows from Financing Activities   

Local Borrowings   

Foreign Borrowings   

Grants Received   

Total Cash generated from Financing Activities (h)   
   

Less - Cash disbursed for:   

Repayment of Local Borrowings   

Repayment of Foreign Borrowings   

Total Cash disbursed for Financing Activities (i)   
   

NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (J) = (h) - (i)   
   

Net Movement in Cash (k) = (g) - (j)   

Opening Cash Balance as at 01st January   

Closing Cash Balance as at 31st December   
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3.4. Notes to the Financial Statements 

 

 

Basis of Reporting 

 

 

1. Reporting Period 

 

The reporting period for these Financial Statements is from 01st January to 31St December 

2021. 

 

2. Basis of Measurement  

 

The Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost modified by the revaluation 

of certain assets and accounted on a modified cash basis, unless otherwise specified. 

 

The figures of the Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan rupees rounded to the 

nearest rupee. 

 

3. Recognition of Revenue 

 

Exchange and non-exchange revenues are recognised on the cash receipts during the 

accounting period irrespective of relevant revenue period. 

 

4. Recognition and Measurement of Property, Plant and Equipment (PP&E) 

 

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is recognized when it is probable that future 

economic benefit associated with the assets will flow to the entity and the cost of the assets 

can be reliably measured. 

 

PP&E are measured at a cost and revaluation model is applied when cost model is not 

applicable. 

 

5. Property, Plant and Equipment Reserve 

 

This revaluation reserve account is the corresponding account of PP&E. 

 

6. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 

Cash & cash equivalents include local currency notes and coins on hand as at 31st December 

2021. 
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3.5. Performance of the Revenue Collection 

  Rs. ,000 

Revenue 

Code 

Description of 

the Revenue 

Code 

Revenue Estimate Collected Revenue 

Original Final Amount 

(Rs) 

as a % of Final 

Revenue 

Estimate 

      

 

 

3.6. Performance of the Utilization of Allocation                                   

  Rs. ,000 

Type of 

Allocation 

Revenue Estimate Amount (Rs.) Allocation Utilization               

as a % of Final 

Revenue Estimate Original Final 

     
Recurrent  

 

381,000 381,100 

 

357,235.68 

 

93.76% 

Capital  31,328,100 36,239,980 31,081,139.94 85.76% 

 

 

3.7. In terms of F.R. 208 grant allocations for expenditure to this Department/ District 

Secretariat /Provincial Council as an agent of the other Ministries / Departments  

             Rs. ,000 

Serial 

No 

Allocation Received 

from Which 

Ministry 

Department 

Purpose of the 

Allocation 

Allocation Actual 

Expenditure 
Allocation 

Utilization as 

a % of Final 

Allocation 

Original Final 

130 Ministry of 

Public Services, 

Provincial 

Councils and 

Local 

Government 

Salary of Graduate 

Trainees 

1,257.33 1,257.33 1,257.33 100% 

253 Department of 

Pension  

Settlement of Debt 

Balance of 

Retiring Officers 

768.10 768.10 768.10 100% 

282 Irrigation 

Department 

For expenses of 

Kotmale Training 

Institute 

 

1,024.07 1,024.07 650.24 63.49% 
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428 State Ministry of 

Canals and 

common 

Infrastructure 

Development in 

Settlements in 

Mahaweli Zones  

Arrears Provisions 

required for 

payment of 

salaries 

 

3,052.08 3,052.08 3,052.08 100% 

429 State Ministry of 

Tanks, 

Reservoirs and 

Irrigation 

Development 

Related to Rural 

Paddy Fields 

To pay the 

assessment fee 

 

162.02 162.02 162.02 100% 

 

3.8. Performance of the Reporting of Non - Financial Assets 

  Rs. ,000 

Assets 

Code 

Code Description Balance as per 

Board of Survey 

Report as at 

31.12.2020 

Balance as per 

financial 

position Report 

as at 31.12.2020 

yet to be 

Accounted 

Reporting 

Progress as 

a % 

 
9151 

 
 

9152 
 
 

9153 
 

9154 
 

9155 
 

9160 
 

9180 
 

 

Building and Structures 
 

Machinery and 

Equipment  
 

Land  
 

Intangible Assets  
 

Biological Assets  
 

Work in Progress  
 

Lease Assets 

 
57,751,290.80 

 
319,109,842.84 

 
93,624,850.20 

 
57,751,290.80 
 
319,109,842.84 

 
93,624,850.20 

  

 

 

3.9. Auditor General's Report 

Auditor General's Report is attached as Annexure III. 
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Chapter 04 - Performance indicators 
 

4.1. Performance indicators of the Institute (Based on the Action plan) 

 

Specific Indicators Actual output as a Percentage 

(%) of the expected output 

90% - 

100%  

75% - 

89% 

50% - 

74% 

05% - 

49% 

Completion of (Upper Elahera Ela) North Central Province 

Canal from Moragahakanda to Huruluwewa, Mannakkattiya, 

Eruwewa and Mahakanadarawa 

     

Completion of North Western Province Canal Project 
     

Completion of Rehabilitation of Minipe Left Bank Canal 

Project 

     

Completion of Uma Oya Multipurpose Development Project      

Completion of Moragahakanda Kaluganga Reservoir Project      

Completion of Climate Resilience Improvement Project      

Completion of Establishment of Ground Water Monitoring 

Network Pilot Project 

     

Completion of Climate Resistance Intergrated Water 

Management Project 

     

Completion of Thalpitigala Reservoir Project 
     

Completion of Lower Malwathu Oya Reservoir Project 
     

Completion of Gin Nilwala Diversion Project 
     
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Chapter 05 - Performance in Achievement of Sustainable Development 

Goals (SDG) 
 

5.1. Indicate the identified respective Sustainable Development Goals 

 

Goal/ 

Objective 

Targets Indicators of the 

Achievement 

Achievement progress 

so far (%) 
0 - 49 50 - 74 75 - 100 

Objectives:  

Development, 

conservation 

and 

management 

of surface 

water and 

groundwater 

Goal 01:  

Increase water use 

efficiency for 

agricultural lands from 

47% to 52% by 2030. 

Indicator 01: 

Improving the efficiency 

of irrigation systems, 

minimizing water used 

for agriculture by the use 

of new technology. 

    

Goal 02:  

Increase the capacity 

of major and medium 

scale reservoirs from 

6,645 MCM to 7,245 

MCM by 2030. 

Indicator 02: 

Reducing the amount of 

water flowing into the 

sea without being used 

effectively. 

 
  

 

Goal 03:  

Increasing the 

cropping intensity of 

lands cultivated under 

major and medium 

reservoirs from the 

existing level of 1.6 up 

to 1.65 by 2030. 

Indicator 03: 

Empowering the farming 

community through 

integrated water 

management approach 

towards development and 

conservation of water 

resources and cultivation 

control. 

 
  

 

Goal 04:  

Reduce crop damage 

caused by floods from 

50% by 2030. 

Indicator 04: 

Establishment of 

institutional structures for 

watershed management 

and improvement of 

water quality. 

    

Goal 05:  

Ensuring quantitative 

and qualitative 

availability of 

groundwater as an 

exception for drinking, 

agricultural, industrial 

and other purposes in 

Sri Lanka. 

Indicator 05: 

Provision of an exception 

to the demand for 

irrigation, drinking and 

domestic water through 

better management of 

water resources. 

    
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Goal 06:  
Preparation of a 

groundwater 

management 

mechanism for pre -

water management. 

Indicator 06: 

Improvement, 

calculation, conservation 

and development of 

ground water reserves in 

Sri Lanka. 

    

Goal 07:  
Improving the 

productivity of 

agricultural products 

done by a unit volume 

of water, through the 

organization and 

coordination of the 

farming community. 

Indicator 07: 

Reduction up to 4.4 acre 

feet per acre for Yala 

season and 3.9 acre feet 

per acre for Maha season 

By the use of rain water 

for land preparations and 

reducing the use of 

irrigation water. 

    

  

 

5.2. Achievements and Challenges in fulfilling the Sustainable Development Goals:  

 

 Primary construction work of Lower Malwathu Oya Reservoir, Thalpitigala Reservoir 

and Kumbukkan Oya Reservoir has already been initiated and the aim of the Ministry 

of Irrigation is to complete the said construction within the ensuing five (05) years. 

 

 It has been planned to implement the Integrated Water Productivity Improvement 

Project under the Ministry in the future to enhance the   effectiveness of the irrigation 

system. 

 

 The Ministry of Irrigation has initiated a program to determine reservation of irrigation 

systems and the rivers properly and gazette the same. 

 

 Even though the Department of Irrigation, the Mahaweli Authority of Sri Lanka, the 

Irrigation Management Division and the Agrarian Development Department implement 

public awareness programs constantly, it has been difficult to maintain a proper water 

management system due to unawareness of the public and negative attitudes towards 

the value of water. 
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Chapter 06 - Human Resource Profile 

 

6.1. Cadre Management 

 

 Approved Cadre Existing Cadre Vacancies/ Excess ** 

Senior 41 21 20 

Territory 03 02 01 

Secondary 86 64 22 

Primary 49 38 11 

 

6.2. ** Briefly state how the shortage or excess in human resources has been affected to the 

performance of the institute 

 

 The dearth of the human resource largely affects the performance of the institution and it 

has been an issue to carry out the functions of the institution properly and effectively. 

 

 

6.3. Human Resource Development 

 

Name of the Program No of staff 

trained 

Duration of 

the Program 
Total Investment  

(Rs. ,000) 

Nature of the 

Program (Local/ 

Foreign) 

Output/ 

Knowle

dge 

Gaines 

* 

Local Foreign 

Professional 

development of the 

Development 

Assistant and 

Management 

Assistant Officers. 

02 07 hrs 14,000.00 

 

Local 

 

good 

 

 

* Briefly state how the training program contributed to the performance of the institution 

 

Thereby, effectiveness of institution can be enhance 
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Chapter 07 - Compliance Report 

 

No Applicable Requirement Compliance 

Status 

(Complied/ 

Not 

Complied) 

Brief explanation 

for Non-

Compliance 

Corrective Actions 

proposed to avoid 

non- compliance in 

future 

01 The following Financial 

statements/ accounts have 

been submitted on due date 

   

1.1 Annual Financial statements Complied   

1.2 Advance to public officers 

account 

Complied   

1.3 Trading and Manufacturing 

Advance Accounts (Commercial 

Advance Accounts) 

Complied   

1.4  Stores Advance Accounts Complied   

1.5 Special Advance Accounts Complied   

1.6 Others    

02 Maintenance of book and 

registers (FR 445) 

   

2.1 Fixed assets register has been 

maintained and update in terms 

of public Administration 

Circular 267/2018 

Complied   

2.2 Personal emoluments register/ 

personal emoluments cards has 

been maintained and update 

Complied   

2.3 Register of Audit queries has 

been maintained and update 

Complied   

2.4 Register of Internal Audit 

report has been maintained and 

update 

Complied   

2.5 All the monthly account 

summaries (CIGAS)are 

prepared and submitted to the 

Treasury on due date 

Complied   

2.6 Register for cheques and 

money orders   has been 

maintained and update 

Complied   

2.7 Inventory register has been 

maintained and update 

Complied   

2.8 Stocks Register has been 

maintained and update 

Complied   



60 
 

2.9 Register or Losses has been 

maintained and update 

Complied   

2.10 Commitment Register has been 

maintained and update 

Complied   

2.11 Register of Counterfoil Books 

(GA-N20) has been maintained 

and update 

Complied   

03 Delegation of Functions for 

Financial Control (FR 135) 

   

3.1 The Financial Authority has 

been delegated within the 

institute 

Complied   

3.2 The delegation of Financial 

authority has been 

communicated within the 

institute 

Complied   

3.3 The authority has been delegated 

in such manner so as to pass 

cash transaction though two or 

more officers 

Complied   

3.4 The controls has been adhered to 

by the Accountants in terms of 

state Account Circular 171/2004 

dated 11.05.2014 in using the 

Government payroll Software 

package 

Not 

Complied 

 

 measures are being 

taken to implement in 

future 

04 Preparation of Annual plans    

4.1 The annual action plan has 

been prepared 

Complied   

4.2 The annual procurement plan 

has been prepared 

Complied   

4.3 The annual Internal Audit plan 

has been prepared 

Complied   

4.4 The Annual estimate has been 

prepared and submitted to the 

NBD on due date 

Complied 

 

  

4.5 Preparation of Annual plans Complied   

05 Audi queries    

5.1 All the audit queries has been 

replied within the specified 

time by the Auditor General 

Internal Audit 

Not 

Complied 

 There are audit 

queries received at 

the end of December 

2021. Answers are 

being prepared. 
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06 Internal Audit    

6.1 The internal audit plan has been 

prepared at the beginning of the 

year after consulting the Auditor 

General in terms of Financial 

Regulation 134(2) DMA/1-2019 

Complied   

6.2 All the internal audit report has 

been replied within one month 

Not 

Complied 

Taking a period of 

more than one 

month to give 

answers to the 

Internal Audit 

Reports. 

- Sending reminders 

- Taking it in to 

account at Audit and 

Management 

Committee meetings. 

 

6.3 Copies of all the internal audit 

reports has been Submitted to the 

Management Audit Department in 

terms of sub – section 40(4) of the 

National Audit Act. No 19 of 

2018   

Complied   

6.4 All the copies of internal audit 

reports has been submitted to 

the Auditor General in terms of 

Financial Regulation 134(3) 

Complied   

07 Audit and Management 

Committee 
   

7.1 Minimum 04 meeting of the 

Audit and Management 

Committee has been held 

during the year as per the DMA 

Circular 1-2019 

Not 

Complied 

03 Audit and 

Management 

Committee 

meetings were held 

during the year due 

to Covid 19 

situation 

Included to the annual 

audit plan to conduct 

04 Audit and 

Management 

Committee meetings 

for the year    2022. 

08 Asset Management    

8.1 The information about purchases 

of assets and disposals was 

submitted to the Comptroller 

General’s Office in terms of 

paragraph 07 of the Asset 

Management Circular No 01/2017 

Complied   

8.2 A suitable liaison officer was 

appointed to coordinate the 

implementation of the provisions 

of the circular and the details of 

the nominated officer was sent to 

the Comptroller General’s office 

in terms of paragraph 13 of the 

aforesaid circular 

Complied   
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8.3 The boards of survey was 

conducted and the relevant reports 

submitted to the Auditor General 

on due date in terms of public 

Finance Circular No 05/2016 

Complied   

8.4 The excess and deficits that were 

disclosed the through board of 

survey and other relating 

recommendation actions were 

carried out during the period 

specified in the circular 

Complied   

8.5 The disposal of condemn 

articles had been carried out in 

terms of FR 772 

Complied   

09 Vehicle Management    

9.1 The daily running charts and 

monthly summaries of pool 

vehicles had been prepared and 

submitted to the Auditor General 

on due date 

Complied   

9.2 The condemned vehicles had 

been disposed of within a 

period of less than 6 months 

after condemning 

Complied   

9.3 The vehicle logbooks had been 

maintained and updated. 

Complied   

9.4 The action has been taken in 

terms of F.R 103, 104, 109 and 

110, with regard to every 

vehicle accident 

Complied   

9.5 The fuel consumption of 

vehicles has been re-tested in 

terms of the provisions of 

paragraph 3.1 of the public 

Administration Circular No 

30/2016 of 29.12.2016 

Not 

Complied 

Due to Covid – 

19 pandemic 

(lack of officers 

at office) 

Fuel consumption 

will be re-tested 

after a full service of 

vehicles 

9.6 The absolute ownership of leased 

vehicle log books has been 

transferred after the lease term    

Complied   

10 Management of Bank 

Accounts 

   

10.1 The bank reconciliation 

statements had been prepared 

got certified and made ready for 

audit by the due date. 

Complied   
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10.2 The dormant accounts that had 

existed in the year under review 

or since previous years settled 

Complied   

10.3 The action had been taken in 

terms of financial Regulations 

regarding balance that had been 

disclosed through bank 

reconciliation statements and 

for which adjustments had to be 

made and had those balance 

been settled within one month 

Complied   

11 Utilization of Provisions    

11.1 The provisions allocated had 

been spent without exceeding 

the limit 

Complied   

11.2 The liabilities not exceeding 

the provisions that remained at 

the end of the year as per the 

FR 94 (1) 

Not 

Complied 

Made payments of 

Liabilities which 

had not been 

settled during the 

previous year. 

Taking actions to 

utilize liabilities 

without exceeding 

limits of the provisions 

in future. 

12 Advances to public Officers 

Account 

   

12.1 The limits had been complied 

with 

Complied   

12.2 A time analysis had been 

carried out on the loans in 

arrears 

Complied   

12.3 The loan balances in arrears for 

over one year had been settled. 

Complied   

13 General Deposit Account    

13.1 The action had been taken as 

per F.R 571 in relation to 

disposal of lapsed deposits. 

Not 

Complied 

 Taking action to settle 

the lapsed deposit 

during this year. 

13.2 The control register for general 

deposits had been updated and 

maintained. 

Complied 

 

  

14 Imprest Account    

14.1 The balance in the cash book at 

the end of the year under 

review remitted to TOD 

Complied 

 

  

14.2 The ad- hoc sub imp rests had 

not been issued exceeding the 

limit approved as per F.R.371 

settled within one month from 

the completion of the task. 

Complied   
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14.3 The ad-hoc sub Imprest had not 

been issued exceeding the limit 

approved as per F.R 371 

Complied   

14.4 The balance of the Imprest 

account had been reconcile with 

the treasury books monthly 

Complied   

15 Revenue Account    

15.1 The refunds from the revenue 

had been made in terms of the 

regulations 

Complied   

15.2 The revenue collection had 

been directly credited to the 

revenue account without 

credited to the deposit account 

Complied   

15.3 Returns if revenue forward to 

the Auditor General in terms of 

FR176 

Complied   

16 Human Resource 

Management 

   

16.1 The staff had been paid within 

the approved cadre. 

Complied   

16.2 All members of the staff have 

been issued duty list writing 

Complied   

16.3 All reports have been submitted 

to MSD in terms of their 

circular no 04/2017 dated 

20.09.2017 

Complied   

17 Provision of information to 

the public 

   

17.1 An information officer has been 

appointed and a proper register 

of information is maintained and 

updated in terms of Right to 

Information Act and Regulation 

Complied   

17.2 Information about the 

institution to the public have 

been provided by website or 

alternative measures and has it 

been facilitated to appreciate 

/allegation to public against the 

public authority by this website 

or alternative measures 

Complied   

17.3 Bi – Annual and Annual reports 

have been submitted as per 

section 08 and of  the RTI Act 

Complied   
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18 Implementing citizens 

charter 
   

 18.1 A citizens charter / Citizens 

client’s charter has been 

formulated and implemented by 

the Institution in terms of the 

circular number 05/2008and 

05/2018(1) of Ministry of public 

Administration and Management 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Not 

Complied 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Initiatives are being taken to draft the 

charter. 18.2 A methodology has been devised 

by the Institution in order to 

monitor and assess the 

formulation and the 

implementation of Citizens 

Charter Citizens client’s charter as 

per paragraph 2.3 of the circular 

19 Preparation of the Human 

Resource Plan 
   

19.1 A human resource plan has been 

prepared in terms of the format 

in Annexure 02 of public 

Administration Circular No 

02/2018 dated 24.01.2018 

Not 

Complied 
  

 

 

 

 

 

Initiatives are being 

taken in that regards. 

 

 

 

 

 

Initiatives are being 

taken in that regards. 

 

19.2 A minimum training opportunity 

of not less than 12 hours per 

year for each member of the 

staff has been ensured in the 

aforesaid Human Resource plan 

Not 

Complied 
 

19.3 Annual performance agreements 

have been signed for the entire 

staff based on the format in 

Annexure 01 of the aforesaid 

Circular 

Not 

Complied 
 

19.4 A senior officer was appointed 

and assigned the responsibility 

of preparing the human resource 

development plan organizing 

capacity building programs and 

conducting skill development 

programs as per paragraph No 

6.5 of the aforesaid Circular 

Not 

Complied 
 

20 Responses Audit paras    

20.1 The shortcomings pointed out in 

the audit paragraphs issued by the 

Auditor General for the previous 

years have been rectified 

Complied   

 



 
 

 
 

 

 

 

Head - 282 

Irrigation Department 
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Chapter 01 - Institutional Profile/ Executive Summary 

 

1.1.  Introduction 

 

Irrigation Department (ID) is the major organization which is responsible for water resources 

development in Sri Lanka. ID is the only department which carries out planning, designing and 

construction of water resources related infrastructure without having foreign or any other outside 

consultation.  

 

The Department is currently providing irrigation facilities to 308,495 ha of lands for cultivation 

and has planned to increase the irrigable area up to 350,000 ha by year 2030. Also it provides 

technical services for all water related stakeholders such as Mahaweli Authority, NWSDB, 

Agriculture Department, Department of Agrarian Development, Forest Department, Local 

Governments etc. Irrigation Department has a huge data base maintained over more than 100 years 

enabling to execute the water resources development works within the department’s own capacity.  

 

1.2.  Vision Mission, Objectives of the Institution 

  

1.2.1. Vision 

To optimized the returns of the water resources so as to ensure sustainable economic and social 

development while safeguarding the environment of the country, following the words of the 

King Parakramabahu the Great of “Not allowing a single drop of water falling from this sky to 

sea without serving the eco system and mankind”. 

 

1.2.2. Mission 

To harness, develop, conserve, regulate, allocate and manage water resources in the country to 

secure and enhance the returns it produces, directly in the sphere of agriculture and indirectly 

in other spheres such as environment, domestic, industry and power in collaboration with other 

organizations. 

 

1.2.3. Objectives 
 

The main objectives of the Irrigation Department are as follows; 
 

a. Preparation of Master Plan for development of the different river basins for the optimum 

utilization of land and water resources giving priority to the environmental factors. 
 

b. Project formulation and detail designs of irrigation, hydro-power, flood control and 

reclamation Projects. 
 

c. Construction of irrigation and settlement projects for the conservation, diversion and 

distribution of water under gravity and lift Irrigation to new and existing land for cultivation 

by farmers for an enhanced food crop production and to upgrade their living conditions. 
 

d. Construction of drainage, flood protection and salt water exclusion projects for the 

protection of land to enable the cultivation of such lands with rainfall for food crop 

production with minimized risk. 
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e. Providing drainage and flood protection facilities to minimize or mitigate the damages 

caused by floods. 
 

f. Operation, maintenance, improvements, rehabilitation and water management for medium 

and major irrigation schemes, drainage and flood protection scheme and salt water exclusion 

schemes for optimum productivity enlisting the participation of beneficiaries. Catering of 

water for Inter-sectorial use, domestic, industrial use and environmental requirements. 

Construction and maintenance of conservation reservoirs. 
 

g. Maintaining and upgrading the water infrastructure including dams for sustainable water 

supply to agriculture and domestic purposes. 
 

h. Research in Hydraulics, Hydrology, Soil Mechanics, Engineering Geology, Geographic 

Information System (GIS), Engineering Materials and Land Use as applied to Water 

Resources Development Projects. 
 

i. Human resources development for optimum utilization of human resources. 
 

j. Operation and maintenance of financial management system, accounting, reporting, 

auditing systems of irrigation department in accordance with the financial regulation of the 

government of Sri Lanka. 
 

k. Providing consultancy Services to government department, statutory boards/corporation, 

public and private institutions and individuals; in the fields of Water Resources 

Development; Foundation Engineering; Quality Control of Earthwork and Concrete; 

Hydraulic Model Testing and Land Use Planning 

 

1.3.  Key Functions 
 

a) Development of land and water resources for irrigated agriculture, hydro power, flood 

control, domestic usage, industrial usage and aquaculture development, giving priority to 

the environmental factors. 
 

b) Provision of Lift irrigation, irrigation drainage and salinity exclusion facilities for cultivable 

lands in irrigation and drainage Projects. Provision of salinity exclusion schemes. 
 

c) Provision of drinking water, flood protection and drainage facilities to lands affected by 

floods. 
 

d) All aviation of poverty of the rural farming community by increasing their farm income and 

raising their standard of living. 
 

e) Management of Water economically for sustainable agriculture and other uses. 
 

f) Productivity enhancement of land and water in major/medium/inter-provincial minor 

irrigation schemes. 
 

g) Integrated water resources management and participatory management in major 

/medium/inter-provincial minor irrigation systems. 
 

h) Integrated water resources management and participatory management in river basins 

assigned to ID 
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1.4.  Organizational Chart

CA 

(Finance) 
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*   One person holds both positions 
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Abbreviations for the Organization Chart 

 
Abbreviation Description Responsibility 

DGI Director General of Irrigation  

ADDI DGI 

(I, P &D) 

Additional Director General 

of Irrigation (Investigation, 

Planning & Designs) 

Supervision, administration and coordination of the 

branches dealing with projects formulation, 

investigation, planning and design 

ADDI GDI 

(SM) 

Additional Director General 

of Irrigation (System 

Management) 

Supervision, administration and coordination of the 

branches dealing with operation, maintenance, water 

management and productivity improvement of the 

gravity irrigation schemes and research. 

ADDI DGI 

(C & D)  

Additional Director General 

of Irrigation (Construction & 

Development) 

Supervision, administration and coordination of the 

branches dealing with projects implementation and 

construction. 

ADDI DGI 

(RM) 

Additional Director General 

of Irrigation (Riverine 

Management) 

Supervision, administration and coordination of the 

branches dealing with drainage, flood control and 

riverine management 

ADDI DG 

(Admin) 

Additional Director General 

(Administration) 

Supervision and coordination   of all personnel 

administration activities of the staff attached to head 

office and all regional offices  

CFO Chief Financial Officer  To assist the DGI in the execution of duties as the 

Accounting Officer in terms of the delegation of power 

from the constitution and other related rules and 

regulations. 

DI (AM) Director of Irrigation (Assets 

Management) 

Maintaining all gravity irrigation schemes belong to ID 

by controlling department and ministry budget 

allocations and managing all the assets except 

machinery and vehicles. 

DI (I & PE) Director of Irrigation 

(Irrigation & Productivity 

Enhancement) 

Enhancing productivity of irrigated agriculture with 

participatory management approach in WAPHAULA 

schemes and management and monitoring of 

WAPHAULA programme.  

DI (RS & PI) Director of Irrigation 

(Research Support & Process 

Improvement) 

Providing support for improving processes of the 

Department through the research-oriented approach in 

all the services in the department and other special fields 

related to process improvement of the Department. 

DI (WM) Director of Irrigation (Water 

Management) 

Facilitating efficient, effective and sustainable 

management of the irrigation systems with the 

participation of users in order to maximize productivity 

in terms of unit of water and in terms of unit of land and   

increase the farmer income. 

DI (RM) Director of Irrigation 

(Riverine Management) 

Facilitating conservation activities of rivers with co-

ordination and participation of all parties to maintain 

physical and ecological balance of rivers. 
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Abbreviation Description Responsibility 

DI(D & FS ) Director of Irrigation 

(Drainage & Flood Systems) 

Maintaining all drainage and saltwater exclusion 

schemes in low-lying areas and providing structural 

flood countermeasures for protecting paddy fields, 

lands, human lives, public and private properties and the 

environment. 

DI (WRP) Director of Irrigation (Water 

Resources Planning) 

Preparing, developing & updating of National Water 

Resources Master Plan in order to achieve long term 

social, economic & environmental development goals 

of the country.  

DI(PP & D) Director of Irrigation (Project 

Planning and Design) 

Identifying new water resources development 

proposals, examine the feasibility of the potential multi- 

use of water resources, planning and formulating, 

carrying out detail design and providing construction 

drawings.  

DI (EST) Director of Irrigation 

(Engineering, Scientific and 

Technological service) 

General Administration functions and supervision of 

Engineering, Scientific, Technological & Engineering 

Assistant Service. 

DI (EG) Director of Irrigation 

(Engineering Geology) 

Conducting subsurface investigations and foundation 

treatment for major and medium project, consultancy 

services for onshore and offshore investigation, design 

and carry out remedial measures for existing water 

related structures in terms of seepage and stability. 

DI (EM) Director of Irrigation 

(Engineering Materials) 

Investigating construction materials, design of earthen 

dams, and quality assurance in construction sites for 

major and medium irrigation projects and providing 

supporting service to the Irrigation Department as well 

as to other organizations to assure quality of civil 

engineering works. 

DI (ICT & GIS) Director of Irrigation 

(Information Communication 

Technology & Geo 

Informatics System) 

Providing services related to ICT for all sub 

departments, branches, regions and divisions and GIS 

technical support and training for all sub departments, 

regional offices and divisional offices. 

DI (HYG & DM 

) 

Director of Irrigation 

(Hydrology & Disaster 

Management) 

Collecting, processing and dissemination of   hydro-

meteorological data for water resources development 

and flood forecasting, issuing early warning for major 

rivers and coordinating with Disaster Management 

Centre.  

DI (HYD) Director of Irrigation 

(Hydraulics) 

Executing model studies of irrigation projects, 

providing consultancy services to other organizations 

with respect to hydraulics related issues and maintain 

instrument unit of ID.  

DI (P&D- CZ) Director of Irrigation 

Planning and Design (Central 

Zone) 

Feasibility study, Planning and design works of medium 

and small irrigation projects in Kandy, Kurunegala, 

Puttalam and Ampara Regions. 
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Abbreviation Description Responsibility 

DI (P&D – 

U&EZ) 

Director of Irrigation 

Planning and Design (Uva 

and Eastern Zone) 

Feasibility study, Planning and design works of medium 

and small irrigation projects in Badulla, Monaragala, 

Batticaloa and Hambanthota regions. 

DI (P&D -N & 

NCZ) 

Director of Irrigation 

Planning and Designs (North 

& North Central Zone) 

Feasibility study, Planning and design works of medium 

and small irrigation projects in Anuradhapura, Mannar, 

Polonnaruwa and Trincomalee regions. 

DI (MC) Director of Irrigation (Major 

Construction) 

Coordinating and implementing of large-scale irrigation 

and settlement projects. 

DI (RD) Director of Irrigation 

(Regional Development) 

Coordinating and implementing of medium and small-

scale irrigation and settlement projects. 

DI (PM) Director of Irrigation 

(Programme Management) 

Planning capital budget and assist to ensure the 

implementation of the programme and projects 

according to annual action plan and report progress, 

preparation of other annual and quarterly reports, 

DI (CT & PT) Director of Irrigation 

(Contract & Procurement) 

Handling department procurement activities for works, 

goods and services and updating of procedures for 

standards of contract. 

DI (Training) Director of Irrigation 

(Training) 

Facilitating and co coordinating capacity building needs 

of the department, training at head office, regions and 

Irrigation Training Institute (ITI), Galgamuwa, 

conducting recruitment examinations and examinations 

stipulated in Schemes of Recruitments (SOR) of all 

categories of employees. 

DI (WG & BS) Director of Irrigation (Works 

General & Building Services) 

Handling miscellaneous matters such as Parliamentary 

consultancy committee matters, public petitions etc. and 

administration, maintenance, construction, 

improvements and resources allocation work in ID 

secretariat, lot 34 and quarters in Rathmalana,  

DI (ITI) Director of Irrigation 

(Irrigation Training Institute 

– Galgamuwa) 

Conducting the Diploma course in Irrigation 

Engineering for Engineering Assistants, conducting pre 

– service and in-service training programs for all 

categories of services in ID and outsides on request, 

conduction efficiency bar examinations as per SOR  

DI (Region) Director of Irrigation 

(Region) 

Maintaining all major, medium and inter provincial 

irrigation schemes and rehabilitation activities related to 

the respected region. 

Director (LU) Director (Land Use) Providing qualitative and quantitative scientific 

information for land use recommendations for irrigation 

and other development projects. 

Director (Admin) Director (Administration) Assisting ADG(Admin) in all administrative works 

DM (HQ and 

Southern) 

Director Mechanical (Head 

Quarters and southern) 

Maintenance, repair and up keeping all vehicles, 

machinery and hydro mechanical structures attached to 

head office, Colombo, Galle, Hambantota and 

Monaragala regions 

DM (Central) Director Mechanical 

(Central) 

Maintenance, repair and up keeping all vehicles, 

machinery and hydro mechanical structures attached to 
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Abbreviation Description Responsibility 

Kandy, Kurunegala, Puttalam, Badulla, Ampara and 

Batticaloa regions 

DM (NC) Director Mechanical (North 

Central) 

Maintenance, repair and up keeping all vehicles, 

machinery and hydro mechanical structures attached to 

Anuradhapura, Polonnaruwa, Mannar and Trincomalee 

regions 

CA (Finance) Chief Accountant (Finance) Assisting CFO in overall supervision of financial 

matters in the head office and regional office. 

CA ((Acc. & 

Est.). 

Chief Accountant (Accounts 

& Estimate) 

Preparing annual estimates, accounts, expenditure 

reports and other reports, control and supervision of 

departmental and other departmental and ministries 

votes, submission of monthly committed expenditure 

report and other reports to Treasury Operation 

Department,  

 

 

1.5. Departments Under the Ministry /Main Divisions of the Department of the Department 

/Divisional Secretariats of the District Secretariat 

 

1. Investigation, Planning and Designs (I, P & D.) 

2. Construction and Development (CD) 

3. System Management (SM) 

4. Riverine Management (RM) 

5. Administration (Admin.) 

6. Finance (F) 

 

In addition, following supporting functions are carried separately under the direct supervision of DGI 

 

1. Programme Management 

2. Contract and Procurement 

3. Internal Audit  

4. Training & Capacity Building 

5. Works General & Building Service 

6. Mechanical Workshop 

7. Irrigation Training Institute - Galgamuwa 

 

There is a small Secretariat supporting DGI to manage the records and coordinate with the staff. This 

Secretariat manage confidential files and correspondences related with the Director’s meeting in which DGI 

participates as ex-officio member (MASL, HART I & SLLDC boards) 
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Chapter 2 – Special Achievements, Challenges and Targets 

 

2.1. Special Achievements and Progress 

 

• Water availability of the reservoirs under the purview of Irrigation Department, was 40% at 

the end of 2020 Yala season. Cultivation started for 2020/21 Maha season and 94% of the 

area was cultivated successfully. Water availability at the beginning of 2021 Yala season was 

70% and it was able to cultivate 84% of the land successfully with proper water management.  

 

• It was able to cultivate 29,475 ha of Other Field Crops (OFC) for a 3rd season by using the 

remaining water available in the reservoirs after 2021 Yala cultivation. Cropping intensity 

was increased as 189% for year 2020/21. 

 

• Over 60 hectares of paddy (2-month variety) were cultivated as a pilot project under Rugam 

reservoir in Batticaloa district, after 40 years. It was succeeded with an average yield of 4.15 

MT per ha. More than 365 hectares of Turmeric were cultivated in the Ampara District 

considering the prevailing requirement of the nation. 

 

• A financial progress of 90% was achieved under the Budget Head reserved for the Irrigation 

Department even with the pandemic situation prevailed all over the country. 

 

• The International Congress of Irrigation and Drainage (ICID) recognized Parakrama 

Samudraya bund, its sluice and the Ethimale wewa as ICID World Heritage structures in Year 

2021. 

 

• Communication tools such as Zoom, WhatsApp, Viber, and Google Teams have effectively 

been used for communication within head office, regional offices and divisional offices. 

 

• The United Nations volunteers (UNV) Sri Lanka, awarded UNV 50 country award to 

Irrigation Department of Sri Lanka. Amongst an overwhelming number of submissions, 

Irrigation Department was selected in state sector category for contribution over the years to 

society through volunteerism. 

 

• Irrigation Department completed updating the Technical Guideline for planning, designs, and 

construction of Irrigation sector in Sri Lanka which was prepared by the Irrigation Engineers 

led by late Eng. A.J.P. Ponrajah. Many new technological interventions and approaches have 

been introduced. The experience gained by completion of various new construction projects 

and rehabilitation projects are incorporated with the new TGL. 
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• Irrigation Department has commenced to develop a Strategic Plan for Water Resources 

Development and Management for the period of 2020-2030. It comprises of two phases. The 

first phase is a comprehensive database containing the existing water resources infrastructure 

and a prioritized set of river basins based on national development goals, sectorial needs, and 

a portfolio of ongoing and planned water resources development projects. The second phase 

is a baseline report and a Strategic Plan for Water Resources Development and Management 

for the period 2021-2025. 

 

• Construction of Kalugal Oya reservoir in Uhana DS division of Ampara District was 

completed and handed over to Divisional Irrigation Engineer Ampara for operation and 

maintenance. 

 

• Several projects implemented under Irrigation Department budget head were able to 

complete. These projects are Deduru Oya Reservoir Project, Rambukkan Oya Reservoir 

Project, Menik Ganga Diversion project, Rehabilitation of feeder tanks under Giant’s tank, 

Extension of Kaudulla Stage II and Rehabilitation of Gin Ganga flood Regulation Project. 

 

• Irrigation Department has commenced construction of the following new reservoirs on force 

account. 

 

• Lower Malwathu Oya Reservoir in Anuradhapura District 

• Wattegedera Reservoir in Matale District 

• Elle Wewa Reservoir in Ratnapura District 

• Kudawillachchiya Reservoir in Anuradhapure District 

• Uraula Reservoir in Moneragala District 

 

• Climate Resilience Improvement Project funded by the World Bank covers 43 major 

irrigation schemes in 11 Regions which were scattered in the Ampara, Anuradhapura, 

Batticaloa, Hambantota, Kandy, Kurunegala, Mannar, Monaragala, Polonnaruwa, Puttalam 

and Trincomalee districts.  The Irrigation Department completed 701 contracts packages by 

National Competitive Bidding, Shopping, and farmer Organizations contracts at an estimated 

cost of Rs 10,261.5 Mn with a Total Awarded cost of Rs. 9,836.53 Mn. Irrigation Department 

successfully completed the project in 2021.  This component supported to implement urgent 

climate mitigation investments required to ensure the short-term integrity of flood control and 

to reduce impact of flood and drought. 
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• Irrigation Department has completed the detail designs of salinity barrier across Kelani River 

at Ambatale to prevent salinity instruction. The proposed structure consists of collapsible type 

gates (lowering gates) and a lock gate for passing boats to reduce impact of floods. 

 

• New hydrological gauging station was established at Magura in Kalu Ganga basin.  

Improvements to existing hydrological gauging stations at Giriulla, Kithulgala and Ratnapura 

were successfully completed. 

 

• Development of ISO yield curves and IDF curves were completed covering all island.  

Probability rainfall, Evapo-Transpiration coefficients (ET0) for all island were completed by 

the Hydrology Division. 

 

• New machinery for strengthening the machinery fleet 

 

• Two number of Amphibious Excavators worth of Rs. 80 Mn. 

• Three units of breaker attachment for 200 class excavator worth of Rs. 7.5 Mn. 

• Four units of Wheel excavator worth of Rs. 112 Mn. 

• Four units of Backhoe Loader worth of Rs. 64 Mn. 

• Four units of 200 class Long Arm Excavator worth of Rs. 72 Mn. 

 

• Strengthening the vehicle fleet by providing 05 new double cabs.     

 

• The national productivity award 2nd place won by Mechanical workshop - Halpathota. 

 

• New lathe machines were installed to Rambewa, Kanthale and Mapakada workshops. 

 

• New automobile painting unit was established for Mechanical workshop - Halpathota. 

 

• New office and workshop building for Ampara Workshop. 

 

• Irrigation Department has made arrangements to produce 5 metric tons of organic fertilizer for all 

schemes under WAP HAULA program during 2021 Yala season to meet the organic fertilizer 

requirement in 2021/22 maha season. It was able to produce 4 metric tons sucsesfully. 

 

The progress of the projects implemented under the Irrigation Department are summarized as 

follows. 
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Major Medium Irrigation Schemes 

 

1. Deduru Oya Reservoir 

2. Manik Ganga Reservoir (Weheragala) – phase ii 

3. Rambukkan Oya Reservoir 

4. Yan Oya Project 

5. Lower Uva Project 

6. Mahagona Wewa Project 

7. Morana Reservoir  

8. Ella Wewa Reservoir 

9. Kalugaloya Reservoir 

10. Kumbukkan Oya Reservoir 

11. Rugam Kithul Reservoir (Mundeniaru River Basin Development Project)  

12. Polonnaruwa District Irrigation Development Project 

13. Accelerated Irrigation Development Project in Monaragala District  (Wellassa Navodaya) 

14. Kelani River Bund Protection 

15. Development and Improvements of Godigamuwa Tank 

16. Flood Mitigation projects in Kelani ganga, Mundeniaru Basin, Kaluganga basin, Nilwala 

ganga Basin & Ginganga 

17. Rehabilitation of feeder Tank Under Giant Tank 

18. Supply portable Water to the Population in the Jaffna peninsula through the development 

of Water resources in the Vadamarachchi Lagoon 

19. Rehabilitation of Kudavilachciya Reservoir 

20. Rehabilitation of Dematagalla Tank 

21. Wilakandiya Reservoir 

22. Extension of Kaudulla stage 11 Ella up to Damsopurawewa 

23. Augmentation of Mahagalgamuwa Tank 

24. Rehabilitation of Ginganga Flood Regulation Project. 

25. Bentara ganga Right Bank Drainage & Salt Water Extrusion Scheme 

26. Rural Tank Development 
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1. Deduru Oya Reservoir Project 

 

Estimated Cost 
Rs. 13,540 Mn 

Benefiting Districts  Kurunegala 

 Puttalam 

Funding Source 
GOSL 

Reservoir Capacity/ 

Irrigable Land Area 

 75 MCM/ 

10,932 ha 

Project Duration 2005 – 2022 Beneficiaries 12,500 families 

Allocation 2021 Rs. 565 Mn Allocation for 2022  Rs. 50 Mn 

Cumulative Financial Rs. 13,431.85 Mn Overall Physical Progress  99.46% 

Financial progress 2021 Rs. 556.105 Mn 

Work done in 2021  Construction of Sengal oya canal including structures 

 Improvement of existing Sengal Oya anicut 

 Balance work of Daduru oya left and right bank canal 

system 

 Continuation of Land and Acquisition and compensation 

 

Overall benefits of the 

Project 

 Supply irrigation water for 10,932 ha of new and existing 

Land benefits to 12,500 farm families.  

 Supply of drinking water for 100,000 families in 

Kurunegala and Puttalam Districts 

 1.5MW hydro power generation 

 

 

2. Menik Ganga Reservoir 

 

Estimated Cost Rs. 2900 Mn Benefiting Districts Monaragala, 

Hambanthota 

Funding Source GOSL Reservoir Capacity/ 

Irrigable Land Area 

75 MCM/  

4,150 ha 

Project Duration 2006 – 2021 Beneficiaries 11,000 families 

Allocation 2021 Rs. 50 Mn Allocation for 2022 Project Completed 

Cumulative Financial Rs. 2196.5 Mn Overall Physical Progress 100% 

Financial progress 2021 Rs. 45.24 Mn 

Work done in 2021  Rehabilitation of Debarawewa canal system 

 Construction of structures in Thissawewa scheme 

 Construction of structures in Yodawewa scheme 

 Rehabilitation of Hangunara feeder canal 4th and 5th km 

 Construction of regulator between Karawila tank and 

Mailagama tank 

 Providing rip rap at 0+000 to 0+600 in Mailagama tank 



78 
 

Overall benefits of the 

Project 

 Providing Irrigation water for 4,150 ha land and benefits to 

6,000 farmer families   

 Providing Drinking water for 5,000 families in 

Katharagama Area 

 

 

3. Rambukkan Oya Reservoir Project 

 

Estimated Cost Rs. 3,970.00 Mn Benefiting Districts Ampara 

Funding Source 
GOSL 

Reservoir Capacity/ 

Irrigable Land Area 

56.1 MCM/  

1,477 ha 

Project Duration 2006-2021 Beneficiaries 1,000 families 

Allocation 2021 Rs. 5 Mn Allocation for 2022 Project Completed 

Cumulative Financial Rs 3964.796 Mn Overall Physical Progress  100% 

Financial progress 2021 Rs 2.486 Mn 

Work done in 2021  Variation of Radial gates of Rambakan Oya  
 

Overall benefits of the 

Project 

 Providing Irrigation facilities for 1,420 ha of land for paddy 

and Other Field Crop Cultivation

 Supply of drinking water for Mahaoya Area. 

 Provided internal and link road network in the area.  

 Development of inland fisheries industry. 

 Conducted the training Programme for farmer in irrigated 

agriculture, such as proper water management, 

development of communities.


 

 

4. Yan Oya Reservoir Project 

 

Estimated Cost 
Rs. 48,355.3 Mn 

Benefiting Districts Anuradhapura, 

Trincomalee 

Funding Source 

GOSL 

Reservoir Capacity/ 

Irrigable Land Area 

169MCM/ 

Existing area 

8,700 ha, New 

area 345 ha 

Project Duration 2012 – 2022 Beneficiaries 9,000 families 

Allocation 2021 Rs. 4,231 Mn Allocation for 2022 Rs. 2,800 Mn 

Cumulative Financial Rs. 36,274.771 Mn Overall Physical Progress 82.35 % 

Financial progress 2021 Rs. 2,689.405 Mn 
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Work done in 2021  Right Bank Main Canal structures, Improvements to 

Kohombagas Wewa and Issan Wewa 

 Development of new irrigable area 

 Irrigation Facilities to Kohombagas wewa, Issan Wewa 

and Omarakada wewa 

 Resettlements and land acquisition 

 

Overall benefits of the 

Project 

 Providing irrigation facilities for existing 8,700 ha and 

New Area 345 ha 

 Supply of drinking water for 50,000 families in 

Anuradhapura District and 20,000 families in 

Trincomalee District 

 Road Development: 8 km carpet road, 40 km gravel roads 

 Township Development: 4 Villages Developed, 

Community hall, Montessori, Sewa piyasa constructed in 

all villages. 

 Construction of 16 km length Elephant fence. 

 

 

 

5. Lower Uva Project 

 

Estimated Cost Rs. 1,250 Mn Benefiting Districts Monaragala 

Funding Source 

GOSL 

Reservoir Capacity Watagala ara - 200Acft    

Mallipotha - 745 Acft     

Debara ara - 973 Acft 

Project Duration 

2007 – 2022 

Beneficiaries Watagala ara - 32 families   

Mallipotha - 250 families  

Debara ara - 72 families 

Allocation 2021 Rs. 300 Mn Allocation for 2022 Rs. 150 Mn 

Cumulative 

Financial 
Rs. 686.692 Mn 

Overall Physical 

Progress 
77.51 % 

Financial progress 

2021 

Rs. 44.853 Mn 

Work done in 2021  Construction of Debara ara feeder canal  

 Detail design of Mallipotha canal system 

Overall benefits of 

the Project 

Providing Irrigation facilities for 310 ha of new land and existing 

land 
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6. Mahagona Wewa Project 
 

Estimated Cost Rs. 235 Mn Benefiting Districts Matale 

Funding Source GOSL Reservoir Capacity 0.78 MCM 

Project Duration 2012 – 2022 Beneficiaries 200 Families 

Allocation 2021 Rs. 50 Mn Allocation for 2022 Rs. 15 Mn 

Cumulative Financial Rs. 221.867 Mn Overall Physical Progress 99.03 % 

Financial progress 2021 Rs. 36.193 Mn 

Work done in 2021  Construction of RB canal from 0+165 to 2+495. 

 Construction of structures in RB canal completed. 

 Construction of field canals FC03, FC04, FC05, FC06 

up to 77% 
 

Overall benefits of the 

Project 
Providing Irrigation facilities for 82 Ha of new and existing 

lands. 
 

 

 

7. Morana Reservoir Project 
 

Estimated Cost Rs. 2,900 Mn Benefiting Districts Badulla 

Funding Source 
GOSL 

Reservoir Capacity/ 

Irrigable Land Area 

16 MCM/  

570 ha 

Project Duration 2012 - 2022 Beneficiaries 1,300 families 

Allocation 2021 Rs. 400 Mn Allocation for 2022 Rs. 270 Mn 

Cumulative Financial Rs. 2,572.843 Mn Overall Physical Progress 95.1 % 

Financial progress 

2021 

Rs. 209.62 Mn 

Work done in 2021  Balance work of head work, canal systems, canal structures, 

bund roads 

 Balance work of conveyance system 

 Regularization of lands and land development, Resettlement 
 

Overall benefits of 

the Project 
 Providing Irrigation facilities for 570 ha of new and existing 

land and benefit for 1,300 families  

 Supply of drinking water for 500 families 

 Construction of 25 km length of Road. 

 Conducting training programs on bee keeping 

 Conducting programs related inland fisheries 

 Construction of a house through the project for a disabled 

family who was homeless 

 Construction of two community halls, construction of post 

offices, improvement of access roads to Yalwela and 

Kudalunu Vidyalaya schools as an improvement of 

community activities in rural areas 

 Reforestation programme 
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8. Ella Wewa Reservoir  

 

Estimated Cost Rs. 1,532 Mn Benefiting Districts Rathnapura 

Funding Source 

GOSL 

Reservoir Capacity/ 

Irrigable Land Area 

1.91 MCM/ 1,127 Acs 

of existing lands & 

350 Acs of new lands 

Project Duration 03 Years Beneficiaries 4,000families 

Allocation 2021 Rs. 250 Mn Allocation for 2022 Rs. 200 Mn 

Cumulative Financial 
Rs. 168.652 Mn 

Overall Physical 

Progress 
8.42 % 

Financial progress 2021 Rs. 168.652 Mn 

Work done in 2021  Site clearing, construction of site office, stores & construction 

of access roads 

 Geological Investigations 

 Excavation of main dam & Saddle dam 

 Construction of sluice cum bottom outlet  

 Resettlements and paid compensation 
 

Overall benefits of the 

Project 

 Enhanced living standard of people living in the area by 

providing water for both agriculture and domestic purpose  

 Ensure water security for irrigated agriculture during dry 

season and expand irrigable area by 350 acs. 

 Increasing cropping intensity of existing Hulangdawa and 

panamura scheme. 

 Supply drinking water demand of 7000 m3/day by Kolonna 

Water Supply scheme.  

 Serve Inland fishing industry and environmental 

requirements. 
 

 

 

9. Kalugal Oya Reservoir Project 

 

Estimated Cost Rs. 2,350 Mn Benefiting Districts Ampara 

Funding Source 
GOSL 

Reservoir Capacity/ 

Irrigable Land Area 

10 MCM/  

445ha 

Project Duration 2012 – 2021 Beneficiaries 534 families 

Allocation 2021 Rs. 116 Mn Allocation for 2022 Completed 

Cumulative Financial Rs. 2307 Mn Overall Physical Progress 100% 

Financial progress 2021 Rs. 73.5 Mn 
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Work done in 2021  Balance work of Spillway including spill tail canal & other 

related works  

 Balance work of Sluice 

 Balance work of canal system 

 Construction of elephant fence 

 Rehabilitation & upgrading Gonagolla Bandaraduwa road 
 

Overall benefits of the 

Project 

 Providing irrigation facilities for 455 ha of existing lands.  

 Improvements to transportation system in the area.   

 Minimizing human elephant conflict.  

 Awareness for farmers about agriculture 
 

 

 

10. Kumbukkan Oya Reservoir Project 

 

Estimated Cost Rs. 32,397.3 Mn Benefiting Districts Moneragala 

Funding Source GOSL Reservoir Capacity/ 

Irrigable Land Area 

48 MCM/  

5,429 ha 

Project Duration 4 years Beneficiaries 10,000 families 

Allocation 2021 Rs. 100 Mn Allocation for 2022 Rs. 750 Mn 

Cumulative Financial Rs. 318.299 Mn Overall Physical Progress 1.15% 

Financial progress 2021 Rs. 95.379 Mn 

Work done in 2021  Land survey & Engineering Survey of alternative roads, 

tank bed, resettlement area and Canal traces 

 Geological Investigation 

 Land acquisition and compensation 

 Construction of low-level access road 
 

Overall benefits of the 

Project 

 To provide irrigation facilities for 5,429 ha of new and 

existing lands.  

 Annual drinking water allocation of 12 MCM  

 Alternative roads development (About 15km) 

 Annual hydro power generation of 16GWh.  

 Development inland fisheries 

 Township development in resettlement area 

 Income generation Programme for the required people 

 Construction of elephant fence to prevent human elephant 

conflict. 
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11. Mundeni Aru River Basin Development Project (Rugam-Kithul) 

 

Estimated Cost Rs. 24,141 Mn Benefiting Districts Batticaloa, Ampara 

Funding Source GOSL Reservoir Capacity/ 

Irrigable Land Area 

Rugam Kithul – 88 MCM 

Maha Oya – 80 MCM 

6,500 ha 

Project Duration 6 Years  

(2021 - 2027) 

Beneficiaries 50,000 families 

Allocation 2021 Rs. 180 Mn Allocation for 2022 Rs. 300 Mn 

Cumulative 

Financial 

Rs. 297.453 Mn Overall Physical 

Progress 

1.736 % 

Financial progress 

2021 

Rs. 128.325 Mn 

Work done in 2021  Surveys and Geological Investigations 

 Archeological Mitigation work 

 Land Acquisition and Resettlement 

 

Overall benefits of 

the Project 

 Providing irrigation facilities for 6,500 ha new and existing 

lands among 10,000 farmer families.   

 Supply of drinking water for 31,000 families in Batticaloa 

and Ampara district  

 Flood control in the downstream area. 

 Increase the inland fisheries by 800 MT per year in both 

reservoirs  

 Construction of 85 km road network.  

 Township development  

 Construction of elephant fence  

 Reforestation program  

 Providing water for the seed paddy production 

 Strengthening the farmer organization 

 Income generation programme and training (agriculture & 

livestock extension) 
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12. Polonnaruwa District Irrigation Development Project 

 

Estimated Cost 7,000 Mn Benefiting Districts Polonnaruwa 

Funding Source GOSL Reservoir Capacity 351,700 Acft.                                  

(04 Tanks) 

Project Duration 2017 - 2024 Beneficiaries 35,978 families 

Allocation 2021 Rs. 200 Mn Allocation for 2022 Rs. 100 Mn 

Cumulative Financial Rs. 1285.969 Mn Overall Physical Progress 25 % 

Financial progress 

2021 

Rs. 168.403 Mn 

Work done in 2021  Rehabilitation and improvements of head works main canal, 

D canal, field canal, agricultural road & drainage system in 

Parakrama samudraya scheme 
 

 Rehabilitation and improvements of main canal, D canal, 

field canal, agricultural road & drainage system in Minneriya 

& Girithale scheme 
 

 Rehabilitation and improvements of main canal, D canal, 

field canal, agricultural road & drainage system in Kaudulla 

and Ambagaswewa scheme 
 

 Rehabilitation and improvements of main canal, D canal, 

field canal, agricultural road & drainage system in system ‘G’ 

& Nahinna scheme 
 

 Widening of spill tail canal of kaudulla tank 

 

Overall benefits of the 

Project 

 Minimizing the water scarcity in Polonnaruwa district during 

“Yala” season and upgrading the efficiency of water supply 

 

 Minimizing the damages to paddy areas due to flood in       

Polonnaruwa district during “North East Moonsoon”.   
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13. Accelerated Irrigation Development Project in Monaragala District 

(Wellassa Navodaya) 
 

Estimated Cost Rs. 2,500 Mn Benefiting Districts Moneragala 

Funding Source 
GOSL 

Reservoir Capacity/ 

Irrigable Land Area 

- 

3,179 ha 

Project Duration Originally 04 years 

(From 2016 To 2019) 

Extended up to 2022 

Beneficiaries 

15,000 families 

Allocation 2021 Rs. 250 Mn Allocation for 2022 Rs. 200 Mn 

Cumulative Financial Rs. 1,349.69 Mn Overall Physical Progress 51.32 % 

Financial progress 

2021 

Rs. 195.382 Mn 

Work done in 2021  Rehabilitation of Irrigation works 

 New Construction of small & medium irrigation works 

 Rural and Urban infrastructure developments 

 Investigation, data collection and studies water resources 

development potential 
 

Overall benefits of 

the Project 

 Providing irrigation facilities for existing 7,690 ha of land  

 Pilot study on new and improved technics and demonstration  

 Rehabilitation of existing irrigation infrastructure 

 Other Infrastructure development (Rural and Urban)  

 Investigation, data collection and studies the potential of 

water resources development.   

 

 

14. Kelani River Bund Protection Project 

 

Estimated Cost 
Rs. 1000 Mn 

Benefiting Districts Gampaha, 

Colombo 

Funding Source GOSL Reservoir Capacity  - 

Project Duration 2 years Beneficiaries 15,0000 families 

Allocation 2021 Rs. 170 Mn Allocation for 2022 Rs. 200 Mn 

Cumulative Financial Rs. 334.744 Mn Overall Physical Progress 29.02% 

Financial progress 2021 Rs. 136.837 Mn 

Work done in 2021 • Improvements to Kelani north bund. 

• Right bank protection. 

• Improvements to Minor Flood Protection Structures. 

• Compensation for land acquisition. 
 

Overall benefits of the 

Project 

Protect about 15,000 families, their properties, industries, 

Roads and other infrastructures in Kelaniya area from annual 

flooding of Kelani Ganga. 
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15. Development & Improvements to Godigamuwa Tank 

 

Estimated Cost Rs. 165.9 Mn Benefiting Districts Matale 

Funding Source GOSL Reservoir Capacity 0.25 MCM 

Project Duration 2018 – 2022 Beneficiaries 265 Families 

Allocation 2021 Rs. 88 Mn Allocation for 2022 Rs. 100 Mn 

Cumulative Financial Rs. 134.640 Mn Overall Physical Progress 61.93 % 

Financial progress 2021 Rs. 87.984 Mn 

Work done in 2021 • Construction of Tank bund 

• Construction of Spill 

• Construction of Rip rap and Toe filter completed up to 30% 

• Construction of LB sluice and RB sluice completed up to 

80% and 50% respectively. 

 

Overall benefits of the 

Project 

Providing irrigation water for existing 121 ha of land to 

cultivation both seasons. 

 

 

16. Flood Mitigtion Projects in Kelani, Mundeniaru, Kalu, Nilwala & Gin 

Ganga basin 

 

Estimated Cost 
Rs. 2,100 Mn 

Benefiting Districts Galle, Matara, 

Kalutara, Colombo 

Funding Source GOSL Reservoir Capacity  - 

Project Duration 05 Years  

(2018-2022) 

Beneficiaries 
37,000 families 

Allocation 2021 Rs. 100 Mn Allocation for 2022 Rs. 100 Mn 

Cumulative Financial Rs. 310.106 Mn Overall Physical Progress 16.22% 

Financial progress 

2021 

Rs. 84.488 Mn 

Work done in 2021 • Flood mitigation in Kelani, Kalu, Gin and Nilwala river 

basins. 

• Flood mitigation facility improvements and rehabilitation of 

Administrative building 

 

Overall benefits of the 

Project 

• Protect the 5000 ha of agricultural lands and about 20,000 

families from annual flood damages in Gin ganga basin. 

• Protect the 5060 ha of agricultural lands and about12,000 

families from annual flood damages in Nilwala basin. 

• Protect the 200 ha of agricultural lands and about 5,000 

families from flood damages in Kalu ganga basin. 
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17. Rehabilitation of Feeder tanks under Yodha Wewa in District Mannar 

 

Estimated Cost Rs. 300 Mn Benefiting Districts Mannar 

Funding Source GOSL Reservoir Capacity 40 Feeder Tanks 

Project Duration 2019 - 2021 Beneficiaries 4,870 families 

Allocation 2021 Rs. 150 Mn Allocation for 2022 Completed 

Cumulative Financial Rs. 291.753 Mn  Overall Physical Progress 100% 

Financial progress 2021 Rs. 141.045 Mn 

Work done in 2021  Bund formation of feeder tanks 

 Construction of Sluices 

 Construction of Spillways 

 Construction of bathing steps and other headwork items 
 

Overall benefits of the 

Project 

 To increase the acreage cultivated under feeder tanks in 

Yodha Wewa irrigation scheme by increasing surface water 

storage  

 Minimizing losses in conveyance systems by improving 

essential infrastructure to increase land and water 

productivity (Total extend 9,900 ha) 

 To stop encroachments in the reservation and tank bed area 

by restoring the tank back to its initial water storage capacity. 
 

 

 

18. Supply of Potable Water to the population in the Jaffna Peninsula through 

the Development of Water Resources in the Vadamarachchi Lagoon 

 

Estimated Cost Rs. 2,000 Mn Benefiting Districts Jaffna 

Funding Source GOSL Reservoir Capacity 24 MCM 

Project Duration 2020 – 2025 Beneficiaries 150,000 families 

Allocation 2021 Rs. 5 Mn Allocation for 2022 - 

Cumulative Financial Rs. 14.066 Mn Overall Physical Progress 1.16% 

Financial progress 

2021 
Rs. 4.608 Mn 

Work done in 2021 1) Preliminary works 

2) Mobilization at site 
 

Overall benefits of the 

Project 

Supplying of drinking water for 600,000 persons 
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19. Kudawilachchiya Reservoir Project 

 

Estimated Cost Rs. 6,000 Mn Benefiting Districts Anuradhapura 

Funding Source 

GOSL 

Reservoir Capacity/ 

Irrigable Land Area 

23 MCM /  

2664 acs of 

existing lands 

Project Duration 03 Years 

(2021 – 2023) 
Beneficiaries 

25,000 families 

Allocation 2021 Rs. 180 Mn Allocation for 2022 Rs. 1000 Mn 

Cumulative Financial Rs. 102.647 Mn Overall Physical Progress 1.512 % 

Financial progress 2021 Rs. 102.647 Mn 

Work done in 2021  Construction of Access Road 

 Improvements to downstream tanks Kiralapetiya and 

Sadasarana Wewa 

 Design of Spillway, sluice structures and dam 

 Construction of supply canal 
 

Overall benefits of the 

Project 

 Supply of drinking water to 25,000 people in Anuradhapura 

district (Reduced CKD & increased Hygiene) 

 Increase the cropping intensity of Maha Wilachchiya major 

irrigation scheme from 1.57 to 2.0 

 Reduction of Human Elephant conflicts 

 Protection of Archeological sites from further damage by 

Vandals 

 Providing water for proposed pharmaceutical zone in 

Anuradhapura 

 Increasing water availability within Wilpaththu National Park 

 Ensuring Environmental flow of Madaragam Aru  

 Ground water Recharging 
 

 

 

20. Dematagala Reservoir Project 

 

Estimated Cost Rs. 2,230 Mn Benefiting Districts Anuradhapura 

Funding Source 
GOSL 

Reservoir Capacity/ 

Irrigable Land Area 

2.32 MCM/  

550 ha 

Project Duration 03 Years 

(2021 – 2023) 

Beneficiaries 
1,246 families 

Allocation 2021 Rs. 5 Mn Allocation for 2022 Rs. 50 Mn 

Cumulative Financial Rs. 0.256 Mn Overall Physical Progress 0.01 % 

Financial progress 2021 Rs. 0.256 Mn 
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Work done in 2021 Surveys 

 Reservoir bund surveys completed 

 Feeder canal surveys – strip surveys completed 

Investigations 

 Geological Investigation - completed 

 Soil Investigation - completed  

Designs 

 Feeder canal – Basic designs completed, Detailed 

designs to be completed 

 Minor tanks – PIR completed, detailed designs to be 

completed 

Construction 

 Demarcation of canal reservation to be started  

 Construction of access road - Waiting for approvals of 

Department of Wildlife 
 

Overall benefits of the 

Project 

 Cultivation of 550 ha under 32 village tanks and benefit 

1246 farmer families. 

 Increase of cropping intensity from 0.6 to 1.5 which will 

ultimately reduce the poverty level of the farming 

community. 

 Overall development of the project area (agricultural roads, 

easy access to market) by the project interventions and 

thereby uplifting the socio-economic conditions, living 

standards and reduce poverty. 

 Providing Water to Wildlife in Kahalla Pallekele forest area 

 Reduced Human – Animal Conflict 

 Clean Water for Domestic Use 

 Increased Ground Water Level 

 Recharge Drying Wells 

 

 

21. Wilakandiya Reservoir 

 

Estimated Cost Rs. 298 Mn Benefiting Districts Badulla 

Funding Source GOSL Reservoir Capacity 1.06 MCM 

Project Duration 2012 – 2022 Beneficiaries 250 Families 

Allocation 2021 Rs. 35 Mn Allocation for 2022 Rs. 50 Mn 

Cumulative Financial Rs. 232.912 Mn Overall Physical Progress 86.75 % 

Financial progress 2021 Rs. 32.007 Mn 
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Work done in 2021 • Improvement to access road 

• Construction of main canal and structures in main canal 

• Construction of distributary canals and structures 

• Construction of field canals. 
 

Overall benefits of the 

Project 

Providing irrigation water for 101 ha of land to cultivate both 

seasons. 

 

 

22. Extension of Kaudulla Stage 11 (Extension up to Damsopura Wewa) 

 

Estimated Cost Rs. 260 Mn Benefiting Districts Polonnaruwa 

Funding Source GOSL Reservoir Capacity   - 

Project Duration 2013 – 2021 Beneficiaries 300 Families 

Allocation 2021 Rs. 56 Mn Allocation for 2022 Completed 

Cumulative Financial Rs. 259.971 Mn Overall Physical Progress  100 % 

Financial progress 2021 Rs. 56 Mn 

Work done in 2021  Construction of structures such as Trough, Bench flume, 

Retaining wall 

 Rehabilitation of Damsopura tank 

 Construction of field canals from feeder canal 
 

Overall benefits of the 

Project 

Providing irrigation water for 234 ha of land. 

 

 

23. Augmentation of Mahagalgamuwa Tank 

 

Estimated Cost Rs. 500 Mn Benefiting Districts Kurunegala 

Funding Source 
GOSL 

Reservoir Capacity/ 

Irrigable Land Area 
6,537 Acft 

Project Duration 2014 – 2022 Beneficiaries 2,000 Families 

Allocation 2021 Rs. 50 Mn Allocation for 2022 Rs. 50 Mn 

Cumulative Financial Rs. 361.539 Mn Overall Physical Progress 92.5 % 

Financial progress 2021 Rs. 13.674 Mn 

Work done in 2021  Hard Rock excavation in feeder canal 

 Construction of structures 
 

Overall benefits of the 

Project 

Providing irrigation water for 566 Ha of new and existing lands 
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24. Rehabilitation of Gin Ganga Flood Regulation Project 

 

Estimated Cost Rs. 700 Mn Benefiting Districts Galle 

Funding Source GOSL Reservoir Capacity  - 

Project Duration 3 years Beneficiaries 10,000 families  

Allocation 2021 Rs. 100 Mn Allocation for 2022 - 

Cumulative Financial Rs. 687.517 Mn Overall Physical Progress 98.92 % 

Financial progress 2021 Rs. 89.187 Mn 

Work done in 2021  Installation of pumps, panel boards & testing of pumps. 

 Pump house and administration block (civil works) 

 Mechanical works 

 

Overall benefits of the 

Project 

 Protection of the 5000 ha of paddy lands, human lives and 

their properties in Gin ganga downstream area from 

frequent floods. 

 Protection of other infrastructures in Gin ganga 

downstream area. 

 

 

 

25. Bentara Ganga Right Bank Drainage and Salt Water Extrusion Scheme 

 

Estimated Cost Rs. 298 Mn Benefiting Districts Kalutara 

Funding Source GOSL Reservoir Capacity  - 

Project Duration 3 years Beneficiaries 450 families 

Allocation 2021 Rs. 100 Mn Allocation for 2022 - 

Cumulative Financial Rs. 165.144 Mn Overall Physical Progress 35% 

Financial progress 2021 Rs. 69.95 Mn 

Work done in 2021  Improvements to Salt water extrusion bund. 

 Improvements to canals 

 Improvements to Salt water extrusion structures 

 

Overall benefits of the 

Project 

Increasing the land productivity about 2500 acres of abandoned 

lands. 
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26. Rural Tank Development 

 

Estimated Cost Rs. 5,141 Mn Benefiting Districts 25 Districts 

Funding Source GOSL Reservoir Capacity 28,900 Acres 

Project Duration 2021 - 2022 Beneficiaries 15,000 families 

Allocation 2021 Rs. 2,916.8 Mn Allocation for 2022 Rs. 2,182 Mn 

Cumulative Financial Rs. 2,286.9 Mn Overall Physical Progress 69% 

Financial progress 2021 Rs. 2,286.9Mn 

Work done in 2021 739 of work has been started & 401 was completed. 
 

Overall benefits of the 

Project 

 Water storage capacity increased  

 cropping intensity increased.  

 farmers income will be increased and their quality of life 

will be improved. 

 Food Production will be increased. 

 

 

Other Projects Implemented by Irrigation Department 

 

 
1. Uma Oya Downstream Development Project 

 
Estimated Cost Rs. 17,914.2 Mn Benefiting Districts Monaragala, Hambanthota 

Funding Source GOSL Reservoir Capacity / 

Irrigable Land Area 

Alikota Ara - 6.5 MCM 

Kuda Oya - 22.6 MCM 

4,500 ha of new lands and 

1,500 ha of existing lands 

Project Duration 2013 – 2022 Beneficiaries 5,700 families 

Allocation 2021 Rs. 2,165 Mn Allocation for 2022 Rs. 2,750 Mn 

Cumulative 

Financial 

Rs. 9,870.93 Mn Overall Physical 

Progress 

61.93 % 

Financial 

progress 2021 

Rs. 1,644.55 Mn 

Work done in 

2021 
 Construction of Kuda Oya Reservoir  

 Construction of LB Canal (11 Km) in Handapanagala Reservoir  

 Construction of Alikota Ara – Kuda Oya Transfer Canal 

 Construction of Kuda Oya - Sinhalayagama Transfer Canal 

 Development of Village Irrigation Systems (Minor tanks) 

 Handapanagala pickup Anicut 

 Construction of New Feeder Canal System in Wallawaya and 

Thanamalvila areas 

 land acquisition, resettlement, infrastructure development & 

reforestation 
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Overall benefits 

of the Project 
 Annual trans-basin diversion 145 MCM water from the Uma Oya 

basin to Kirindi Oya basin 

 Providing water to 4500 ha of new lands and 1500 ha of existing 

lands.  

 Providing 30MCM drinking and industrial water in Monaragala 

and Hambanthota Districts.  

 Livestock and inland fisheries development  

 Employment opportunities for many skilled and un-skilled 

personnel 

 Knowledge transfer of modern technology  

 Improve 54 Minor tanks and providing water for 110 tanks 
 

 

 

2. Integrated Watershed and Water Resources Management Project 

(IWWRMP) 

 
Estimated Cost Rs. 2884.33 Mn Benefiting Districts Kurunegala, Kandy, 

Trincomalle, Hambantota, 

Mannar, Anuradhapura, Ampara, 

Badulla, Batticalo, Galle,  

Funding Source World Bank 

and GOSL 

Reservoir Capacity 

/ Irrigable Land 

Area 

220,456 Acres 

Project Duration 18.05.2020 - 

31.10.2025 

Beneficiaries Under this project rehabilitation 

of existing canal works and 

headwork will be done. Because 

of that it is difficult to figure out 

exact number. 

Allocation 2021 Rs. 2,916.8 Mn Allocation for 2022 Rs. 952.53 Mn 

Cumulative 

Financial 

Rs. 2,286.9 Mn Overall Physical 

Progress 
1% 

Financial 

progress 2021 
- 

Work done in 

2021 
- 

Overall benefits 

of the Project 

 Reduce water losses 

 Reduce the river bank erosion.    

 The durability and sustainability of the irrigation schemes will be 

improved 

 Enhancing the cultivation. 

 Improve the safety of structures        

 Water saving 
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2.2.  Challenges  

 

 Carrying out New Constructions, Rehabilitation, restoration, and maintenance works with 

rapidly changing market prices and availability of construction materials (cement, steel, 

rubber water stops, gabion boxes etc.) 
 

 Finding suitable sand, gravel and earth for new constructions and rehabilitation works and 

obtaining permits or approvals from relevant agencies. (Geological Surveys and Mines 

Bureau, Forest Department and Wildlife Conservation Department) 
 

 100 % utilization of the allocated funds from budget with the pandemic situation.  
 

 To safeguard the quality of the water in the reservoirs, lakes, ponds, rivers and natural water 

ways from effects of human interventions. 
 

 Operation and Maintenances of irrigation infrastructure with the impact of climate change.  
  

 Limitations of land for construction of new reservoirs for flood and drought mitigation. 
 

 Changing farmers’ attitude over cultivation of other field crops to increase extent of 

cultivation and achieve self-sufficiency in other field crops. 
 

 Improve land productivity (cultivation of maximum extent of land from the available water 

by applying new water management techniques and crop diversification).  
 

 Maintain equal water rights for all farmers in head end as well as in the tail end of the canal. 
 

 Practicing good water management by controlling spreading of invasive plant in reservoirs 

and irrigation canals 
 

 Difficulties in development of technical capabilities in flood forecasting and early warning 

due to limited human resources.   
 

 Difficulties in attending maintenance and repairs on real time hydrometric data 

management system.  
 

 Establish river gauging stations in un-gauged catchments which are significant in water 

resources development in the country and updating already established stations.  
 

 Clearing all drainage canals in urban areas and maintain in good condition in order to 

facilitate draining of flood water as early as possible with less damage to people and 

property. 
 

 Removing unauthorized encroachments in reservations, acquisition of defined important 

reservations and other environmental sensitive areas and safeguarding such lands. 
 

 Prevention of salinity intrusion in main rivers due to lowering of riverbed. 
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  Protection of rivers and adjacent areas from excessive, non-technical and illegal, sand and 

other mining activities. 
 

 Providing drinking and industrial water requirement while fulfilling irrigation water 

requirements with safeguarding the riparian water rights.  
 

 Protection of waterways from human encroachment. 
 

 Adaptation and upgrading new technologies to existing systems. 

 

 

2.3.  Future goals 

 

 100% achievement of the food security for the nation. 
 

 Minimized flood damage to humans and properties. 
 

 Providing irrigation water supply for another 150,000 acres of land. 
 

 Increasing cropping intensity nearly to 2.0 by crop diversification. 
 

 Maintaining all rivers clean. 
 

 Preparation of master plan for river basin management. 
 

 Fulfill the drinking and industrial water requirement and other user’s requirement by 

safeguarding environment and wild life. 
 

 Cultivation of all cultivable land in the wet zone by providing sufficient drainage facilities 

 

 

 

 

………………………………..    ……….……………….. 

Eng. K.D. Nihal Siriwardhana    Eng. K.W. Ivan De Silva 

Director General of Irrigation     Secretary 

Irrigation Department      Ministry of Irrigation 
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Chapter 03 – Overall Financial Performance for the Year ended 31st 

December 2021 
 

3.1. Statement of Financial Performance 
ACA - F  

Statement of Financial Performance for the period ended 31.12.2021 
 Rs.   

Budget 
(2021) 

  

N
o

te
   Actual  

(2021)  2020 
        

-    Revenue Receipts  -  -  
- Income Tax 1 -  -  

-    

Taxes on Domestic Goods & 

Services 2 -  - 

     ACA-1 

           -    Taxes on International Trade 3 -  - 

               -    Non Tax Revenue & Others 4 -  -  
-    Total Revenue Receipts (A)  -  -  

 -    Non-Revenue Receipts      
       -    Treasury Imprests  16,334,636,000  14,093,489,206 ACA-3 

   -    Deposits  633,489,600  605,051,802 ACA-4 

    -    Advance Accounts  191,325,306  136,268,180 ACA-5/5(a) 

       -    Other Receipts      

    -    Total Non-Revenue Receipts (B)  17,159,450,906  14,834,809,188  

      -    
Total Revenue Receipts & Non-

Revenue Receipts C=(A)+(B)  17,159,450,906  14,834,809,188  

 Remittance to the Treasury (D)      

 
Net Revenue Receipts & Non-

Revenue Receipts E = (C)-(D)      

 Less : Expenditure      
   -    Recurrent Expenditure      

-    

Wages, Salaries & Other 

Employment Benefits 5 2,905,757,920  2,898,249,890 

 

-    Other Goods & Services 6 294,714,372  219,489,740 ACA-2(ii) 

-    Subsidies, Grants and Transfers 7 13,096,353  12,466,625  
   -    Interest Payments 8     

-    Other Recurrent Expenditure 9     

-    Total Recurrent Expenditure (F)  3,213,568,645  3,130,206,255  

 Capital Expenditure      

-    

Rehabilitation & Improvement 

of Capital Assets 10 2,141,398,948   1,602,537,426  
- Acquisition of Capital Assets 11 5,597,916,828   6,761,265,736  
-    Capital Transfers 12    ACA-2(ii) 

          -    Acquisition of Financial Assets 13    
 

-    Capacity Building 14     
-    Other Capital Expenditure 15 770,102,095  98,963,866  

-    Total Capital Expenditure (G)  8,524,208,498  8,465,997,028  

 Deposit Payments  938,620,694  704,230,085  

 Advance Payments    173,111,463  199,086,527 ACA-4 

 Main Ledger Expenditure (H)  1,111,732,157  903,316,612 ACA-5 

 Total Expenditure I=(F+G+H)  12,849,509,300  12,499,519,895  

                          - 

Balance as at 31st December 

J = (E-I)  4,309,941,606  2,335,289,293  

 

Balance as per the Imprest 

Reconciliation Statement  4,306,333,506  2,331,581,193 
                   

ACA-7 

 

Imprest Balance as at 31st 

December  3,608,100  3,708,100 ACA-3 

   4,309,941,606  2,335,289,293  
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3.2. Statement of Financial Position 

 

 Statement of Financial Position as at 31st December 2021   ACA - P  
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3.3. Statement of Cash Flows 
ACA-C  

Statement of Cash Flows – for the Period ended 31st December 2020 

             Actual 

  2021 (Rs.) 2020 (Rs.) 
Cash Flows from Operating Activities     
Total Tax Receipts   
Fees, Fines, Penalties and Licenses   
Profit   
Non-Revenue Receipts   

Revenue Collected from the Other Heads            222,218,762             246,194,535  

Imprest Received       16,334,636,000  14,093,489,206  
Recoveries from Advance            191,903,985  136,429,518  

Deposit Received            633,489,600  605,051,802  

Total Cash generated from Operations (a) 17,382,248,347 15,081,165,061 
   

Less - Cash disbursed for:   
Personal Emoluments & Operating Payments         6,125,296,150          3,115,635,495  
Subsidies & Transfer Payments            13,096,353            12,466,625  

Expenditure on Other Heads       4,578,222,019    2,601,597,643  

Imprest Settlement to Treasury - - 

Advance Payments       175,380,261     198,525,301  

Deposit Payments          938,620,694          704,230,083  

Total Cash disbursed for Operations (b) 11,830,615,477 6,632,455,147 
   

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (C) = (a) - (b) 5,551,632,870 8,448,709,914 
   

Cash Flows from Investing Activities   

Interest   

Dividends   

Divestiture Proceeds & Sale of Physical Assets   
Recoveries from On Lending   

Recoveries from Advance   

Total Cash generated from Investing Activities (d)   
   

Less - Cash disbursed for:   

Purchase or Construction of Physical Assets & Acquisition of 

Other Investment         5,551,732,870 
        

8,450,855,107 

Total Cash disbursed for Investing Activities (e) 5,551,732,870     8,450,855,107  
   

NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (F) = (d) - (e) (5,551,732,870) (8,450,855,107) 
   

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING & 

INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES (g) = (c) + (f) (100,000) (2,145,193) 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities   

Local Borrowings   

Foreign Borrowings   
Grants Received   

Total Cash generated from Financing Activities (h)   
   

Less - Cash disbursed for:   

Repayment of Local Borrowings   

Repayment of Foreign Borrowings   

Total Cash disbursed for Financing Activities (i)   
   

NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (J) = (h) - (i)   
   

Net Movement in Cash (k) = (g) - (j)          (100,000)        (2,145,193) 

Opening Cash Balance as at 01st January      3,708,100  5,853,293  

Closing Cash Balance as at 31st December 3,608,100 3,708,100 



99 
 

3.4. Notes to the Financial Statements 

 

Basis of Reporting 

 

1. Reporting Period 

 

The reporting period for these Financial Statements is from 01st January to 31St December 

2021. 

 

2. Basis of Measurement  

 

The Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost modified by the revaluation 

of certain assets and accounted on a modified cash basis, unless otherwise specified. 
 

The figures of the Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan rupees rounded to the 

nearest rupee. 

 

3. Recognition of Revenue 

 

Exchange and non-exchange revenues are recognised on the cash receipts during the 

accounting period irrespective of relevant revenue period. 

 

4. Recognition and Measurement of Property, Plant and Equipment (PP&E) 

 

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is recognized when it is probable that future 

economic benefit associated with the assets will flow to the entity and the cost of the assets 

can be reliably measured. 
 

PP&E are measured at a cost and revaluation model is applied when cost model is not 

applicable. 

 

5. Property, Plant and Equipment Reserve 

 

This revaluation reserve account is the corresponding account of PP&E. 

 

6. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 

Cash & cash equivalents include local currency notes and coins on hand as at 31st December 

2021. 

 

7. Changes in Formats of Financial Statements & Adjustment of Comparative Figures 

 

Relevant adjustments have been made to the comparative figures for the year 2020 in line 

with the changes made in the financial statements for the year 2021. 
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3.5. Performance of the Revenue Collection 

  Rs. ,000 

Revenue 

Code 

Description of 

the Revenue 

Code 

Revenue Estimate Collected Revenue 

Original Final Amount 

(Rs) 

as a % of Final 

Revenue 

Estimate 

 Not Relevant     

 

 

3.6. Performance of the Utilization of Allocation                                   

  Rs. ,000 

Type of 

Allocation 

Allocation Actual 

Expenditure 

(Rs.) 

Allocation Utilization               

as a % of Final 

Allocation 
Original Final 

     
Recurrent  

 

3,488,200.00 3,299,910.00 3,213,568.65 

 

97.38% 

Capital  11,180,300.00 11,368,590.00 8,525,231.50 74.98% 

 

 

3.7. In terms of F.R. 208 grant allocations for expenditure to this Department/ District 

Secretariat /Provincial Council as an agent of the other Ministries / Departments  

             Rs. ,000 

S.l. 

No 

Allocation 

Received from 

Which Ministry 

Department 

Purpose of the Allocation Allocation Actual 

Expenditure 

Allocation 

Utilization 

as a % of 

Final 

Allocation 

Original Final 

1 
 

 

 

 

 

District 

Secretariat- 

Anuradhapura 

Construction of Electric fence 

around Omarakada paddy field 

 

917.897 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

90.5% 

2 For Administration expenditure 

(Horowpathana Divisional 

Secretariat) 

90.00   

3 677.200 
  

4 

For the tasks to be performed by 

the Divisional Secretariat - 

Padaviya 

800.000 

 

3,257,697 

 

2,947,696.41 

5 

For the tasks to be performed by 

the Divisional Secretariat - 

Horowpathana 

630.600 

  

6 

For Administration expenditure 

(Kabithigollewa Divisional 

Secretariat) 

142.00 
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7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

District 

Secretariat-  

Trincomalee 

 

For the payment of monthly 

allowance to the officers 

working on casual basis under 

Yan oya reservoir project 

 
 

322.536 

   

8 

 

For Administrative expenditure 

under Yan oya reservoir project 

(Gomarankadawala) 

200.000 

   

9 

 

Construction of Electric fence 

around Malporuwa village 

under Divisional Secretariat -

Gomarankadawala 

 3,395.968 4,637.280 4,150.762 89.5% 

10 

 

For Administration expenditure 

(Gomarankadawala Divisional 

Secretariat) 

326.536 

   

11 

 

For the payment of monthly 

allowance to the officers 

working on casual basis under 

Yan oya reservoir project 

392.24 

   

12 

 

District 

Secretariat- 

Gampaha 
Land acquisition for the 3rd 

mile of Kelani North Bund 

39,085.50 39,085.50 39,085.50 100% 

13 

 

District 

Secretariat- 

Rathnapura 
Land acquisition for Ellawewa 

reservoir project 

952.00 952.00 0 0% 

14 

 

 

Government 

Press 

For printing documents of 

Hydrology and Disaster 

Management Branch – 

Irrigation Department 

45.36 45.36 45.36 100% 

15 

 

Ministry of 

Irrigation 

 

Staff training 973.27 973.27 650.242 67% 

16 

 

Department of 

Railways 
Settlement of rail warrants 

expenses 

0.772 0.772 0.772 100% 
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3.8. Performance of the Reporting of Non - Financial Assets  

  Rs. ,000 

Assets 

Code 

Code 

Description 

Balance as per 

Board of 

Survey Report 

as at 31.12.2021 

Balance as per 

financial position 

Report as at 

31.12.2021 

yet to be Accounted Reporting 

Progress 

as a % 

9151 

 

 

Building and 

Structures 

2,212,706.825 

 

2,231,404.159 There are problems of 

confirming the building 

ownership. Asset value of 

the buildings will be 

accounted with assistance 

of valuation department 

after solving the 

ownership issues. 

 

 

9152 Machinery 

and 

Equipment 

5,011,647.879 5,238,097.927 3%  

 

97% 

9153 Land 85,103,480.527 91,643,764.469 There are problems of 

confirming the land 

ownership. Asset value 

of the lands will be 

accounted with 

assistance of valuation 

department after solving 

the land ownership. 

 

9154 Intangible 

Assets 

- -   

9155 Biological 

Assets 

- -   

9160 Work in 

Progress 

112,166.805 156,780.116  100% 

9180 Lease Assets - -   

 

 

3.9. Auditor General's Report 

Auditor General's Report is attached as Annexure IV. 
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Chapter 04 - Performance indicators 
 

4.1. Performance indicators of the Institute (Based on the Action plan) 

 

 

Specific Indicators Actual output as a percentage (%) of the expected 

output 

90% - 100%  75% - 89% 50% - 74% 

Annual Cultivation Performance  89%  

 Physical Progress 100%   

 Financial Progress 90% (Without liability)   

 

 

Chapter 05 - Performance in Achievement of Sustainable Development 

Goals (SDG) 
 

5.1. Indicate the identified respective Sustainable Development Goals 

 

Goal / Objective Targets Indicators of 

the 

achievement 

Progress of the Achievement to 

date 

0 - 49 50 - 74 75 - 100 

Increased surface 

water storage 

capacity   

1000 MCM by 2030 
Increasing 

storage 
26%  

 

Increased 

Cropping 

Intensity  

1.8 by 2030 

Annual 

cropping 

intensity 

  

99% 

Increased 

Irrigable Area 
150,000 acres 

Extent of 

cultivation 
28%  

 

Reduced Annual 

Flood  
By 50% 

Annual flood 

damage 
  

No flood occurs 

during 2021 

 

5.2. Achievements and Challenges in fulfilling the Sustainable Development Goals: 

 

Achievements 

 Storage capacity was increased by 216.7 MCM from 2018. 

 Irrigation facilities were provided for 17,217 ha new and existing land from 2018. 

 Annual cropping intensity was 1.78. 

 No flood occurs during the year 2021. 
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Challenges 

 There are limitations for constructing of new reservoirs due to environmental, social 

and financial issues. 

 Providing irrigation facilities for new lands is limited due to environmental issues. 

 Maintaining cropping intensity above 90% in season and occurring flood are highly 

depended on weather patterns.  

 

 

 

Chapter 06 - Human Resource Profile 

 

6.1. Cadre Management 

 

 Approved Cadre Existing Cadre Vacancies/ Excess ** 

Senior 437 360 77 

Territory 165 27 138 

Secondary 2,722 2,029 693 

Primary 3,758 2,907 851 

 

 

6.2. ** Briefly state how the shortage or excess in human resources has been affected to the 

performance of the institute 

 

There is deficiency in human resources and it will directly affect for achieving targeted goals.  

 

 The targeted performance of the Department is difficult to achieve.  

 There are many difficulties faced by the staff to complete the duties in due dates.   

 Additional expenses have to be bared for the officers for the arrangement of acting and 

covering up duties.  

 Office staff including staff grade officers has to attend for additional over time and 

holiday work due to shortage of existing human resources. 
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6.3. Human Resource Development 

 

Foreign Training Programmes 

 

S.I. 

No 

Name of the 

programme 

No. of 

participants 

Programme 

duration 

Amount 

(Rs.) 

Nature of 

programme 
Knowledge gain 

1 Training on 

Sustainable Basin 

Management in a 

Context Changes 

1 21 Days - 

Foreign 

(Online) 

Knowledge about 

Sustainable Basin 

Management 

2 Practical 

Methodology for 

Flood Control 

Planning and River 

Basin Management 

in Asia Region 

2 24 Days - 

Foreign 

(Online) 

Knowledge about 

Flood Control 

Planning and River 

Basin Management 

3 Masters Degree in 

Flood Disaster Risk 

Reduction 
2 

11.5 

Months 
243,588 

Foreign 

(Abroad) 

Higher Educational 

Qualifications for 

the carrier 

4 The Project for 

Human Resource 

Development 

Scholarship by 

Japanese Grant Aid 

(JDS) for the 

Academic Year 

2021/2022 

2 2 Years 258,216 

Foreign 

(Abroad) 

Higher Educational 

Qualifications for 

the carrier 

5 Participatory 

Irrigation 

Management System 

for Paddies 

1 10 Days 

- 

Foreign 

(Online) 

Knowledge about 

Participatory 

Irrigation 

Management 

System for Paddies 

6 Seminar on 

Management of 

International 

Engineering Projects 

in Sri Lanka 

9 10 Days 

- 

Foreign 

(Online) 

Knowledge about 

International 

Engineering 

Projects 
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Examinations 

 

S.I. 

No 

Name of the 

programme 

No. of 

participants 

Programme 

duration 

Amount 

(Rs.) 

Nature of 

programme 
Knowledge gain 

1 Senior Technical 

Examination 

(Practical) 96  630,000 

Practical 

Exam 

Promotional 

Exam for 

Engineering 

Assistants 

2 First Efficiency Bar 

Examination for 

Engineering 

Assistants Grade III 
41 1 Day 44,000 

Written 

Exam 

Efficiency Bar 

Examination for 

Engineering 

Assistants in 

Grade III 

3 Second Efficiency 

Bar Examination 

for Engineering 

Assistants Grade II 
71 1 Day 71,000 

Written 

Exam 

Efficiency Bar 

Examination for 

Engineering 

Assistants in 

Grade II 

4 Third Efficiency 

Bar Examination 

for Engineering 

Assistants in Grade 

I 

30 1 Day 141,000 

Written 

Exam 

Efficiency Bar 

Examination for 

Engineering 

Assistants in 

Grade I 

5 First Efficiency Bar 

Examination for 

Technical Aids in 

Grade III 

53 1 Day 52,000 

Written 

Exam 

Efficiency Bar 

Examination for 

Technical Aids in 

Grade III 

6 First Efficiency Bar 

Examination for 

Store Keepers in 

Grade III 

1 1 Day  

Written 

Exam 

Efficiency Bar 

Examination for 

Store Keepers in 

Grade III 

7 First Efficiency Bar 

Examination for 

Engineers in SLES 

Grade III 

19 1 Day 22,000 

Written 

Exam 

Efficiency Bar 

Examination for 

Engineers in 

SLES Grade III 

8 Open Recruitment 

Examination for 

SLTS and 

Engineering 

Assistants Service 

to the Irrigation 

Department  

653 2 Day  

Written 

Exam 
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MSc./ PG Programmes 

 

S.I. 

No 
Name of the 

programme 
No. of 

participants 
Programme 

duration 
Amount 

(Rs.) 
Nature of 

programme 
Knowledge gain 

1 

Master in 

Engineering 

Degree 

8 2 Years 2,592,000 
Masters 

Degree 

Higher 

Educational 

Qualifications for 

the carrier 

2 

Master of 

Business 

Management 

Degree 

2 2 Years 278,000 
Masters 

Degree 

Higher 

Educational 

Qualifications for 

the carrier 

3 

M.Sc. in 

Engineering 

Geology 

1 2 Years 352,000 
Masters 

Degree 

Higher 

Educational 

Qualifications for 

the carrier 

4 
M.Phil. Degree 

Program 
1 3 Years 303,000 

Master of 

Philosophy 

Higher 

Educational 

Qualifications for 

the carrier 

 

 

Local Training Programmes 

 

S.I. 

No 
Name of the programme 

No. of 

participants 

Programme 

duration 
Amount 

(Rs.) 
Nature of 

programme 
Knowledge gain 

1 Advance certificate 

course in public 

procurement & Asset 

Management 

10 3 months 285,000 Local 

Knowledge about 

public 

procurement & 

asset management 

2 Training programme on 

Introduction to Graphic 

Application 

25 1 day 55,000 Local 

Knowledge about 

Graphic 

Application 

3 CPD course (GIS) 1 2 weeks 10,000 Local GIS knowledge 

4 Certificate course for EB 
16 3 months 280,000 Local 

Efficiency bar 

knowledge 

5 Training programme for 

primary level staff 

officers 
75 2 days 90,000 Local 

Knowledge about 

Irrigation 

department related 

works 
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6 STE refresher course for 

EAA 100 6 days 30,000 Local 

Refresh 

knowledge for 

STE theory exam 

7 International conference 

- Sri Lanka Geo 

technical society 
4 1 day 16,000 Local 

 

8 Interviewing the 

Engineering technicians 

in Irrigation Department 

of ECSL for registration 

10 1 day 11,500 Local 

 

9 workshop on "Technical 

Guideline for village 

tank desilting'' 
4 2 days - Local 

 

10 Seminar on Essential for 

effective Contract 

Administration, 

performance 

management and 

supervision in 

infrastructure projects 

3 1 day - Local 

Contract 

administration 

knowledge 

 

 

* Briefly state how the training program contributed to the performance of the institution 

 

Training enhances the knowledge with latest technology and improves the capacity of the staff. 

It will help for better decision making. It is expected to achieve the objectives of the irrigation 

department more efficiently and effectively. 
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Chapter 07 - Compliance Report 

 

No Applicable Requirement Compliance 

Status 

(Complied/ 

Not 

Complied) 

Brief 

explanation for 

Non-

Compliance 

Corrective 

Actions proposed 

to avoid non- 

compliance in 

future 

01 The following Financial statements/ 

accounts have been submitted on due 

date 

   

1.1 Annual Financial statements Complied   

1.2 Advance to public officers account Complied   

1.3 Trading and Manufacturing Advance 

Accounts (Commercial Advance 

Accounts) 

   

1.4  Stores Advance Accounts    

1.5 Special Advance Accounts    

1.6 Others    

02 Maintenance of book and registers 

(FR 445) 

   

2.1 Fixed assets register has been 

maintained and update in terms of 

public Administration Circular 

267/2018 

Complied   

2.2 Personal emoluments register/ personal 

emoluments cards has been maintained 

and update 

Complied   

2.3 Register of Audit queries has been 

maintained and update 

Complied   

2.4 Register of Internal Audit report has 

been maintained and update 

Complied   

2.5 All the monthly account summaries 

(CIGAS)are prepared and submitted to 

the Treasury on due date 

Complied   

2.6 Register for cheques and money orders   

has been maintained and update 

Complied   

2.7 Inventory register has been maintained 

and update 

Complied   
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2.8 Stocks Register has been maintained 

and update 

Complied   

2.9 Register or Losses has been maintained 

and update 

Complied   

2.10 Commitment Register has been 

maintained and update 

Updated 

under 

CIGAS 

system 

  

2.11 Register of Counterfoil Books (GA-

N20) has been maintained and update 

Complied   

03 Delegation of Functions for Financial 

Control (FR 135) 

   

3.1 The Financial Authority has been 

delegated within the institute 

Complied   

3.2 The delegation of Financial authority 

has been communicated within the 

institute 

Complied   

3.3 The authority has been delegated in such 

manner so as to pass cash transaction 

though two or more officers 

Complied   

3.4 The controls has been adhered to by the 

Accountants in terms of state Account 

Circular 171/2004 dated 11.05.2014 in 

using the Government payroll Software 

package 

Complied 

 

  

04 Preparation of Annual plans    

4.1 The annual action plan has been 

prepared 

Complied   

4.2 The annual procurement plan has been 

prepared 

Complied   

4.3 The annual Internal Audit plan has 

been prepared 

Complied   

4.4 The Annual estimate has been prepared 

and submitted to the NBD on due date 

Complied 

 

  

4.5 Preparation of Annual plans Complied   
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05 Audi queries    

5.1 All the audit queries has been replied 

within the specified time by the 

Auditor General Internal Audit 

Not 

Complied 

Information has 

to collect from 

regional offices 

and other 

divisions. 

 

06 Internal Audit    

6.1 The internal audit plan has been 

prepared at the beginning of the year 

after consulting the Auditor General in 

terms of Financial Regulation 134(2) 

DMA/1-2019 

Complied   

6.2 All the internal audit report has been 

replied within one month 

Not 

Complied 

Relevant 

branches not 

submitted 

their replies 

on time  

Issue reminders 

and make 

arrangements  to 

get the attention 

of the audit 

management 

committee 

meeting 

6.3 Copies of all the internal audit reports 

has been Submitted to the Management 

Audit Department in terms of sub – 

section 40(4) of the National Audit Act. 

No 19 of 2018   

Complied   

6.4 All the copies of internal audit reports 

has been submitted to the Auditor 

General in terms of Financial 

Regulation 134(3) 

Complied   

07 Audit and Management Committee    

7.1 Minimum 04 meeting of the Audit and 

Management Committee has been held 

during the year as per the DMA Circular 

1-2019 

Not 

Complied 

Due to Covid - 

19 pandemic 

situation, third 

Audit 

Management 

meeting could 

not be  held 

Held meetings 

using Zoom 

technology 
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08 Asset Management    

8.1 The information about purchases of 

assets and disposals was submitted to 

the Comptroller General’s Office in 

terms of paragraph 07 of the Asset 

Management Circular No 01/2017 

Complied   

8.2 A suitable liaison officer was appointed 

to coordinate the implementation of the 

provisions of the circular and the 

details of the nominated officer was 

sent to the Comptroller General’s 

office in terms of paragraph 13 of the 

aforesaid circular 

Complied   

8.3 The boards of survey was conducted 

and the relevant reports submitted to 

the Auditor General on due date in 

terms of public Finance Circular No 

05/2016 

Complied   

8.4 The excess and deficits that were 

disclosed the through board of survey 

and other relating recommendation 

actions were carried out during the 

period specified in the circular 

Complied   

8.5 The disposal of condemn articles had 

been carried out in terms of FR 772 

Complied   

09 Vehicle Management    

9.1 The daily running charts and monthly 

summaries of pool vehicles had been 

prepared and submitted to the Auditor 

General on due date 

Complied   

9.2 The condemned vehicles had been 

disposed of within a period of less than 

6 months after condemning 

Not 

Complied 

Attempting to 

repair 

condemned 

vehicles as 

much as 

possible due 

to vehicle 

import 

restrictions 

Extension of 

time to one year 
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9.3 The vehicle logbooks had been 

maintained and updated. 

Complied   

9.4 The action has been taken in terms of 

F.R 103, 104, 109 and 110, with regard 

to every vehicle accident 

Complied   

9.5 The fuel consumption of vehicles has 

been re-tested in terms of the 

provisions of paragraph 3.1 of the 

public Administration Circular No 

30/2016 of 29.12.2016 

Not 

Complied  

Repeated fuel 

combustion 

testing is a 

disadvantage 

to the 

government 

as it reduces 

the fuel 

efficiency of 

the engine 

during 

vehicle use 

Checking and 

correcting fuel 

combustion 

abnormalities. 

9.6 The absolute ownership of leased 

vehicle log books has been transferred 

after the lease term    

Complied   

10 Management of Bank Accounts    

10.1 The bank reconciliation statements had 

been prepared got certified and made 

ready for audit by the due date. 

Complied   

10.2 The dormant accounts that had existed 

in the year under review or since 

previous years settled 

Complied   

10.3 The action had been taken in terms of 

financial Regulations regarding balance 

that had been disclosed through bank 

reconciliation statements and for which 

adjustments had to be made and had 

those balance been settled within one 

month 

Complied   
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11 Utilization of Provisions    

11.1 The provisions allocated had been 

spent without exceeding the limit 

Not 

Complied 

  

11.2 The liabilities not exceeding the 

provisions that remained at the end of 

the year as per the FR 94 (1) 

Complied   

12 Advances to public Officers Account    

12.1 The limits had been complied with Complied   

12.2 A time analysis had been carried out on 

the loans in arrears 

Complied   

12.3 The loan balances in arrears for over 

one year had been settled. 

  Actions are 

taking to 

reimbursement 

of loans 

13 General Deposit Account    

13.1 The action had been taken as per F.R 

571 in relation to disposal of lapsed 

deposits. 

  Actions are 

taking as per 

F.R. 571 

13.2 The control register for general 

deposits had been updated and 

maintained. 

Complied 

 

  

14 Imprest Account    

14.1 The balance in the cash book at the end 

of the year under review remitted to 

TOD 

Complied 

 

  

14.2 The ad- hoc sub imp rests had not been 

issued exceeding the limit approved as 

per F.R.371 settled within one month 

from the completion of the task. 

Complied   

14.3 The ad-hoc sub Imprest had not been 

issued exceeding the limit approved as 

per F.R 371 

Complied   

14.4 The balance of the Imprest account had 

been reconcile with the treasury books 

monthly 

Complied   
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15 Revenue Account    

15.1 The refunds from the revenue had been 

made in terms of the regulations 

Complied   

15.2 The revenue collection had been 

directly credited to the revenue account 

without credited to the deposit account 

Complied   

15.3 Returns if revenue forward to the 

Auditor General in terms of FR176 

Complied   

16 Human Resource Management    

16.1 The staff had been paid within the 

approved cadre. 

Complied   

16.2 All members of the staff have been 

issued duty list writing 

Complied   

16.3 All reports have been submitted to 

MSD in terms of their circular no 

04/2017 dated 20.09.2017 

Complied   

17 Provision of information to the 

public 

   

17.1 An information officer has been 

appointed and a proper register of 

information is maintained and updated 

in terms of Right to Information Act and 

Regulation 

Complied   

17.2 Information about the institution to the 

public have been provided by website 

or alternative measures and has it been 

facilitated to appreciate /allegation to 

public against the public authority by 

this website or alternative measures 

Complied   

17.3 Bi – Annual and Annual reports have 

been submitted as per section 08 and of  

the RTI Act 

Complied   

18 Implementing citizens charter    

18.1 A citizens charter / Citizens client’s 

charter has been formulated and 

implemented by the Institution in terms 

of the circular number 05/2008and 

05/2018(1) of Ministry of public 

Administration and Management 

Complied   
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18.2 A methodology has been devised by 

the Institution in order to monitor and 

assess the formulation and the 

implementation of Citizens Charter 

Citizens client’s charter as per 

paragraph 2.3 of the circular 

Complied   

19 Preparation of the Human Resource 

Plan 

   

19.1 A human resource plan has been 

prepared in terms of the format in 

Annexure 02 of public Administration 

Circular No 02/2018 dated 24.01.2018 

Complied   

19.2 A minimum training opportunity of not 

less than 12 hours per year for each 

member of the staff has been ensured 

in the aforesaid Human Resource plan 

Complied   

19.3 Annual performance agreements have 

been signed for the entire staff based 

on the format in Annexure 01 of the 

aforesaid Circular 

Complied   

19.4 A senior officer was appointed and 

assigned the responsibility of preparing 

the human resource development plan 

organizing capacity building programs 

and conducting skill development 

programs as per paragraph No 6.5 of 

the aforesaid Circular 

Complied   

20 Responses Audit paras    

20.1 The shortcomings pointed out in the 

audit paragraphs issued by the Auditor 

General for the previous years have 

been rectified 

 Actions are 

being taken. 

 

 

 



 

වාරිමාර්ග අමාත්‍ාාංශය යටතේ ක්‍රියාේමව වව ව‍ාපෘති 
நீர்ப்பாசன அமைச்சின் ஊடாக  நமடமுமைப்படுத்தப்படும் கருத்திட்டங்கள்  

Projects Implemented under the Ministry of Irrigation  

 

 
1. මහවැලි ජල සුරක්ෂිත්ත්ා ආතයෝජව වැඩසටහව/

 Mahaweli Water Security Investment Program (MIWSIP) 

 

  

වයඹ පෘළාේ මහ ඇළ ව‍ාපෘතිය/ மேல்  North Western 

Province Canal Project (NWPCP) 

 

 

උතුරු මැද පෘළාේ මහ ඇළ ව‍ාපෘතිය/ வட ேத்திய ோகாண கால்வாய் North Central Province 

Canal Project (NCPCP) 
 

 

මිණිතේ වම් ඉවුරු ඇළ පුවරුේථාපෘව ව‍ාපෘතිය/  / Minipe 

Left Bank Canal Rehabilitation Project (MLBCRP) 

 

 

ඇමුණුම  I 
பின்னிமைப்பு  I 

Annexure  I 



 

2. උමා ඔය බහුවාර්ය සාංවර්ධව ව‍ාපෘතිය/  Uma 

Oya Multipurpose Development Project 
 

  

පුහුල්තපෘොල තේල්ල/  

Puhulpola Dam 

ඩයරබා ජලාශය/ Dyaraba 

Dam 

  

  

ඉහළ පීඩව උමග/ மேல் அழுத்த சுரங்கப்பாதத/ Upper Pressure Tunnel (UPT) 

 

3. තමොරගහවන්ද වළුගඟ  ජලාශය ව‍ාපෘතිය/  

Moragahakanda Kaluganga Reservoir Project 
 

 
 

                                

 

 

තමොරගහවන්ද ජලාශය/ 

 Moragahakanda Reservoir 

වළුගඟ ජලාශය/  

Kaluganga Reservoir 



 

  

ගුරුතවල වැවත් පෘදාංචි කිරීතම් ප්‍රතශශය/ குருவவல முள்குடிமயற்ற பிரமதசம்/ Guruwela resettlement area 

 
4. තශශගුණිව අවබලපෘෑම් අවම කිරීතම් ව‍ාපෘතිය/ 

 / Climate Resilience Improvement Project (CRIP) 

  

තේරාතදණිය තෙන්වලාඩි මාර්ගතේ හග්ගල වාය යව ස්ථාව 

වැඩිදයුණු කිරිම/ 

 Rectification of 

Land Slide along the Peradeniya Chenkaladdi Road in 

Haggala 

බේතුලුඔය - උඩේපුව - ඇන්ඩිමුතවයි පෘාතර් උදේපුව වගරතේ 

වව පෘාලමක් ඉදකිරීම/

 Construction of new bridge at Udappuwa 

town on Baththuluoya – Udappuwa – Andimunai Road 

 
5. ඵලදායිත්ා ප්‍රවර්ධව හා වාරිමාර්ග පෘශධි වාර්යක්මමත්ා වැඩිදයුණු කිරීතම් ව‍ාපෘතිය/

Productivity Enhancement and Irrigation System Efficiency Improvement Project 

(PEISEIP) 
 

පෘැරෂුට් ත්ැටි තබදා හැරීම සහ පිටිතේ ත්ැබීම - මහනුවර දස්ත්‍රික්වය/ பாராசூட் தட்டுக்கதை விநிமயாகித்தல் 
ேற்றும் கைத்தில் தவப்பது - கண்டி ோவட்டம்/ Distributing Parachute Trays and Placing them on field 

– Kandy District 



 

6. තශශගුණිව විපෘර්යාසයන්ට අනුහුරුවීම සඳහා වූ ඒවාබශධ ජල වළමවාවරණ ව‍ාපෘතිය/ 

 Climate Resilient Integrated Water Management Project (CRIWMP) 

 

 

  

ගතල්ගම වැව -  අළුේහල්මිල්ලෑව එල්ලාංගා පෘශධිය/ 
கமலகே வவவ – கசிவு - அழுத்ஹல்ேிமலவா 
அருவி அதேப்பு/ Galegama Wewa – Spill - 

Aluthhalmillewa Cascade System 

ඇත්ාබැඳිවැව කුඩා වැව -  ඇත්ාබැඳිවැව එල්ලාංගා 

පෘශධිය/ அதவபந்திவவவ குடவவவ - 
அதவபந்திவவவ அருவி அதேப்பு/ 

Athabendiwewa Kudawewa - Athabendiwewa 

Cascade System 
 

 

 

7. ත්ල්පිටිගල ජලාශ ව‍ාපෘතිය /  Thalpitigala Reservoir 

Project 

 

 

  

භූවිද‍ාේමව පෘරීක්මණ/

 Geological Investigation 

මාර්ග ඉදකිරීම/ 

 Road Construction 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

8.  මල්වතු ඔය, මාදුරු ඔය සහ කුඹුක්වන් ඔය ගාංගා තරෝණි ආ‍රිත්ව භූගත් ජල විමාංසව ජාලයක් 

ස්ථාපිත් කිරීතම් නියමු ව‍ාපෘතිය / 

 Pilot Project on Establishment of Groundwater 

Monitoring Network in Malwathu Oya, Maduru Oya & Kumbukkan Oya River 

Basins 
 

  

පෘරීක්මණ ළාං වැණීම/ கண்காணிப்பு கிணறு 
மதாண்டுதல்/ Drilling of Monitoring well 

සම්පූර්ණ වරව ලද වැසි මාපෘවය සමඟ පෘරීක්මණ ළාං 

අඩවිය / ேதை ோனியுடன் கூடிய கண்காணிப்பு 
கிணறு தைம்/ Completed Monitoring Well Site 

with Rain Gauge 

 

 

9.  නුවරඑළතේ බැරැක්ත්ැන්ව වැව ප්‍රිසාංස්වරණය කිරීම/

/ Restoration of Barrack Plain Tank in Nuwara Eliya 

 

  

 

 

 

වැතේ තරොන්මඩ වැණීම සහ ඉවේ කිරීම/ குைத்தில்  உள்ை வண்டல் ேண்தண மதாண்டி அகற்றுதல்/ 

Excavation & removal of silt in tank 

 

 



 

10.  මාදුරුඔය දකුණු ඉවුර සාංවර්ධව ව‍ාපෘතිය/ 

 /Maduru Oya Right Bank Development 

 

  

ප්‍රධාව ඇල ඉදකිරීම/ பிரதான கால்வாய் கட்டுோனம்/ Construction of Main Canal 

 

11.  පෘැලවේත් ලාංවා සීනි සමාගතම් පෘර්යන්ත් ප්‍රතශශ ජවාවාස භූමිතයි  වාරි සාංවර්ධව සැලැස්ම/ 

/ Peripheral area of 

settlers in Pelawatta Sugar Plantation area 

 

  

මාන්වඩ වැව ඉදකිරීම/ ேண்கட குைம் நிர்ோணிப்பு/ Construction of Mankada wewa 

 

 

 



 

වාරිමාර්ග දෙපාර්තදේන්තුව යටදේ ක්‍රියාේමව වව වයාපති 
நீர்ப்பாசனத் திணைக்களத்தின் ஊடாக  நணடமுணைப்படுத்தப்படும் கருத்திட்டங்கள் 

Projects Implemented under the Irrigation Department 
 

1. ෙැදුරු ඔය ජලාශ වයාපතිය/ தெதுறு ஓயா நீர்த்தெக்கம்/ Deduru Oya Reservoir Project 

  

දැදුරු ඔය ජලාශය/ தெதுறு ஓயா நீர்த்தெக்கம்/ 

Deduru Oya Reservoir 
ප්‍රධාා  ලල ාා්ගයය - වම් ඉවුර/ LB கால்வாய்/ Left bank 

main canal 
 

2. මැණික් ගඟ ජලාශ වයාපතිය/ மாணிக்க கங்கக நீர்த்தெக்கம்/ Menik Ganga Reservoir 

  

හඟුන් ආර ප ෝෂිත ලල ඉදිකිරීා/ ஹங்குன் ஆர  ஊட்டி கால்வாகய புனரகமத்ெல்/ Construction of 

Hangunara feeder canal 
 

3. රඹුක්වන් ඔය ජලාශ වයාපතිය/ ரம்புக்கன் ஓயா நீர்த்தெக்கம்/ Rambukkan Oya 

Reservoir Project 

  

රඹුක්කන් ඔය ජලාශපේ පේල්ල/ ரம்புக்கன் ஓயா 

அகண/ Rambukkan oya dam 

රඹුක්කන් ඔය ජලාශපේ පිටවා / ரம்புக்கன் ஓயா 

ஸ்பில் தவ/ Rambukkan oya Spill way 

ලමුණුා  II 
பின்னிணைப்பு  II 
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4. යාන් ඔය ජලාශ වයාපතිය/ யான் ஓயா நீர்த்தெக்கத் ெிட்டம்/ Yan Oya Reservoir Project 

  

ඉස්සන් වැව පසොපරොේව ඉදිකිරීා/ இஸ்ஸன் குளம் 
மதகு நிர்மாணிப்பு/ Construction of Issan Wewa 

Sluice 

ඉස්සන් වැව වැේ බැම්ා ඉදිකිරීා/ இஸ்ஸன் 
குளக்கட்டு நிர்மாணிப்பு/ Construction of Issan 

Wewa tank bund 
  

  

පකොපහොඹයස් වැව ලළ  ද්ධාතිය ඉදිකිරීා සහ සංව්ගධිත කුඹුරු/ ககாஹ ாம்பகஸ் கெொ கால்ொய் 
அமமப்பு மற்றும் அபிெிருத்தி கெய்யப்பட்ட ெயல் நிலங்கமள நிர்மாணித்தல்/ Construction of 

Kohombagas Wewa canal system and the developed paddy lands 
 

5. පහළ ඌව මධ්‍ය හා ුළු  පරිමා  ංවවර්ධ්‍ව වයාපතිය/ கீழ் ஊவா ெிட்டம்/ Lower Uva 

Project 

  

දෙබර ආර දපෝෂිත ඇල ඉදි කිරීම/ கடபரா அரா ஊட்டி கால்ொய் அமமத்தல்/ Construction of Debara ara 

feeder canal 



 

6. මහදගෝව වැව වයාපතිය/   மஹாக ாண வாவி  திட்டம்/ Mahagona Wewa Project 

  

ක්ප ේත්‍ර ලල ංංක   ඉදිකිරීා/ ெயல் கால்ொய் 
கட்டமமப்பின் கட்டுமானம் FC03/ Construction of 

field canal structure FC03 

ප්‍රධාා  ලල ඉදිකිරීා/ பிரதான கால்ொய் 
அமமத்தல்/ Construction of main canal 

 

 

7. දමොරා  ජලාශ වයාපතිය/ மமொறொன நீரத்த்தக்கம்/ Morana Reservoir Project 

  

තිස්සපුර වැව/ திஸ்ஸபுர குளம்/ Thissapura Tank ප්‍රධාා  ලළ (10 ව  කි.මී)/ பிரதான கால்ொய் 10ெது 
கி.மீ/ Main Canal at 10th Km 

  

තුන්ව  පබදුම් ලපලහි නි්ගමිත/ டி3 கால்ொயில் 
புல்தமர/ Turfing in D3 Canal 

 

 ායදී  ලළ/ நாகதீப கால்ொயில் R/W மற்றும் 
குளிக்கும் படி/ R/W and Bathing step at Nagadeepa 

canal 
 



 

8. ඇල්ල වැව ජලාශය/ எல்ல வாவி நீர்த்கதக் ம்/ Ella Wewa Reservoir 

 

  

පේල්පලහි කැණීම් කටයුතු සහ පසොපරොේපේ ඉදි කිරීම් 

කටයුතු/ அமண ஹதாண்டுதல் மற்றும் மதகு 
கட்டுதல்/ Dam excavation and sluice construction 

පසොපරොේව ඉදි කිරීම් කටයුතු/ மதகு கட்டுமானம்/ 
Sluice Construction 
 

 

9. වු ගල්ඔය ජලාශ වයාපතිය/ களுகல் ஓயொ நீரத்த்தக்கத ் திடட்ம்/ Kalugal Oya 

Reservoir Project 

  

පිටවා / கசிவுபாகெ/ Spill way කළුයල්ඔය ජලාශය /அமணகட்டு/ Dam 

10.  කුඹුක්වන්ඔය ජලාශ වයාපතිය/ கும்புக் ன் ஓயா நீர்த்கதக் ம்/ Kumbukkan Oya Reservoir 

Project 

 

 

 

මිනුම් කටයුතු/ கணக்ககடுப்பு பணி/ Surveying work භූ විදයා විා්ගශ / புெியியல் ஆய்வுகள்/ Geological 

Investigations 



 

11.  මුන්දෙනි ආරු ගවඟාදරෝණි ංවවර්ධ්‍ව වයාපතිය  රූගේ කිතුල්)/ முன்ததனி ஆறு ஆற்று வடிநீர் 
கமம்பாட்டுத் திட்டம் (ரு ம்  ிதுல்)/ Mundeni Aru River Basin Development Project 

(Rugam-Kithul) 

  

භූ විදයා විා්ගශ  / புெியியல் ஆய்வுகள்/ Geological Investigation 
 

12. දපොදළොන්වරු දිං්ත්‍රික් ංවවර්ධ්‍ව වයාපතිය/ கபாலன்னறுமெ மாெட்ட நீர்ப்பாென அபிெிருத்தித் 
திட்டம்/ Polonnaruwa District Irrigation Development Project 

  

 රාක්‍රා සමු්‍රපේ D1 උතුරු ලළ පකොන්ක්‍රීට් ආ ආස්තර ය කිරීා/ PSS 

இல் D1 ெடக்கு கால்ொயில் கால்ொய் ெரிமெ/ Canal lining in 

D1 North Canal in PSS 

කවුඩුල්ල වයා ාරපේ වවුල්පබෝක්කුව ං වහ  ලල  හැරවුම්  ද්ධාති 

ඉදිකිරීා/ கவுடுள்ள திட்டத்தில் ெெல்கபாக்குெ ெடிகால் 
கால்ொயில் 3 ெிரிகுடா ஒழுங்குபடுத்தல் நிர்மாணம்/ 
Construction of 3 bay regulator in Wavlbokkuwa Drainage canal in 

kawdulla scheme 

13. දමො රාගල දිං්ත්‍රික්වදක වනමවේ වාරි ංවවර්ධ්‍ව වයාපතිය  දවල්ලං්ං වදවෝෙය)/ 
தமானரா லல மாவட்டத்தில் துரிதப்படுத்தப்பட்ட நீர்ப்பாசன அபிவிருத்தி  ருத்திட்டம் 

)தவல்லஸ்ஸ நகவாதயா / Accelerated Irrigation Development Project in Monaragala 

District (Wellassa Navodaya) 
  

ාඩිත්ත වැව/ மடித்த  குளம்/ Madiththa Wewa ංමුණුමුල්ල තලයහ පයදර  ාර/ அமுனுமுல்ல தளக ஹகதர  
பாமத/ Amunumulla Thalagaha Gedara Road 



 

14. වැළණි ගඟ ආරක්ෂ  බැමි ප්‍රිංවං්වර ය කිරීදේ වයාපතිය/  ளனி நதி அலணக் ட்டு 
பாது ாப்பு/Kelani River Bund Protection Project 

  

කැළණි උතුරු පේල්ල වැඩිදියුණු කිරිා/ களனி ெடக்கு 
மேடட்ுக்கான மேே்பாடுகள்/ Improvements to 

Kelani North bund 

උතුරු පේල්ල පු රුත්ථා  ය/ வடக்கு ககர தமட்டு 

புனரகமப்பு/ Rehabilitation of North bund 

 

15. දගොනමගමුව වයාපතිය  ංවවර්ධ්‍වය කිරීම හා වැනමදිණු ක කිරීම/ த ாடி முவ ததாட்டியின் வளர்ச்சி 
மற்றும் கமம்பாடு ள்/ Development & Improvements to Godigamuwa Tank 

  

ංමු  ඉදිකිරීා /அமணக்கட்டு கட்டுமானம்/ Anicut 

construction 

වැේ බැම්ා ඉදිකිරීා/ குளக் ட்டு நிர்மாணிப்பு/ Bund 

construction 
 

16. වැළණි, වු , නිල්වලා හා ගව ගවගා දරෝණි වල ගවවතුර වැලැක්මේදේ  වයාපතිය/  ளனி, 
முண்கடனியாறு,  ளு, நில்வல மற்றும் ஜின்  ங்ல ப் படுல  ளில் தவள்ளத் தணிப்புத் 
திட்டங் ள்/ Flood Mitigtion Projects in Kelani , Mundeniaru, Kalu, Nilwala  & Gin 

Ganga basin 
  

කළුපයොඩ යංවතුර ආරක්   බැම්ා පු රුත්ථා  ය 

කිරීා/ MFP கட்டகமப்புககை தமம்படுத்ெல் 

களுத்துகை/ Improvements to MFP Structures – 

Kalutara 

කළුපයොඩ යංවතුර ආරක්   බැම්ා පු රුත්ථා  ය 

කිරීා/ களுதகாட தவள்ைக்ககர புனரகமப்பு- 

களு கங்கக வடிகால்/ Kalugoda Flood Bund 

Rehabilitation - Kalu Ganga Basin 



 

17. මන්වාරම දිං්ත්‍රික්වදක දයෝධ්‍ වැව යටදේ වව දපෝෂිත වැ  ප්‍රිංවං්වර ය කිරීම/ ராட்சத 
ததாட்டியின்  ீழ் ஊட்டி ததாட்டிலய புனர் நிர்மாணம் தசய்தல்/ Rehabilitation of Feeder 

tanks under Giants Tank in District Mannar 
 

  

ඉදි කර  ලඳ ාල්ලිපයේ ාට් ආටි හැරවුම් නි්ගමිතය/ 

புெிொக கட்டப்பட்ட மல்லிககனட்டி FT/ 

Construction of New  Malligainatti FT 

 ඉදි කර  ලද පකොච්චිකුලම් හැරවුම් නි්ගමිතය/ புெிொக 

கட்டப்பட்ட தகாச்சிகுைம் FT/ Construction of New 

Kochchikulam FT 

 

 

18. වඩමාරච්චි වලපුද  ජල ංේපේ ංවවර්ධ්‍වය තුළින් යාපව අර්ධ්‍ද්මේපදක ජවතාවට පානීය ජල 
ංැපණුේ වයාපතිය/ வடமராட்சி தடா த்தில் நீர்வளங் லள அபிவிருத்தி தசய்வதன் மூலம் 
யாழ்ப்பாண தபீ ற்பத்தில் உள்ள மக் ளுக்கு எளிதில் தூக் ிச் தசல்லக்கூடிய தண்ணலீர 
வழங்குதல்/ Supply of Potable Water to the population in the Jaffna Peninsula through 

the Development of Water Resources in the Vadamarachchi Lagoon 
 

  

ඉදිකිරීපම් වැඩ සඳහා ප්‍රාරම් ක කටයතු දුදු කිරීා/ குைத்ெின் கட்டுமான பணியின் ஆரம்ப தவகைகள்/ 

Initiation of construction work - pond 

 

 

 

 



 

19.  කුඩාවිලච්චිය ජලාශය ප්‍රිංවං්වර ය කිරීම/ குடவிலச்சிய நீர்த்கதக் த் திட்டம்/ 
Kudawilachchiya Reservoir Project 

 

  

කිරලපටියාව බැමිම/  ிரல்பதியாவ  ட்டு 

/Kiralpatiyawa Bund 

 ස් ලල பூமி கால்ொய்/ Earth Canal 

 

20. දෙමටගල්ල වැව ප්‍රිංවං්වර ය කිරීම/ மதமடட்கல நீரத்்ததக்கத் திடட்ம்/ Dematagala 

Reservoir Project 
 

  

පදාටයල පිවිසුම් ාා්ගයය ඉදිකිරීා/ கதமட்டகல அணுகல் ெதீி/ Dematagala Access Road 

21. විලවණ්නමය ජලාශ වයාපතිය/ வில ண்டிய நீர்த்கதக் ம்/ Wilakandiya Reservoir 
 

  

ප්‍රධාා  ලපළහි වයූහයන් ඉදි කිරීා/ பிரதான கால்ொய் 
கட்டமமப்புகமள நிர்மாணித்தல்/ Construction of 

main canal structures 

ප්‍රපේශ ාා්ගයය ඉදිකිරීා/ அணுகல் ொமல 
அமமத்தல்/ Construction of access road 



 

22. වවුඩුල්ල දීර්ඝ කිරීම අදියර 11 - වේ ඉවුර ඇදළහි ෙේදංෝපුර වැව ෙක්වා දීර්ඝ කිරීම වයාපතිය/ 

மகௌடுல்ல நிலல 11 நீடட்ிப்பு (தம்த ொபுர வொவி வலர நீடட்ிப்பு)/ 
Extension of Kaudulla Stage 11 (Extension up to Damsopura Wewa) 

 

  

විපේද  වුහය ඉදිකිරිා/ பிாிப்பு க் கட்டகமப்பு 

நிர்மாணித்ெல்/ Construction of Bifurcation 

Structure 

මීට්ග 700ක් දිය ගිනිප ට් ආටි  ාලා සෑදීා/ 700 மீ நீை த் 

தொட்டி அகமப்பு அகமத்ெல்/ of 700m long trough 

structure 

 

 

20. මහගල්ගමුව දපෝෂිත ඇළ ඉදිකිරීදේ වයාපතිය/ மஹகல்கமுவ குளத்லத 
தமம்படுதத்ுதல்/ Augmentation of Mahagalgamuwa Tank 

 

  

දපෝෂිත ඇදල් වු  ගල් වඩා ඉවේ කිරීම/ பாமை அகழ்வு/ Rock blasting along the canal trace 

 

 

 

 



 

23. ගවගඟ ගවවතුර පාලව පුවරුේථාපවය වයාපතිය/  ஜின்  ங்ல  தவள்ளத்லத ஒழுங்குபடுத்தும் 

திட்டத்தின் மறுசரீலமப்பு/ Rehabilitation of Gin Ganga Flood Regulation Project  
 
  

ප ොම්  සවි කිරීා/ பம்புககை நிறுவுெல்/ Installation 

of pumps 

යාන්ත්‍රික වැඩ/ இயந்ெிர தவகைகள்/ Mechanical 

Works 

 
 

24. දබන්තර ගඟ ෙකු ක ඉවුර ජලාපවහව හා වරදිය වැළැක්මේදේ වයාපාරය/ தபந்தர  ங்ல  வலது 
 லர வடி ால் மற்றும் உப்பு நீர் தவளிகயற்றும் திட்டம்  ங்ல  வலது  லர வடி ால் மற்றும் 
உப்பு நீர் தவளிகயற்றும் திட்டம்/ Bentara Ganga Right Bank Drainage and Salt Water 

Extrusion Scheme 
 
  

කරදිය වැලැක්වීපම් බැමි ප්‍රතිසංස්කර ය කිරීා/ ககர 

தமட்டுக்கு உகந்ெொக இல்கை/ Impotent to SWE 

bunds 

කරදිය වැලැක්වීපම් ංමු  ප්‍රතිසංස්කර ය කිරීා/ SWE 

கட்டகமப்புகளுக்கு உகந்ெொக இல்கை/ 

Impotent to SWE Structures 

 
 
 
 



 

25. “වාරි දංෞභාගයා” ග්‍රාමීය ය වැ  හා අමු ක පුවරුේථාපවය කිරීදේ ජාිව වැඩංටහව/ 
"நீரப்்பொ ன ம ழுலம" கிரொமிய மற்றும் அலைக்கடட்ு மறுசீரலமப்பு ததசிய திடட்ம்/ 
Rural Tank Development 

 

  

 


















































































